
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

NOTICE OF MEETINGS 

Thursday, March 10, 2005 

9:00 a.in. - Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting 
And 

11 :00 a.n1. - Agricultural Pool Meeting @ CBWM Offices 

(Lunch will be served) 

AT THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER OFFICES 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
(909) 484-3888 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

March 1 O, 2005 

9:00 a.m. - Joint Appropriative and Non
Agricultural Pool Meeting 

11 :00 a.m. - Agricultural Pool Meeting @ CBWM 

(Lunch will be served) 

AGENDA PACKAGE 



CALL TO ORDER 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
JOINT MEETING APPROPRIATIVE 

& NON-AGRICULTURAL POOLS 
9:00 a.m. - March 10, 2005 

At The Offices Of 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

AGENDA 

AGENDA· ADDITIONS/REORDER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action. 

A. MINUTES 
1. Minutes of the Joint Appropriative and Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting held February 10, 

2005 (Page 1) 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of February 2005 (Page 13) 
2. Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Period 

July 1, 2004 through January 31, 2005 (Page 17) 
3. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period January 1, 2005 through January 31, 

2005 (Page 19) 
4. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July 2004 through January 2005 (Page 21) 

C. STATUS REPORT #12 
Consider Authorization to File Status Report 12 with Court and Authorize Staff and Counsel to 
Make Minor Edits as Necessary (Page 23) 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. MITIGATION OF TEMPORARY LOSS OF HYDRAULIC CONTROL 

Consider Recommendation for Mitigation of Temporary Loss of Hydraulic Control (Page 47) 

Ill. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Attorney-Manager Meetings 
2. Santa Ana River Application Process 
3. Senator Kuehl's Water Bill (Page 55) 

1 



Joint Meeting App & Non-Ag Pools March 1 O, 2005 

B. CEO/STAFF REPORT 
1. AGWA Update 
2. Budget Schedule 
3. DOGS/CWES Update 
4. Future Recharge Facility Improvements 

IV. INFORMATION 
1. Newspaper Articles (Page 89) 

V. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
March 10, 2005 
March 1 O, 2005 
March 15, 2005 
March 21, 2005 
March 24, 2005 
March 24, 2005 
March 28, 2005 
March 30, 2005 

Meeting Adjourn 

9:00 a.m. 
11:00 a.m. 
12:00 p.m. 

1:00 p.m. 
9:00 a.m. 

11:00 a.m. 
8:30a.m. 
9:00a.m. 

Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting 
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ CBWM 
Manager's Meeting @ IEUA 
AGWA Meeting 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Watermaster Board Meeting 
Water Quality Meeting 
MZ1 Technical Meeting 

2 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
AGRICULTURAL POOL 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA· ADDITIONS/REORDER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

11 :oo a.m. - March 1 O, 2005 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

AGENDA 

Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific Items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action. 

A. MINUTES 
1. Minutes of the Agricultural Pool Meeting held February 15, 2005 (Page 7) 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of February 2005 (Page 13) 
2. Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Period 

July 1, 2004 through January 31, 2005 (Page 17) 
3. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period January 1, 2005 through January 31, 

2005 (Page 19) 
4. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July 2004 through January 2005 (Page 21) 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. MITIGATION OF TEMPORARY LOSS OF HYDRAULIC CONTROL 

Consider Recommendation for Mitigation of Temporary Loss of Hydraulic Control (Page 23) 

Ill. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Attorney-Manager Meetings 
2. Santa Ana River Application Process 
3. Senator Kuehl's Water Bill (Page 55) 

B. CEO/STAFF REPORT 
1. AGWA Update 
2. Budget Schedule 
3. DOGS/CWES Update 
4. Future Recharge Facility Improvements 



Agricultural Pool Meeting 

IV. INFORMATION 
1. Newspaper Articles (Page 89) 

V. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
March 10, 2005 
March 10, 2005 
March 15, 2005 
March 21, 2005 
March 24, 2005 
March 24, 2005 
March 28, 2005 
March 30, 2005 

Meeting Adjourn 

9:00 a.m. 
11:00 a.m. 
12:00 p.m. 

1:00 p.m. 
9:00 a.m. 

11:00 a.m. 
8:30a.m. 
9:00a.m. 

March 10, 2005 

Appropriative & Non-Agricullural Pool Meeting 
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ CBWM 
Manager's Meeting @ IEUA 
AGWA Meeting 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Watermaster Board Meeting 
Water Quality Meeting 
MZ1 Technical Meeting 

2 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. MINUTES 

1. Joint Appropriative and Non
Agricultural Pool Meeting -
February 10, 2005 



Draft Minutes 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

JOINT APPROPRIATIVE & NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL MEETING 
February 1 o, 2005 

The joint Appropriative and Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting was held at the offices of Chino Basin 
Watermaster, 9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA, on February 10, 2005 at 9:00 a.m. 

APPROPRIATIVE POOL MEMBERS PRESENT 
Dave Crosley, Chair City of Chino 
Ray Wellington San Antonio Water Company 
Mike McGraw Fontana Water Company 
Raul Garibay City of Pomona 
Ken Jeske City of Ontario 
Robert Deloach Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Gerald J. Black Fontana Union Water Company 
James T. Bryson Fontana Water Company 
Mark Kinsey Monte Vista Water District 
Bill Stafford Marygold Mutual Water Company 

NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL MEMBERS PRESENT 
Justin Scott-Coe Vulcan Materials Company (Calmat Division) 

Watermaster Staff Present 
Kenneth R. Manning 
Sheri Rojo 
Gordon Treweek 
Danielle Maurizio 
Sherri Lynne Molino 

Watermaster Consultants Present 
Michael Fife 
Mark Wildermuth 

Others Present 
Mohamed EI-Amamy 
Josephine Johnson 
Rita Kurth 
Justin Brokaw 

Chief Executive Officer 
Finance Manager 
Project Engineer 
Senior Engineer 
Recording Secretary 

Hatch & Parent 
Wildermuth Environmental Inc. 

City of Ontario 
Monte Vista Water District 
Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Marygold Mutual Water Company 

Chair Crosley called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 

AGENDA • ADDITIONS/REORDER 
There were no additions or reorders made to the agenda. 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. MINUTES 

1. Minutes of the Annual Appropriative Pool Meeting held January 13, 2005 
2. Minutes of the Annual Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting held January 13, 2005 

1 

1 



Minutes Joint App & Non-Ag February 10, 2005 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of January 2005 
2. Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Period 

July 1, 2004 through December 31, 2004 
3. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December 1, 2004 through December 

31, 2004 
4. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July 2004 through December 2004 

Motion by Deloach, second by Jeske, and by unanimous vote 
Moved to approve Consent Calendar Items A through B, as presented 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. CONSULTANT AGREEMENT WITH THE FURMAN GROUP 

Mr. Manning stated this item has been under discussion for a couple weeks. A number of our 
agencies have a consultant in Washington DC and what Watermaster has found is that there is 
a need to try and coordinate those activities and messages with the Watermaster. This is not a 
lobbyist contract, this contract is strictly for the Furman Group to monitor and coordinate 
activities in Washington DC; this will keep Watermaster better informed. Mr. Manning stated a 
good example for this type of work that the Furman Group will be performing, is there is a 
delegation from Fontana, Colton, and Rialto in Washington today and the lobbyist from Three 
Valleys and other agencies are working with those parties and the Furman Group was asked to 
be involved with that endeavor in coordinating their message to make sure that the message 
they are presenting does not conflict with the message Watermaster will be delivering when in 
Washington next week. This will ensure a group effort feeling while presenting issues, also in 
that we are working together for the same goal and with the same mind set. This is a good 
example of where things are going in the future and that Watermaster needs to have a 
presence in Washington. The contract is $2,500 dollars a month; which is a very low dollar 
amount for this type of work. Staff recommends at this time that this agreement be approved 
for the benefits it will provide Watermaster and the Chino Basin. A discussion ensued with 
regard to this contract. Mr. Manning stated what Watermaster needs is a consultant to keep 
track of what is happening in Washington so that Watermaster can work on behalf of member 
agencies to help them coordinate and craft a message that is not in conflict with others. Mr. 
Kinsey noted that the presented contract seemed to be missing a proof of insurance and a 
liability clause which should be considered when entering into any contract of this type. Mr. 
Manning stated this contract was asked to be kept simple and that those items being added 
back into the contract should not be a problem and that he will look into it immediately with the 
Furman Group as well as with our legal department. There was a question regarding the date 
of the contract because the Committee does not know when the agreement will be approved. 
The date on the contract will be updated to reflect the date the CEO executes the contract. 

Motion by Deloach, second by Black, and by unanimous vote 
Moved to approve consultant agreement with the Furman Group for $2,500 dollars a 

month with the notation that the agreement will have insurance liability added to the 
agreement, as presented 

B. APPROVAL OF STIPULATION 
Mr. Manning asked Counsel Fife to take this item since counsel is more familiar with this article 
noting this item is the approval of stipulation with East Valley Water District in dealing with the 
Watermaster application filed in 2002 with the State Resource Control Board. Counsel Fife 
stated this is part of the ongoing Santa Ana River issue; Watermaster has filed its Santa Ana 
River Water Rights Application and has received four protests against it. One protest from East 
Valley, one from the Department of Fish and Game, one from the Forest Service, and one from 
Cucamonga Valley Water District. Legal counsel has a meeting with the State Board staff on 
March 7, 2005 and it is anticipated that at least three of the four protests will be resolved prior to 

2 



Minutes Joint App & Non-Ag February 10, 2005 

that meeting. This is the agreement with East Valley who has agreed to withdraw their protest if 
Watermaster will affirm that none of the points of diversion are in the Santa Ana River, which is 
true, and that with the application Watermaster has no intention of infringing on East Valley's 
water rights, which is also true. Counsel Fife stated in his opinion there is no problem with 
signing this presented stipulation; it does not require Watermaster to do anything that 
Watermaster is not already doing. 

Motion by Jeske, second by DeLoach, and by unanimous vote 
Moved to approve stipulation between East Valley Water District and Watermaster 
concerning Watermaster's Santa Ana River water rights application Group, as 
presented 

111. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Attorney-Manager Meetings 
Counsel Fife stated the next meeting is set for March 15, 2005 right after the Agricultural 
Pool meeting at Inland Empire Utilities Agency; we are anticipating some technical work 
from Wildermuth prior to that meeting and counsel will also be putting out a summary of 
where the Attorney Manager process is so far and where the real 2005 milestone issues 
are. An agenda for that meeting will be sent out prior to the March 15

th 
meeting. 

2. Santa Ana River Application Process 
Counsel Fife stated that legal counsel met with Mr. Manning, Scott Slater, John Rossi, and 
representative from Orange County Water District (OCWD) on February 9, 2005 to try to 
bring all the parties together into a more coordinated approach to the whole Santa Ana 
process. Meetings will continue and the next meeting has been scheduled for February 23, 
2005. There is another meeting set for Mr. Manning, Mark Wildermuth, and myself with 
State Board staff on March 7, 2005; we are now officially moving on Watermaster's 
application and are in the process of resolving the protests. Staff is speaking lo the State 
Board in regards to what additional information they need. 

Added Item: 

Counsel Fife noted that Mr. Deloach had asked that staff address this item at this meeting. 
Counsel Fife staled there is a handout on the back table titled "Background On Senator 
Kuehl's Water Bill". Senator Sheila Kuehl is proposing to do a follow up on her great 
success on senate bill 221. There is no text that has been put out yet; this is only the 
senator's office indicating things that the senator wants to put into a bill to introduce this 
year. The senator's office is looking at putting out bill that is going to address what they see 
as three large areas, the first is water conservation policy, the second is the use and 
abundance of water recourses, and thirdly is planning and management. There are a lot of 
interesting things in this bill, one of the big things is a real emphasis on mandating 
conservation and putting penalties in place for not conserving water which raises questions 
about how do you define conservation and how you define those penalties. Some of the 
other interesting high points are the topic of imposing Agricultural water management plans 
which would be the flip side to urban water management plans for Ag users and the 
reporting of groundwater use. It basically looks like this bill will undo what AB 2733 did last 
year and mandate everybody state wide has to report to the State Board including those 
people in San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles counties who last year were told that 
they no longer had to report the State Board that they would report to their local agencies 
instead. There is no draft bill out yet there are only these indications from the senator's 
office that something is coming. Mr. Deloach noted that he would be addressing this at the 
ACWA's Legislative Committee meeting this week. Counsel Fife noted this has gone to the 
ACWA's Legal Affairs Committee and the senator's office has had a briefing on this that our 
lobbyist was at. 

3 
3 



Minutes Joint App & Non-Ag February 10, 2005 

B. CEO/STAFF REPORT 
1. Storm Report 

Mr. Manning stated that at the last meeting a copy of the storm report was provided and 
some additional information needs to be added to that report. Mr. Treweek is going to give 
that update. Mr. Treweek noted that Watermaster has been capturing storm water in ten 
basins (available in October 2004) to fourteen basins (available in January 2005). By the 
end of January 2005 there were six major storm events, through these six storm events 
the basins have received about 32 inches of rain this year and we have captured 
approximately 7,000 acre-feet in the basins that are on line. Over the next month or two, 
Watermaster anticipates additional basins being brought on line as their construction is 
completed. The deadline for completion of all basins is March 31, 2005; at that point 
Watermaster should have all 20 basins on line and ready for storm or supplemental water. 
The question of how to track or measure ongoing nuisance flows which are redirected into 
the basins was presented. Mr. Treweek stated Watermaster is directing all nuisance flow 
that we can into the basins either through drop inlets or by inflating rubber dams. Presently 
the SCADA system is not up and running; SCADA is one of the items that is to be 
completed by March 31, 2005. We will also have flow meters that will measure the flow of 
nuisance water. In lieu of SCADA/flow meters, Watermaster is calculating the percolation 
in the basin. After nuisance water enters into basin storage, we measure the dropping 
water level of the basin and the "wetted" area of the basin. The product of the percolation 
rate (ft/day), the "wetted" area (acres), and the number of recharged days gives the 
amount of water recharge during a storm event. Mr. Manning stated Watermaster is 
currently performing this via site visits. Once the SCADA system is fully operational this 
will be done electronically and will be available on a real time basis. 

2. State of the Basin 
Mr. Manning stated the draft State of the Basin report in its entirety is available on the 
Chino Basin Watermaster web site and is also available on Wildermuth's web site. A copy 
of the Executive Summary was the only part of the report put into the packet because of 
the size of the document. Staff is requesting comments be into Wildermuth by the end of 
this week or next week so that report can be finalized for distribution. 

IV. INFORMATION 
1. Newspaper Articles 

Mr. Manning noted that on the back table was a recent article which was published in the San 
Gabriel Valley Tribune regarding his resignation from his seat on the Upper District Water 
Board. 

V. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 
Ms. Johnson made the suggestion for Watermaster to purchase wireless headsets for the hearing 
impaired due to the difficulty in hearing what parties are saying from the back of the room. Mr. 
Manning noted this situation will be looked into and if it is feasible a wireless headset will be made 
available for all who need it. 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
No comment was made regarding this item. 

4 



Minutes Joint App & Non-Ag 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
February 10, 2005 
February 15, 2005 
February 24, 2005 
February 24, 2005 
March 10, 2005 
March 15, 2005 
March 21, 2005 
March 24, 2005 
March 24, 2005 

9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 

11:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 
1:00 p.m. 
9:00a.m. 

11:00 a.m. 

February 10, 2005 

Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting 
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Watermaster Board Meeting 
Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting 
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA 
AGWA Meeting 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Watermaster Board Meeting 

The Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting Adjourned at 9:35 a.m. 

Secretary: __________ _ 

Minutes Approved: __________ _ 

5 

5 



. 6 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. MINUTES 

1. Agricultural Pool Meeting -
February 15, 2005 



Draft Minutes 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
AGRICULTURAL POOL MEETING 

February 15, 2005 

The Agricultural Pool Meeting was held at the offices of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 6075 
Kimball Avenue, Chino, CA, on February 15, 2005 at 9:00 a.m. 

Agricultural Pool Members Present 
Nathan deBoom, Chair 
Gene Koopman 
Bob Feenstra 
Glen Durrington 
John Huitsing 
Ed Gonsman 

Watermaster Staff Present 
Sheri Rojo 
Gordon Treweek 
Danielle Maurizio 
Sherri Lynne Molino 

Watermaster Consultants Present 
Michael Fife 

Others Present 
Steve Lee 
Rick Rees 

Milk Producers Council 
Milk Producers Council 
Milk Producers Council 
Crops 
Dairy 
State of California, California Institute for Men 

Finance Manager 
Project Engineer 
Senior Engineer 
Recording Secretary 

Hatch & Parent 

Reid & Hellyer 
Geomatrix for CIM 

Chair deBoom called the Agricultural Pool meeting to order at 9:10 a.m. 

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER 
No additions or reorders were made to the agenda. 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. MINUTES 

1. Minutes of the Annual Agricultural Pool Meeting held January 18, 2005 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of January 2005 
2. Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Period 

July 1, 2004 through December 31, 2004 
3. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December 1, 2004 through December 

31,2004 
4. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July 2004 through December 2004 

Motion by Durrington, second by Feenstra, and by unanimous vote 
Moved to approve Consent Calendar Items A through 8, as presented 

7 



8 

Minutes Agricultural Pool February 15, 2005 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. CONSUL TANT AGREEMENT WITH THE FURMAN GROUP 

Ms. Rojo stated that Watermaster originally had a contract with Cerrell and Associates who was 
a public consulting firm. The contract with Cerrell was cancelled a few months prior; that 
contract cost Watermaster approximately $6,700 dollars a month for their services which now 
leaves money in the budget. Watermaster staff has deduced there is a need to keep up with 
federal legislative issues in Washington would like to enter into an agreement with the Furman 
Group. This is a one year contract at $2,500 dollars a month; the Furman Group will keep 
Watermaster staff abreast of the legislative issues happening in Washington DC. This 
consulting firm is not a lobbyist group nor will they be lobbying any affairs on behalf of 
Watermaster. The Appropriative and Non-Agricultural Pool approved this contract unanimously, 
however the Appropriative Pool commented there was a lack of proof of liability insurance 
wording in the contract and asked Mr. Manning to see those types of insurances were put back 
into the contract. Ms. Rojo noted the revised contract was available on the back table. The 
question of whether Carrell and Associates performed this type of service was presented. 
Ms. Rojo noted they were more of a public relations firm. The question of whether or not the 
new consulting firm is based out of DC was presented. Ms. Rojo noted that they had an office 
in Washington DC as well as one in San Diego. Mr. Feenstra stated he was pleased the 
Appropriative Pool caught the lack of liability insurance in the contract due to so many law 
suites that could take place and noted it was important to keep ourselves well protected in the 
areas of insurance when it comes to outside contracts. Mr. Rojo noted the Furman Group also 
does lobbying for parties and at the time the contract was being drawn up Watermaster asked 
the Furman Group to really simplify their standard contract to not be construed to any lobbying 
acts. The Furman Group took out several sentences and phrases to accommodate 
Watermaster's wishes and the particular statements regarding liability insurance was 
inadvertently removed. The question regarding exactly what the Furman Group will be doing 
for the Watermaster was presented. Ms. Rojo stated they will be our legislative contact for the 
happenings in Washington. A discussion ensued with regard to where liability insurance would 
come into play with the Furman Group. The question of whether $2,500 dollars a month was a 
fair price for this type of work was presented. Ms. Rojo noted that when Mr. Manning came on 
board last year he had originally looked at the Cerrell contract and inquired as to what 
Watermaster was getting for that type of money in the area of legislation consulting and in 
knowing the Furman Group from prior dealings noted the Furman Group was giving 
Watermaster a really good deal. It was noted that a normal consultant retainer for people in 
Washington runs approximately $7,000 to $10,000 a month. The question of whether or not we 
have any people doing this type of work for Watermaster in Sacramento was presented. 
Ms. Rojo stated that she knows that Mr. Atwater has contacts in Sacramento, the Watermaster 
does not. Ms. Rojo stated that Mr. Manning keeps up to date on all the state and legislative 
issues. Mr. Feenstra stated that he felt this was a very reasonable fee for this type of work and 
with this type of consulting, Watermaster will benefit tremendously in a vast number of areas. 
The question of whether or not staff felt if the Furman Group heard of something in Washington 
that would not necessarily be relevant to Watermaster but to others in the Chino Basin would 
be shored with others. Ms. Rojo noted that sounded like something they would certainly keep 
others informed. Counsel Fife stated since Watermaster does not lobby, one of the goals Mr. 
Manning is doing with this type of agreement is that if Watermaster gets wind of something that 
really needs a lobbying effort Ken can turn it over to one of the other Watermaster entities. A 
discussion ensued with regards to the great opportunities this type of contract will open up for 
the Watermaster and others in the Chino Basin. 

Motion by Feenstra, second by Koopman, and by unanimous vote 
Moved to approve consultant agreement with the Furman Group, as presented 

B. APPROVAL OF STIPULATION 
Counsel Fife stated that he will combine this item with part two of the Watermaster General 
Legal Counsel Reports section for the matter of expediency and noted their relevancy. This 

2 



Minutes Agricultural Pool February 15, 2005 

item concerns the Santa Ana River subject. In the year 2000 the Chino Basin decided to 
participate in the Santa Ana process as an applicant rather than being a protester. 
Watermaster filed a water rights application for all of the storm flow which would pass through 
the Chino Basin. Watermaster's application attracted four protests; one from East Valley Water 
District, one from Cucamonga Valley Water District, one from the Forest Service, and one from 
the Department of Fish and Game. East Valley Water District has agreed to withdraw their 
protest if Watermaster will stipulate first that none of our diversions come out of the main stem 
of the Santa Ana River, which is true, and secondly with our application Watermaster has no 
intention of infringing on East Valley's water rights, which is also true. This appears to be a 
fairly innocuous stipulation to enter into and this will resolve one of the four protests that 
Watermaster needs to deal with on its application. Counsel Fife reminded the Committee 
members that Western Municipal Water District has put out their EIR on their application, 
Orange County Water District also has an EIR out on their application; all of the applications 
are beginning to move forward. Western and OCWD anticipate they can get a hearing on their 
applications in 2005. Counsel Fife stated he would like to get approval on this stipulation so 
that it can go to the Watermaster Board and get authorization to sign it. A brief discussion 
ensued with regard to the other protesters. Counsel Fife noted that the protest from the Fish 
US Forest Service was a misunderstanding of our application and in a verbal conversation with 
their legal department it appears they will be withdrawing their protest. Mr. Feenstra inquired to 
the word "stock watering" used in the stipulation on page 41 of the packet. Counsel Fife states 
that these words come out of the State Water Resources Control Board application. The 
closest statement to cows is stock watering on the application form provided; and noted that he 
wrote in the word "dairy use" next to stock watering when filling out Watermaster's application. 
Counsel Fife stated that Watermaster's application is for the diversion of surface flows, which is 
storm water, into our recharge basins; the beneficial use then is whatever anybody pumps out 
and uses it for. Counsel Fife stated that staff is meeting with Western and OCWD next week; 
staff is pushing for a group cumulative impacts analysis. Staff wants all participants to do a 
group report; Watermaster might volunteer to do that report for everybody. 

Motion by Feenstra, second by Koopman, and by unanimous vote 
Moved to approve stipulation between East Valley Water District and Watermaster 
concerning Watermaster's Santa Ana River water rights application, as presented 

111. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Attorney-Manager Meetings 
Counsel Fife stated that 2005 is a big year under the Peace Agreement there are a lot of 
milestone issues and of most importance in September the term of the nine member board 
expires; in July or August counsel is going to make a motion to the court to reappoint the 
Watermaster Board. Staff tried to get a head start of many of these issues which is why the 
Attorney-Manager meetings started up a last year. The Attorney-Managers process 
basically came to a halt due to the whole concept of Hydraulic Control, technical work. 
Counsel Fife noted there is a manager's meeting scheduled for March 15, 2005 at noon 
and is being held at Inland Empire Utilities Agency. Staff and counsel are anticipating 
moving directly into the Attorney-Manager meetings after the technical managers meeting 
takes place on March 15

th
• 

2. Santa Ana River Application Process 
This item was covered in Business Item B - Approval of Stipulation. No other comment 
was made regarding this item. 

3 

· .. , 9 



10 

Minutes Agricultural Pool February 15, 2005 

Added Item: 

Counsel noted there is a handout on the back table tilled "Background on Senator Kuehl's 
Water Bill". Senator Sheila Kuehl is proposing to do a follow up on her great success on senate 
bill 221. There is no text that has been put out yet; this is only the senator's office indicating 
things that the senator wants to put into a bill to introduce this year. The senator's office is 
looking al putting out bill that is going to address as to what they see as three large areas, the 
first is waler conservation policy, the second is the use and abundance of water recourses, and 
thirdly is planning and management. There are a lot of interesting things in this bill, one of the 
big things is a real emphasis on mandating conservation and putting penalties in place for not 
conserving water which raises questions about how do you define conservation and how you 
define those penalties. Some of the other interesting high points are the topic of imposing 
Agricultural water management plans which would be the flip side lo urban water management 
plans for Ag users and the reporting of groundwater use. It basically looks like this bill will undo 
what AB 2733 did last year and mandate everybody stale wide has lo report to the Slate Board 
including those people in San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles counties who last year 
were told that they no longer had to report the State Board that they would report to their local 
agencies instead. There is no draft bill out yet there are only these indications from the 
senator's office that something is coming. Mr. Feenstra noted his concern over the possibility of 
this bill being introduced and/or passed. Mr. Feenstra stated this will be a topic of discussion 
February 16 and 17 during the Agricultural Round Table in Sacramento. Mr. Feenstra 
commented on how important it is for all water districts/agencies to be very mindful of what this 
bill could do. It was asked that this item be placed on the March agenda for an update. A 
discussion ensued with regard to the potential damage this bill could cause the Ag industry in 
the Chino Basin. 

B. CEO/STAFF REPORT 
1. Storm Report 

Ms. Rojo reported there were handouts on the storm report at the Appropriative and Non
Agricultural Pool meetings and verified with Mr. Treweek that there were no updates from 
that report to report on. As a recap of that report, Ms. Rojo sta_ted that from the storms 
which started in October Watermaster has captured approximately 8,000 acre-feet of 
water in the recharge basins. The operations are a little behind due lo the SCADA system 
not being fully operational in all basins. The question of whether or not there was a lot of 
damage lo the basins from the last two storms was presented. Mr. Traweek noted there 
was some erosion in some of the basins and a good amount of the basins has damage to 
the intermediate berms. The question of cost to repair these berms was presented. 
Mr. Treweek noted it would be approximately a quarter of a million dollars for repairs for 
the berms and another $50,000 to $100,000 in erosion damage. Chair deBoom inquired 
where this puts us as far as the 12,000 acre-feet is concerned. Ms. Rojo stated we are 
now at 8,000 out of the 12,000 and we are in good shape for just being in February. Ms. 
Rojo discussed how the intense rain storms affect the capture of water versus the slow 
steady rain fall. It was noted that Arrowhead Lake which was in dire straights is now full. 
A discussion ensued with regard to the recent Prado Dam situation. Ms. Rojo stated that 
some of the basins, which are under Flood Control jurisdiction, Walermaster has been 
attempting to secure basins, one at a lime, to do a demonstration project during this storm 
to try and improve Watermaster's ability to run them. Mr. Rojo stated at a recent storm 
Walermaster contacted Flood Control and made them aware that Walermaster can start 
diverting water into all of the basins which will in turn take some of the pressure off the 
dam; this went very well and turned out to be in bringing online several basins. 
Statements were received regarding trees and shrubs growing in the basins. Mr. Treweek 
slated this is a concern and the fact that one can establish a habitat and then the wildlife 
can set up nesting and then Watermaster can not go in and renovate the basin lo use ii for 
what ii was originally designed for. Staff has determined there will be an aggressive 
maintenance program set in place where the sides will be cleared of any vegetation and 
maintain it that way so that it does not ever become a habitat. Now that these basins are 

4 



Minutes Agricultural Pool February 15, 2005 

going to be used 12 months out of the year a continuous effort to keep them clear and 
operable will be a priority. Watermaster is currently budgeting for this type of basin 
maintenance. 

2. Slate of the Basin 
Ms. Rojo noted the Executive Summary page only was in the package and the full State of 
the Basin report was available on Watermaster and Wildermuth Environmental's web site 
for review or downloading. Ms. Rojo stated comments were due today on that report, 
however since that was such short notice for the Agricultural Pool the time for comment 
would be extended for another few days. It will be appreciated if comments are directed to 
Watermaster expediently so this report may be finalized. 

IV. INFORMATION 
1. Newspaper Articles 

No comment was made regarding this item. 

V. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 
Ms. Rojo noted that on the back table was a recent article which was published in the San Gabriel 
Valley Tribune regarding Mr. Manning's resignation from his seat on the Upper District Water Board. 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
Mr. Feenstra complimented Mr. Manning (who was not present for this meeting) and the 
Watermaster staff for accommodating the Agricultural Pool in maintaining the Ag Pool meetings to 
be held Inland Empire Utilities Agency and how appreciative he and other pool members are. 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS 
February 10, 2005 
February 15, 2005 
February 24, 2005 
February 24, 2005 
March 10, 2005 
March 15, 2005 
March 21, 2005 
March 24, 2005 
March 24, 2005 

9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 

11:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 
1:00 p.m. 
9:00 a.m. 

11:00 a.m. 

Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting 
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Watermaster Board Meeting 
Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting 
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA 
AGWA Meeting 
Advisory Committee Meeting 
Watermaster Board Meeting 

The Agricultural Pool Meeting Adjourned at 10:05 a.m. 

Secretary: __________ _ 

Minutes Approved: __________ _ 

5 

11 



12 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

1. Cash Disbursements Feb1uary 2005 
2. Combining Schedule of Revenue, 

Expenses and changes in Working 
Capital for the Period July 1, 2004 
through January 31, 2005 

3. Treasurer's Report of Financial 
Affairs for January I through January 
31,2005 

4. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July 
2004 through January 2005 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org 

KENNETH R. MANNING 
Chief Executive Officer 

DATE: 

TO: 

STAFF REPORT 

March 10, 2005 
March 24, 2005 

Committee Members 
Watermaster Board Members 

SUBJECT: Cash Disbursement Report - February 2005 

SUMMARY 

Issue - Record of cash disbursements for the month of February 2005. 

Recommendation - Staff recommends the Cash Disbursements for February 2005 be received and 
filed as presented. 

Fiscal Impact -All funds disbursed were included in the FY 2004-05 Watermaster Budget. 

BACKGROUND 
A monthly cash disbursement report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster expenditures. 

DISCUSSION 
Total cash disbursements during the month of February 2005 were $364,730.60. The most significant 
expenditures during the month were Wildermuth Environmental Inc. in the amount of $168,995.25 and Hatch & 
Parent in the amount of $60,902.45. 

13 



14 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Cash Disbursement Detail Report 

February 2005 

Type Date Num Name Amount 

Feb 05 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9321 BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION -3,465.00 
Bill Pml -Check 21212005 9322 ANDERSON, JOHN -125.00 
Bill Pmt -Chee!< 21212005 9323 AUMA ACTUATORS INC. -268.00 
BIii Pm! -Check 21212005 9324 BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION -5,816.25 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9325 BOWCOCK, ROBERT -250.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 21212005 9326 DIRECTV -71.98 
BIii Pmt -Check 21212005 9327 HAMRICK, PAUL -125.00 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9328 JAMES JOHNSTON -795.00 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9329 KRUGER, W. C. "BILL" -125.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 21212005 9330 KUHN.BOB -375.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 21212005 9331 MWH LABORATORIES -4, 125.00 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9332 NEUFELD, ROBERT -250.00 
Bill Pmt -Check 21212005 9333 OFFICE DEPOT -329.20 
Bill Pmt -Check 21212005 9334 PAYCHEX -244.15 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9335 PETTY CASH -481.18 
Bill Pmt -Check 21212005 9336 PURCHASE POWER -2,097.91 
BIii Pmt -Check 21212005 9337 RBM LOCK & KEY -152.44 
BIii Pml -Check 21212005 9338 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Maintenance -67.46 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/212005 9339 UNION 76 -285.26 
BIii Pmt -Check 21212005 9340 VERIZON -38.56 
General Journal 21512005 05/0213 PAYROLL -5,927.14 
General Journal 21512005 0510213 PAYROLL -16,141.59 
BIii Pmt -Check 211012005 9341 GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES -8,063.20 
BIii Pmt -Check 211112005 9342 SAVIN CORPORATION dba RICOH BUSINESS -173.82 
BIii Pm! -Check 2/11/2005 9343 SAVIN CORPORATION dba RICOH BUSINESS -639.50 
Bill Pmt -Check 211112005 9344 SAVIN CORPORATION dba RICOH BUSINESS -36.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 2111/2005 9345 AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION -150.00 
BIii Pml -Check 2111/2005 9346 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES -2,473.30 
Bill Pmt -Check 2111/2005 9347 CITIZENS CONFERENCING -41.86 
Bill Pmt -Check 211112005 9348 HATCH AND PARENT -60,902.45 
BIii Pmt -Chee!< 211112005 9349 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS -795.63 
BIii Pml -Check 2111/2005 9350 INLAND COUNTIES INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. -216.77 
BIii Pml -Check 2111/2005 9351 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY -60.00 
Bill Pmt -Check 2111/2005 9352 LOS ANGELES TIMES -42.00 
BIii Pmt -Chee!< 211112005 9353 PARK PLACE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. -2,695.00 
BIii Pml -Check 2111/2005 9354 REID & HELLYER -2, 194.59 
BIii Pmt -Check 2111/2005 9355 UNITED STATES PLASTIC CORP -158.12 
Bill Pmt -Check 2111/2005 9356 VELASQUEZ JANITORIAL -1,200.00 
BIii Pml -Check 2111/2005 9357 VERIZON -344.48 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/1112005 9358 VIP AUTO DETAILING -329.50 
Bill Pmt -Check 211412005 9359 STATE OF CALIFORNIA BOARD OF EQUALIZATION -865.79 
Bill Pmt -Check 211412005 9360 ACWA -9,080.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 2117/2005 9361 JAMES JOHNSTON -850.00 
General Journal 2119/2005 05/0216 PAYROLL -5,053.63 
General Journal 2/19/2005 05/0216 PAYROLL -16,025.22 
Bill Pml -Check 2122/2005 9362 COSTCO BUSINESS DELIVERY -170.00 
BIii Pmt -Chee!< 2122/2005 9363 ACWA SERVICES CORPORATION -288.93 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/2212005 9364 BANK OF AMERICA -291.90 
Bill Pmt -Check 212212005 9365 CERRELL ASSOCIATES INC. -848.08 
BIii Pmt -Check 212212005 9366 CHEVRON -98.15 
BIii Pmt -Check 2122/2005 9367 CIT!STREET -6,750.00 
Bill Pmt -Check 2122/2005 9368 CITIZENS CONFERENCING -286.78 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/2212005 9369 DAN VASILE -140.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 2122/2005 9370 ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS, LLP -6,978.44 
BIii Pmt -Check 2122/2005 9371 FIRST AMERICAN REAL ESTATE SOLUTIONS -125.00 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/22/2005 9372 GLOBAL PRESENTER.COM -3, 135.49 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/22/2005 9373 IDEAL GRAPHICS -465.48 
BIii Pmt -Check 212212005 9374 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY -206.31 
BIii Pml -Check 2122/2005 9375 MCI -900.15 
BIii Pmt -Check 2122/2005 9376 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM -3,648.36 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/2212005 9377 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Lease -3,591.31 
BIii Pmt -Check 2/2212005 9378 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. -461.24 
BIii Pmt -Check 212212005 9379 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND -892.77 
BIii Pmt -Check 212212005 9380 STATE OF CALIFORNIA BOARD OF EQUALIZATION -530.54 
Bill Pmt -Check 2122/2005 9381 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE -324.91 
BIii Pmt -Check 212212005 9382 USA-FACT INC -94.20 
Bill Pmt -Check 2/2212005 9383 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC -168,995.25 
BIii Pm! -Check 2122/2005 9384 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT -4,900.00 

15 



16 

Type 

Bill Pml -Check 
Bill Pmt -Check 
Bill Pmt -Check 

Feb 05 

Date 

2/22/2005 
2/22/2005 
2/23/2005 

9385 
9386 
9387 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Cash Disbursement Detail Report 

February 2005 

Num Name 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
ROUTE 66 SUBS 

Amount 

-4,031.40 
-2,524.75 

-104.18 

-364,730.60 



Administrative Revenues 
Administrative Assessments 
Interest Revenue 
Mutual Agency Project Revenue 
Grant Income 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Revenues 

Administrative & Project Expenditures 
Watermaster Administralion 
Walermaster Board•Advisory Committee 
Pool Administration 
Optimum Basin Mgnt Administration 
OBMP Project Costs 
Education Funds Use 
Mutual Agency Project Costs 

Total Adminislrative/OBMP Expenses 
Net Administralive/OBMP Income 

Allocate Net Admin Income To Pools 

Allocate Ne! OBMP Income To Poo!s 

Agricultural Expense Transfer 
Total Expenses 

Net Administrative !ncome.l 

Other lncome/(Expense) 1 
Replenishment Water Purchases 
MZ1 Supplemental Wa18f Assessments 
Water Purchases 

MZ1 Imported Water Purchase 
Groundwater Replenishment 

Net Other Income 

Net Transfers To/{From) Reserves 

Working Capital, July 1, 2004 
Working Capita!, End Of Period 

03/04 Production 
03/04 Production Percentages 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL 

FOR THE 
PERIOD JULY 1, 2004 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2005 

OPTIMUM POOL ADMINISTRATION AND SPECIAL PROJECTS GROUNDWATER OPERATIONS 

WATERMASTER BASIN APPROPRIATIVE AGRICULTURAL NON-AGRIC. GROUNDWATER SB222 

ADMINISTRATION MANAGEMENT POOL POOL POOL REPLENISHMENT FUNDS 

4,807,004 74,241 
55,353 4,738 2,379 

4,862,357 4,738 76,620 

469,120 
28,289 

6,394 40,154 1,750 
764,751 

1,411,921 

34,181 
531,590 2,176,672 6,394 40,154 1,750 

(531,590) (2,176,672) 
531,590 400,240 122,821 8,528 

2,176,672 1,638,842 502,910 34,920 

661,360 661,360 
2,706,837 4,525 45,198 
2,155,520 213 31,422 

8,097,107 
1,625,000 

1,290,815 
8,431,292 

2,155,520 213 31,422 8,431,292 

3,471,229 463,055 173,739 4,133,061 158,251 
5,626,749 463,268 205,161 12,564,353 158,251 

136,795.139 41,978.182 2,914.774 
75.291% 23.105% 1.604% 

Q \Fo,om:oal Slo!•m•ob\!).I.QS\O,t O••~Ccmll"'!t<IJSch•WI• Ooc o.l.>l•!S:.oe11 

Prepared by Sheri Rojo, Finance Manager 

EDUCATION GRAND BUDGET 
FUNDS TOTALS 2004-05 

4,881,245 $3,984,888 
14 62,484 78,330 

0 
0 
0 

14 4,943,729 4,063,218 

469,120 621,784 
28,289 37,018 
48,298 91,153 

764,751 1,019,183 
1,411,921 3,733,694 

375 
34,181 80,004 

2,756,560 5,583,211 

0 

0 

0 
2,756,560 5,583,211 

14 2,187,169 (1,519,993) 

8,097,107 0 
1,625,000 2,179,500 

0 
(2,278,500) 

1,290,815 0 
8,431,292 (99,000) 

14 10,618,461 (1,618,993) 

2,195 8,401,530 
2.209 19,019,991 

181,688.095 
100.000"/., 



18 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



r-' 
w 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD 

JANUARY 1 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2005 

DEPOSITORIES: 
Cash on Hand - Petty Cash 
Bank of America 

Governmental Checking-Demand Deposits 
Savings Deposits 
Zero Balance Account - Payroll 

Vineyard Bank CD - Agricultural Pool 
Local Agency Investment Fund - Sacramento 

TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 
TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 

PERIOD INCREASE {DECREASE) 

CHANGE IN CASH POSITION DUE TO: 
Decrease/(lncrease) in Assets: Accounts Receivable 

Assessments Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses, Deposits & Other Current Assets 

(Decrease)/lncrease in Liabilities Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll, Payroll Taxes & Other Current Liabilities 
Transfer to/{from) Reserves 

PERIOD INCREASE {DECREASE) 

Zero Balance 
Petty Gov1'I Checking Account 
Cash Demand Pa~oll 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS: 
Balances as of 12/31/2004 $ 500 $ 153,196 $ 

Deposits 9,357,012 

Transfers {8,989,840) 39,840 

Withdrawals/Checks {7,809,445) (39,840) 

Balances as of 1/31/2005 $ 500 $ (7,289,077) $ 

1/31/2005 
12/31/2004 

Savings 

$ 9,641 

(6) 

$ 9,635 

$(7,289,077) 
9,635 

Vineyard 
Bank 

$ 401,440 

$ 401,440 

PERIOD INCREASE OR {DECREASE) $ $ {7,442,273) $ $ (6) $ 

Local Agency 
Investment Funds 

$ 8,867,217 
30,262 

8,950,000 

$ 17,847,479 

$ 8,980,262 

$ 500 

(7,279,442) 
401,440 

17,847,479 

$ 10,969,977 
9,431,994 

$ 1,537,983 

$ 30,262 
9,356,027 

2,067 
(7,493,734) 

7,832 
{364,471) 

$ 1,537,983 

Totals 

$ 9,431,994 
9,387,274 

(7,849,291) 

$ 10,969,977 

$ 1,537,983 



N 
0 

Effective 
Date Transaction 
1/13/2005 Interest 

1 /612005 Deposit 

Depository 
L.A.I.F. 
L.A.I.F. 

TOTAL INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD 

JANUARY 1 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2005 

$ 

Activity 
30,262 

8,950,000 

8,980,262 

INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS 

Redeemed 
Days to 
Maturity 

Interest 
Rate(') 

Maturity 
Yield 

• The earnings rate for L.A.I.F. is a daily variable rate; 2.00% was the effective yield rate at the Quarter ended December 31, 2004 

Financial Institution 
Local Agency Investment Fund 

Time Certificates of Deposit 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 

Principal 
Amount 

$ 17,847,479 

$ 17,847,479 

INVESTMENT STATUS 
January 31, 2005 

Number of 
Days 

Interest 
Rate 

Maturity 
Date 

Funds on hand are sufficient to meet all foreseen and planned Administrative and project expenditures during the next six months. 

All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in Chino Basin Watermaster's Investment 
Policy. 

Respectfully submitted, 

5e_ "e=c5) 
Sheri M. Rojo, CPA 
Finance Manager 
Chino Basin Watermaster 

Q:\Financia\ Statements\04--05\04 Oec\[freasurers Report Dec 04.x!s}Sheet1 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
July 2004 through January 2005 

Jul '04 • Jan 05 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

4010 · Local Agency Subsidies 0.00 132,000.00 -132,000.00 0.0% 

411 O • Admln Asmnts-Approp Pool 4,807,004.41 3,755,236.00 1,051,768.41 128.01% 

4120 • Admln Asmnts-Non-Agrl Pool 74,240.87 97,652.00 -23,411.13 76.03% 

4700 • Non Operating Revenues 62,477.69 78,330.00 -15,852.31 79.76% 

Total Income 4,943,722.97 4,063,218.00 880,504.97 121.67% 

Gross Profit 4,943,722.97 4,063.218.00 880,504.97 121.67% 

Expense 

6010 • Salary Costs 260,152.25 401,704.00 -141,551.75 64.76% 

6020 • Office Building Expense 68,846.22 100,800.00 -31,953.78 68.3% 

6030 · Office Supplies & Equip. 25,979.94 45,500.00 -19,520.06 57.1% 

6040 • Postage & Prlnllng Costs 48,967.99 67,100.00 -18,132.01 72.98% 

6050 • Information Services 69,113.69 105,076.00 -35,962.31 65.78% 

6060 • Contract Services 121,151.56 106,000.00 15,151.56 114.29% 

6080 • Insurance 14,485.94 21,710.00 -7,224.06 66.73% 

611 0 • Dues and Subscriptions 652.73 16.600.00 -15,947.27 3.93% 

6140 • Other WM Admln Expenses 1,331.90 2,500.00 -1,168.10 53.28% 

6150 • Field Supplies 506.43 4,250.00 -3,743.57 11,92D/o 

6170 • Travel & Transportation 10.989.52 24,650.00 -13,660.48 44.58% 

6190 • Conferences & Seminars 8,006.14 16,000.00 -7,993.86 50.04% 

6200 • Advisory Comm - WM Board 6,409.46 13,459.00 -7,049.54 47.62% 

6300 • Watermaster Board Expenses 21,879.65 23,559.00 -1,679.35 92.87% 

8300 · Appr Pl-WM & Pool Admln 6,393.86 13,659.00 -7,265.14 46.81% 

8400 · Agrl Pool-WM & Pool Admin 9,749.35 16,417.00 -6,667.65 59.39% 

8467 • Agrl-Pool Legal Services 25,879.77 45,000.00 -19, 120.23 57.51% 

8470 • Ag Meellng Attend -Special 4,525.00 10,000.00 -5,475.00 45.25% 

8500 · Non-Ag Pi-WM & Pool Admln 1,749.97 6,077.00 -4,327.03 28.8% 
6500 • Education Funds Use Expens 908.00 375.00 533.00 242.131%1 

9500 • Allocated G&A Expenditures -161,971.79 -290, 106.00 128,134.21 55.83% 

Subtotal G&A Expenditures 545,707.58 750,330.00 -204,622.42 72.73% 

6900 • Opllmum Basin Mgmt Plan 702.281.97 933,566.00 -231,284.03 75.23% 

6950 • Mutual Agency Projects 34,181.43 80,004.00 -45,822.57 42.73% 

9501 • G&A Expenses Allocated-OBMP 62,468.15 85,617.00 -23,148.85 72.96% 

Subtotal OBMP Expenses 798,931.55 1,099,187.00 -300,255.45 72.68% 

7101 • Production Monitoring 18.400.47 54,957.00 -36,556.53 33.48% 

7102 • In-line Meter Installation 8,342.91 93,969.00 -85,626.09 8.88% 

7103 • Grdwtr Quality Monitoring 74,553.89 148,792.00 -74,238.11 50.11% 

7104 • Gdwtr Level Monitoring 44,992.90 135,072.00 -90,079.10 33.31% 

7105 • SurWtr Qual Monitoring 126,606.09 282,220.00 -155,613.91 44.86°/o 

7106 • Wtr Lev~g>~~nsors Install 0.00 19,114.00 -19,114.00. 0.0% 

7107 • Ground Level Monitoring 173,711.14 433.720.00 -260,008.86 40.05% 

21 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
July 2004 through January 2005 

Jul '04 - Jan 05 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

7108 · Hydraulic Control Monitoring 169,775.93 437,987.00 -268,211.07 38.76'% 

7200 · PE2- Comp Recharge Pgm 297,644.00 413,177.00 -115,533.00 72.04% 

7300 · PE3&5-Water Supply/Desalle 0.00 20,885.00 -20,885.00 0.0% 

7400 · PE4- Mgmt Plan 73,493.06 795,099.00 -721,605.94 9.24%, 

7500 · PE6&7-CoopEfforts/SaltMgmt 15,987.39 251,343.00 -235,355.61 6.36% 

7600 • PE8&9-StorageMgmt/Conj Use 34,740.46 140,400.00 -105,659.54 24.74% 

7690 · Recharge Improvement Debt Pymt 274,169.00 274,169.00 0.00 100.0% 

7700 • Inactive Well Protection Prgm 0.00 28,302.00 -28,302.00 0.0% 

9502 • G&A Expenses Allocated-Projects 99,503.62 204,488.00 -104,984.38 48.66% 

1,411,920.86 3,733,694.00 -2,321,773.14 37.82% 

Total Expense 2,756,559.99 5,583,211.00 -2,826,651.01 49.37% 

Net Ordinary Income 2,187,162.98 -1,519,993.00 3,707,155.98 -143.89% 

Other Income/Expense 

Other Income 

4231 · MZ1 Assigned Water Sales 0.00 600,000.00 -600,000.00 0.0% 

4210 · Approp Pool-Replenishment 8,094,622.16 0.00 8,094,622.16 100.0% 

4220 · Non-Ag Pool-Replenishment 2.485.40 0.00 2,485.40 100.0% 

4230 • MZ1 Sup Wtr Assessment 1,625,000.25 1,579,500.00 45,500.25 102.88% 

Total Other Income 9,722,107.81 2,179,500.00 7,542,607.81 446.07% 

Other Expense 

5010 · Groundwater Replenishment 1,290,815.00 2,278,500.00 -987,685.00 56.65% 

9999 · To/(From) Reserves 10,618,455.79 -1,618,993.00 12,237,448.79 -655.87% 

Total Other Expense 11,909,270.79 659,507.00 11,249,763.79 1,805.78% 

Net Other Income -2,187,162.98 1,519,993.00 -3,707,155.98 ~143.89% 

Net Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

22 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

C. STATUS REPORT NO. 12 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org 

KENNETH R. MANNING 
Chief Executive Officer 

DATE: 

TO: 

STAFF REPORT 

January 10, 2005 
January 24, 2005 

Committee Members 
Watermaster Board Members 

SUBJECT: OBMP Implementation - Status Report No. 12 

SUMMARY 

Issue - Compliance with Court Order requiring OBMP implementation progress reports. 

RECOMMENDATION -STAFF RECOMMENDS: 
0 APPROVAL OF STATUS REPORT No. 12, 
0 AUTHORIZE ITS FILING WITH THE COURT, AND 
0 AUTHORIZE STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL TO MAKE FINAL EDITS AS NECESSARY. 

Fiscal Impact - None 

BACKGROUND 
In accordance with the September 28, 2000 Order, progress reports are due to the Court on the last day of 
March and September of each year. Watermaster had indicated to the Court its intention to accelerate the 
reporting schedule from semi-annual to quarterly due to the rapid pace of OBMP implementation. In a 
subsequent Order on October 17, 2002, the Court requested Watermaster provide periodic reports concerning 
various issues relating to the Interim Plan by the last day of June and December of each year. These reporting 
items are included within Watermaster's regular quarterly reports. With approval of the court, Watermaster will 
revert to reporting semi-annually with summary updates done quarterly, effective January, 2005. 

DISCUSSION 
The reporting period for Status Report No. 12 is June 1, 2004 to August 31, 2004. It utilizes the same format 
previously filed as a baseline from which to update the Court. The attached draft report outlines the progress 
and status of Watermaster programs and projects. 

23 



· 24 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No. 12 

(Covering June 2004 through August 2004) 

September 2004 

25 



- 26 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



BACK· 
GROUND 

THIS 
PERIOD 

TO 
COME 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

In its Order of September 28, 2000, extending the term of the nine-member Watermaster 
Board, the Court ordered Watermaster to provide semiannual reports regarding the 
progress of OBMP implementation. In Status Report Number 4, filed with the Court on 
September 30, 2002, Watermaster notified the Court that Watermaster intended to 
provide quarterly status reports because of the rapid pace of OBMP implementation. By a 
subsequent Order of October 17, 2002, the Court added additional reporting items to the 
quarterly status report. 

This Status Report Number 12 is filed pursuant to this revised schedule and reports on the 
period from June 1, 2004 to August 31, 2004. 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 1 -
DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT COMPREHENSIVE MONITORING PROGRAM 

Groundwater-Level Monitoring 

Watermaster has three active groundwater-level monitoring programs operating in the Chino 
Basin - a semiannual basin-wide program; an intensive key well monitoring program associated 
with the Chino I / II Desalter well fields and the Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program (HCMP); 
and an intensive piezometric monitoring program associated with land subsidence and ground 
fissuring (see Land Surface Monitoring below) in Management Zone 1 (MZ1 ). 

For the semiannual program, Watermaster staff manually measures water levels in 
approximately 340 agricultural wells twice per year. In conjunction with the semiannual program, 
Watermaster staff manually measures water levels at about 112 key wells in the southern 
portion of the Basin and around the Chino I / II Desalter well fields once per month. During this 
reporting period, Watermaster staff installed pressure transducers/data loggers in 10 of these 
key wells to automatically record water levels once every 15 minutes. For the MZ-1 program, 
Watermaster consultants collect groundwater level data at 35 wells in the southern portion of 
MZ1. Data are collected manually at MZ1 wells once every two months, and automatically once 
every 15 minutes using a pressure transducer/data logger installed at each well. 

These Watermaster programs also rely on municipal producers, other government agencies, 
and private entities to supply their groundwater level measurements on a cooperative basis. 
Watermaster digitizes all these measurements and combines them into a relational database 
maintained at Watermaster's office. 

During fiscal year 2004/05, Watermaster staff will expand the use of pressure transducers/data 
loggers. Watermaster staff will purchase and install about 20 additional pressure 
transducers/data loggers at key wells and at selected wells in the northern portions of Chino 
Basin where highly-detailed groundwater level data are scarce. 

10 22 0,1 Stalus Rr:,port Mo 12.doc Page 2 

27 



BACK· 
GROUHO 

28 

Groundwater-Quality Monitoring 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

Prioritizing Wells to Serve Multiple Purposes. The private wells chosen for the 2004-05 
water quality monitoring program are located primarily between Interstate 60 and the Santa Ana 
River (SAR). 

Water Quality Analyses 

• All groundwater samples are analyzed for general mineral and general physical parameters. 

• Wells within or near the two volatile organic compound (VOC) plumes south of the Ontario 
and Chino Airports are being analyzed for VOCs, in addition to the general minerals and 
general physical parameters. 

• All private wells in the key well program are being analyzed for perchlorate because of its 
widespread occurrence in the 1999-2001 sampling program, and the concerns expressed by 
appropriators faced with expensive ion exchange treatment costs for perchlorate
contaminated wells. 

Sampling Program of Selected Private Wells. Watermaster developed its streamlined, key
well water quality monitoring program in which approximately 114 private "key wells" are 
sampled bi-annually (i.e. once every two years) in the southern portion of Chino Basin. 
Therefore, approximately 57 wells will be sampled on an annual basis. The steps taken in 
determining the key wells were: 

The basin was divided into a grid, with each cell being 2000 square meters (m2
). 

For each grid cell, the average TDS and NO3 values were calculated (using the last 
five years of available data). 

The water quality data of each individual well were examined. Wells most closely 
matching the average constituent concentrations were chosen as representative. 
One to two wells in each grid square were retained (the wells not chosen in the key 
well program, but still matching these criteria, are the alternate wells for each grid 
cell). Preference was given to wells with the following characteristics: 

• Known construction; 

• Choice as a groundwater level key well; 

• Likelihood of surviving the regional land development. 

Basin-wide TDS and NO3 arithmetic averages were recalculated using just the key 
wells and compared to the total basin arithmetic averages. New maps were made 
representing the water quality conditions of the key wells and qualitatively compared 
to the original basin maps. 

Watermaster has developed a comprehensive water quality program whereby water quality data 
from other sources are routinely collected, quality-control checked and loaded into 
Watermaster's database. Data sources included: 

Appropriators 

10 22 04 Status Re::port No 12.doc Page 3 



IBIS 
PERIOD 

TO 
COME 

BACK· 
GROUHD 

ON 
GOIHG 

TO 
COME 

BACK· 
GROUHD 

ON 
GOING 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

Department of Health Services (OHS) - these data are currently downloaded from 
OHS annually 

• Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) for the Stringfellow Acid Pits 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) for water quality data associated 
with sites under Cleanup and Abatement Orders (CAO). 

Watermaster is working closely with the Appropriative Pool members and their state-certified 
contract laboratories in order to obtain water quality data as an electronic data deliverable 
(EDD). These data would be transmitted either directly from the laboratory or from the 
Appropriators, after their QAJQC check of the laboratory data. The EDDs will enhance the 
quality and timeliness of the Watermaster's database. 

With respect to the recharge of recycled water, Watermaster and IEUA are planning to construct 
a number of monitoring wells at recharge basins to monitor the influence of recharge on 
groundwater levels in general, and to monitor the water quality resulting from the recharge of 
supplemental and storm waters. At least one monitoring well will be installed downgradient of 
each recharge facility that receives recycled water. The construction schedule will be included in 
subsequent status reports. 

Groundwater-Production Monitoring 

Monitoring of Agricultural Production Wells. Initially production monitoring involved the 
installation of meters on wells operated by members of the Agricultural Pool. As of the end June 
2004, Watermaster counted about 489 active agricultural wells and equipped 393 of these wells 
with operating meters. The other 96 wells have or will become inactive within 18-24 months 
because of urban development in the south Chino area. 

All Producing Wells Are Monitored Quarterly. Watermaster staff reads the newly installed 
and/or rehabilitated meters on the agricultural wells quarterly. A "water duty" method is used to 
estimate production at agricultural wells that do not have meters. 

Need For Water Use/Disposal Form To Be Reviewed. The OBMP Implementation Plan 
includes a provision that requires the agricultural producers to submit a water use/disposal form 
describing the sources of water used by each producer and how that water is disposed of after 
each use. Filling out the water use and disposal form and reporting the results have not been 
implemented. Watermaster will initiate discussions of the need for this form with the Water 
Quality Committee 

Surface-Water Monitoring 

Measure Water Quality and Water Levels In Recharge Basins. Watermaster conducts a 
surface water monitoring program to characterize the water quality of water in recharge basins 
and the water levels in some of these basins. The purpose of this program is to estimate the 
volume and quality of recharge. This information will be used in subsequent years to estimate 
the safe yield of the Basin and for other management purposes. 

Currently, Watermaster monitors the water quality in 20 basins: Upland, Declez, Etiwanda 
Spreading Grounds, Victoria, Hickory, Lower Day Banana, Ely 1, Ely 3, Wineville, San Sevaine 
1, San Sevaine 5, Turner 1, Princeton, Montclair 1, Montclair 2, Montclair 3, Montclair 4, Brooks, 
and Grove. Generally, the water quality samples are taken after storm events, i.e., during the 

\0 22 Q,1 Status Report l\lo i 2.doc Page4 

29 



THIS 
PERIOD 

BACK· 
GROUND 

ON 
GOIHG 

BACK· 
GROUllD 

30 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

period from November 1 through March 30; however, monitoring of nuisance flows also occurs. 
Each basin is usually sampled three to five times each year. In fiscal year 2004-05 the sampling 
rate will increase substantially for basins that are scheduled to receive recycled water. 

Watermaster staff sampled the nuisance water captured in Grove Basin on June 22, July 20, 
and August 24, 2004. 

Surface Water Monitoring for Santa Ana River Began In June 2003. One of the goals of the 
OBMP is to maximize Chino Basin yield. A key component in maximizing yield is to minimize 
groundwater discharge into the SAR. Watermaster developed a surface water monitoring 
program for the SAR that, in conjunction with Watermaster groundwater monitoring programs, is 
used to characterize those reaches of the SAR that are gaining water from the Basin, and to 
determine if significant discharge of Chino Basin groundwater to the SAR is occurring. A 
conceptual monitoring plan involving IEUA, OCWD, the RWQCB, and Watermaster was 
finalized. These agencies determined that the conceptual monitoring plan was adequate and 
developed a detailed work plan to implement a surface water and groundwater monitoring 
program. The work plan was completed in June 2003, and year-round water quality sampling 
and flow monitoring in the SAR have begun. 

Watermaster now measures the SAR flow and selected water quality parameters as key 
elements of the HCMP. Watermaster collects water quality samples and measures flow at four 
Santa Ana River stations (Van Buren, Etiwanda, Hamner, and River Road) plus another eight 
locations on tributaries, year round on a bi-weekly basis. In addition, Watermaster obtains 
discharge data from permanent USGS and OCWD stream gauge locations on the SAR and its 
tributaries. Discharge and water quality data from publicly owned treatment works (POTWs) that 
discharge to the SAR in this reach are obtained from the POTWs. 

Land-Surface Monitoring 

Multifaceted Approach. Watermaster staff developed a multifaceted land surface monitoring 
program to develop data for a long-term management plan for land subsidence in Management 
Zone 1 (MZ1 ). The monitoring program consists of three main elements: 

1. An aquifer system monitoring facility is located in the southern portion of MZ1, an area 
that has experienced concentrated and differential land subsidence and ground 
fissuring. A major component of the aquifer system monitoring facility is a cluster of 
multiple depth piezometers that measure water level and pressure changes at 11 
different depths. Another major component is a dual borehole extensometer that 
measures deformation within the aquifer system at deep and shallow levels. Together, 
the two components correlate the hydraulic and mechanical responses of the aquifer 
system to different aquifer stresses, such as pumping at wells. 

2. Synthetic aperture radar interferometry (lnSAR) measures land surface deformation 
across the entire Chino Basin using remote sensing techniques. 

3. Benchmark surveys along selected profiles of the Chino Basin. The benchmark surveys 
(1) establish a datum from which to measure future land surface deformation, (2) 
"ground-truth" the lnSAR data, (3) allow determination of historical subsidence at any 

10 22 Oil Status Report Mo 12.cloc Page 5 



ON 
GO!HG 

BACK• 
GROUND 

TO 
CO/dE 

Chino Basin Watennaster 
Status Report No.12 

historical benchmarks that can be recovered, and (4) evaluate the effectiveness of the 
long-term management plan. 

Depth Specific Data. Permanent transducers and data logging equipment are recording depth 
specific groundwater level data at the Ayala Park piezometers. Transducers also are recording 
groundwater level data at wells owned by the cities of Chino and Chino Hills and the California 
Institution for Men (CIM). These transducers record groundwater levels at all wells once every 
15 minutes, and also record "on/off' pumping cycles at the active production wells. 

Deep Aquifer-System Stress Test. 

Controlled aquifer-system stress (pumping) tests in October 2003 and April 2004 provided 
piezometric response data that revealed a potential groundwater barrier within the sediments 
below about 300 ft-bgs, as evidenced by a lack of water level response in CH-18 (east of the 
fissure zone) due to pumping at CH-19 (west of fissure zone). Image-well analysis of pumping
test responses indicates that this barrier approximately coincides with the location of the historic 
zone of ground fissuring. This spatial coincidence suggests a cause-and-effect relationship 
between the barrier, the steep gradient of subsidence across the barrier as indicated by lnSAR, 
ground level surveys and the ground fissuring. 

Starting on September 1, 2004, Watermaster will begin a controlled deep aquifer-system stress 
test. In summary, the test calls for constant discharge from three wells owned by the City of 
Chino Hills (CH-18, CH-158, and CH-19), while most other wells in the area remain off. These 
wells have similar perforated intervals from about 300-1,100 ft-bgs and primarily influence water 
levels in the deep portions of the aquifer system - deeper than about 300 fl-bgs. The pumping 
test is planned to end on October 31, 2004 {Note: CH-17 was also planned to pump during the 
test, but mechanical problems at this well preclude pumping} 

The primary objective of this test is to transition the deformation of aquifer-system sediments 
from elastic compression to inelastic compaction. If accomplished, it will provide "threshold" 
piezometric heads at the extensometer location that should not be approached in the future if 
permanent (inelastic) compaction within the aquifer-system is to be avoided. In doing so, it will 
define a key parameter required for estimating the maximum elastic storage capacity of the 
confined aquifer system. When inelastic compaction is clearly identified, through analysis of 
stress-strain diagrams (see discussion below), the pumping test will stop. 

Other objectives of the stress test are to (1) constrain estimates of key aquifer-system 
parameters that could be used in later modeling efforts, (2) confirm and elucidate the existence 
of a groundwater barrier within the sediments below about 300 fl-bgs, and (3) provide data for a 
proposed injection test at CH-1 B. 

During the deep aquifer system stress test of October 2003, drawdown was not great enough to 
cause clearly-defined inelastic compaction. It is hoped that by pumping CH-19, CH-158, and 
CH-1 B at full capacity, that piezometric heads in the deep aquifer system will drawdown further 
than during the pumping test of October 2003 (~150 ft at PA-7), and cause the onset of inelastic 
compaction. 

10 22 Q,J Status Report ~Jo -12,doc Page6 

31 



BACK· 
GROUND 

THIS 
PERIOD 

TO 
COME 

BACK· 
GROUND 

32 

Chino Basin Watennaster 
Status Report No.12 

With regard to CH-1 B, groundwater pumped from this well has relatively high concentrations of 
arsenic that do not permit pumping this well directly into Chino Hills' distribution system. Yet it is 
imperative that this well participate in the stress test in an attempt to transition the aquifer
system deformation to inelastic compaction. Watermaster and Chino Hills have jointly funded 
the connection of CH-1B (and CH-15B) to the storm drain system through a "flush line" 
discharge pipe, which will allow the pumping of CH-1 B during the test. However, the pH of water 
pumped from CH-1B is above 8.5, which is the limit imposed by the Regional Board for 
discharge to aquatic waters. Watermaster is working on a physical solution to reduce pH of the 
pumped groundwater and a monitoring plan to satisfy the Regional Board's permitting 
requirements. 

Deep piezometer rehabilitation. During the summer drawdown in the 2003 it became evident 
that some degree of intercommunication was developing among the piezometers in the deep 
cluster (PB) at Ayala Park, and that the deepest piezometer, PB-1, and perhaps others, were 
also intermittently communicating with the much higher heads in the shallow aquifer system. 
The leakage apparently was occurring through faulty joints in the two-inch PVC casings, 
although actual breaks in the casings may also exist. Evidence suggests that many of the 
problems may have resulted from defects in the casing of PB-1 that allowed leakage directly 
into the gravel envelopes around the screened intervals of shallower piezometers. To the extent 
that this is true, repair of PB-1 could solve most of the problems. 

Rehabilitation of the PB piezometers was conducted during June/July 2004, using a "well-in-a
well" construction technique. This involved filling the screened interval (5 to 20 ft) of the 
piezometer casing with coarse, highly permeable sand, which is then topped with about 10 ft of 
graded medium to very fine sand and silt to form a filter cap of very low permeability. A 1-inch 
inner pipe, the well within the well, is jetted through the filter cap in an attempt to communicate 
with the original gravel envelope and surrounding formation. Before final jetting down into 
position, the inner pipe, temporarily set about 20 ft above the screen, allows water standing in 
the 2-inch casing to be displaced to the surface while a sealing bentonite grout was pumped 
down the annulus between the 2-inch casing and the inner pipe. 

This technique was tested and refined by experimenting in PB-6, the shallowest of the deep 
piezometer cluster. Based on the results at PB-6, Watermaster attempted to rehabilitate PB-1 
using similar methodologies. 

Preliminary evaluation of piezometric data from all piezometers in PB indicates that the 
rehabilitation procedures were at least partially successful. In particular, PB-2 and PB-4 appear 
so far to be producing reasonable and accurate data. However, a comprehensive analysis of the 
rehabilitation results can not be completed until the end of the current drawdown season (end of 
October 2004). 

A comprehensive analysis of the rehabilitation results at PB will commence at the end of the 
current drawdown season (end of October). Further rehabilitation, if needed, will be 
recommended at the conclusion of the analysis, along with a detailed description of 
rehabilitation procedures. 

lnSAR. The objective of this task is to characterize ground surface deformation in Chino Basin 
using Synthetic Aperture Radar Interferometry (lnSAR). This analysis will be performed for a 

10 22 04 Status Report No 12,cloc Page 7 



THIS 
PERIOD 

TO 
COME 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

historical period (1992-2003) and on an on-going basis thereafter. The advantage of lnSAR is 
that it provides a continuous representation of land surface deformation. These data are 
planned to be used to: (1) characterize the time history of land surface deformation in greater 
spatial and temporal detail than can be accomplished from the available historical ground level 
survey data, (2) calibrate computer simulation models of subsidence and groundwater flow, and 
(3) assist in the evaluation of the effectiveness of the long term management plan. 

Vexcel Corporation of Boulder, Colorado - a company that specializes in remote sensing and 
radar technologies conducted a "proof of concept" study of historical synthetic aperture radar 
data that was acquired over the MZ-1 area. The objective of this study was to generate 
cumulative displacement maps over relatively short time steps (April to November 1993). The 
MZ-1 Technical Group deemed the study successful, and approved follow-up study by Vexcel to 
perform a comprehensive analysis of all historical synthetic aperture radar data (1992-2003) to 
characterize in detail the time history of subsidence in MZ-1. 

Vexcel has submitted a cost estimate of $200,000 to complete the comprehensive analysis of all 
historical synthetic aperture radar data (1992-2003) to characterize in detail the time history of 
subsidence in MZ-1. Watermaster has budgeted the above amount for lnSAR analysis in its 
fiscal year 2004/05 budget. A contract will be executed between Watermaster and Vexcel to 
complete the work by the first quarter of calendar 2005. Part of the contract will include the 
presentation of the analysis results by Vexcel staff to the MZ-1 Technical Committee. 

Benchmark Surveys. The Interim Monitoring Program (IMP) work plan called for the deep 
extensometer, which is anchored in sedimentary bedrock at about 1,400 ft bgs, to be used as 
the "starting benchmark" for all survey loops. To accomplish this, a Class-A benchmark was 
constructed outside the extensometer building to serve as the practical (i.e. actual) starting 
benchmark. To link this benchmark to the deep extensometer pipe, each survey event is begun 
by referencing the benchmark to a marked spot on one of the piers that supports the 
extensometer instrument platform. These piers and the instrument platform represent a stable 
ground surface datum that is used to measure relative vertical displacement between the 
ground surface and the deep extensometer pipe (recorded every 15 minutes). The vertical 
displacement recorded at the deep extensometer between survey events, in addition to any 
vertical displacement measured between the starting benchmark and the pier, is then used to 
calculate the elevation at the starting benchmark outside the extensometer building. Then, 
relative vertical displacement between benchmarks is measured across the entire work to obtain 
current elevations. These comprehensive surveys are planned to be repeated annually during 
spring season of highest regional water levels. 

A key element of the MZ-1 benchmark network is the array of closely spaced benchmarks that 
have been established across the historic fissure zone in the immediate vicinity of the Ayala 
Park extensometers (Ayala Park array). At this array, located along Edison and Eucalyptus 
Avenues, the IMP work plan calls for the semiannual measuring of both vertical and horizontal 
displacements. These horizontal and vertical displacements are expected to define two
dimensional profiles of land surface deformation that can be related to the vertical distribution of 
aquifer system compaction and expansion that is being recorded continuously at the 
extensometers. These surveys are repeated semi-annually during the late spring and early fall 
periods of highest and lowest water levels - in an attempt to monitor fissure movement that may 
be associated with elastic and/or inelastic aquifer deformation. 

10 22 011 Status Rt?port No 12.doc Page 8 

33 



THIS 
PERIOD 

34 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

In late April 2004, AE performed the annual survey event across the entire network of 
benchmark monuments, including the measurements of horizontal displacements at the Ayala 
Park Array of monuments. The results of the ground level surveys to date were presented to the 
MZ-1 Technical Committee at its July 21, 2004 meeting. Also at this meeting, the project 
manager from AE made a presentation to describe survey methodologies, accuracy, results, 
and challenges, as well as answered questions. 

The vertical displacement at monuments that occurred from April 2003 to April 2004 was 
presented. Comparing monument elevations over the April to April time period should reveal the 
inelastic component of compaction, if any, that may be occurring in the region. The assumption 
here is that in April 2004 water levels in the region have recovered to the April 2003 levels, thus 
the measured vertical displacement does not include the elastic component of the aquifer 
system deformation. Water levels measured as part of the IMP (in the vicinity of Ayala Park) 
support this assumption. The monuments near Ayala Park showed little to no subsidence over 
this time period. However, the monuments located in the northern portions of the surveyed area 
consistently showed subsidence of the land surface (on average about 0.04 feet). Maximum 
subsidence of about 0.08 feet was recorded at monuments located along Philadelphia Street 
between Pipeline and Ramona Avenues. Water level data have not yet been collected or 
analyzed as part of the IMP in these northern portions of the survey area that seemingly are 
experiencing inelastic subsidence. 

The subsidence that occurred in the area over the October 1993 to December 1995 period was 
measured by lnSAR. The subsidence indicated by lnSAR data has been interpreted as primarily 
permanent subsidence caused by inelastic aquifer system compaction. If so, the survey data 
are indicating that the distribution of inelastic compaction in 2003-04 is significantly different 
compared to that of the early 1990's. In particular, maximum subsidence of about 1 foot in 1993-
95 was measured in the vicinity of Ayala Park by lnSAR, whereas in 2003-04 the survey data 
are indicating minimal subsidence, if any, in this same area. 

The horizontal displacement at monuments of the Ayala Park Array that occurred from April 
2003 to November 2003 and November 2003 to April 2004, respectively was determined 
through distance measurements between adjacent monuments, and is based on the 
assumption that the southeastern monument was stable over the period of measurement. The 
measurements indicate the elastic nature of the land surface displacement over the course of 
the pumping and recovery seasons, as well as the apparent presence of a groundwater barrier 
within the deep aquifer system. 

Groundwater production and water level data show that pumping of wells perforated within the 
deep aquifer system (>300 ft-bgs) causes water level drawdowns in the deep aquifer system on 
the order of 150 feet. However, these large drawdowns do not propagate east of the fissure 
zone. During the pumping season of 2003 (April to November) vertical displacement of the land 
surface (i.e. subsidence) was generally greater on the west side of the fissure zone where water 
level drawdown was greatest. During the recovery season of 2003-04 (November to April) 
vertical displacement of the land surface (i.e. rebound) was again greater on the west side of 
the fissure zone where water level recovery was greatest. 

In other words, the groundwater barrier in the deep aquifer system aligned with the fissure zone 
causes greater water level fluctuations on the west side of the barrier where the pumping is 
concentrated. These greater water level fluctuations on the west of the barrier, in turn cause 

10 22 Oil Status Rep0rt No 12.doc Page9 



TO 
COME 

BACK· 
GROUND 

OMPLETED 

Chino Basin Watennaster 
Status Report No.12 

greater deformation of the aquifer-system matrix which, in turn, causes greater vertical land 
surface deformation on the west side of the barrier. The lnSAR data corroborate the existence 
of the groundwater barrier by showing maximum subsidence west of the barrier (0.2ft) and 
virtually no subsidence east of the barrier during the course of one pumping season (April-1993 
to September 1993). 

In addition, the pattern of horizontal displacement of benchmarks over the pumping and 
recovery seasons, likely reflects, in part, the differential compaction of the aquifer system across 
the fissure zone. The horizontal movements of benchmarks in the vicinity of the fissure zone 
merit further monitoring using the same surveying methods for at least one additional year. 

The next survey of the Ayala Park array of monuments is planned for October 2004. The timing 
of this survey will coincide with the time just prior to the cessation of the controlled pumping test 
planned for September/October 2004. As such, this survey will measure both vertical and 
horizontal displacements between monuments during a time of maximum water level drawdown 
(stress) within the aquifer system. The October 2004 survey data can then be compared to the 
April 2004 survey data (maximum water level recovery in the aquifer system), in an effort to 
monitor fissure movement, if any, that may be associated with elastic and/or inelastic aquifer
system deformation. 

Well Construction, Abandonment, and Destruction Monitoring 

Watermaster staff monitors the condition of wells on a regular basis. Wells that may be 
improperly abandoned/destroyed are reported to Riverside and San Bernardino Counties as 
they are discovered. 

Watermaster staff inspected 150 suspect wells during a 2002-03 field inspection and 
determined that 113 of these wells were properly abandoned and 37 wells will require some 
modification to meet the standard for a properly abandoned well. A well repair/abandonment 
program was prepared and approved by Watermaster. Watermaster continues to develop a 
wellhead protection program and makes recommendations on closure of abandoned wells. 
Ongoing land development will require continued well abandonment activity by Watermaster. 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 2 -
DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT COMPREHENSIVE RECHARGE PROGRAM 

A centerpiece of the OBMP is enhancement of the Basin recharge capacity, so that high quality 
storm water and available recycled water can be retained in the Basin. 

Recharge Facilities Improvement Project (Seven Bid Packages) 

Bid Package No. 1-Reconfiguration of Banana, College Heights, Lower Day, RP3 and 
Turner Basins 

Bid Package No. 1, which included major earthwork at Banana, College Heights, Lower Day, 
RP-3, and Turner Basins, was awarded to L TE Excavating on March 24, 2003. Work was 
scheduled for completion by November 15, 2003, but was delayed while awaiting delivery of 
sluice gates and their actuator assemblies. These items were received and installed; and the bid 
package was accepted on May 12, 2004 

10 22 04 Status Repon Mo 12.doc Page 10 

35 



Chino Basin Watennaster 
Status Report No.12 

Bid Package No. 2 - Basin Improvements (3 ea), Drop Inlets (3 ea), and Rubber Dams (4 
ea) 

coMeLETEo Bid Package No. 2 consisted of construction of the drop inlet structures for Brooks Street Basin, 
Turner Basin; and Victoria Basin; rubber dams for College Heights/Upland Basins, Turner No.1 
Basin, Lower Day Basin, and RP-3 Basin; and various improvements at Declez Basin, Ely 
Basins, and 81h Street Basins. This package was awarded to Banshee Construction with work 
beginning on July 16, 2003. Work on this contract was scheduled to be completed by March 15, 
2004; however, rain delays slowed completion of excavation and soil cement berms. All the 
work on this bid package was accepted on August 18, 2004. 

THIS 
PERIOD 

THIS 
PERIOD 

THIS 
PERIOD 

THIS 
PERIOD 

THIS 
PERIOD 

36 

Bid Package No. 3 - Jurupa Basin to RP-3 Force Main 

Bid Package No. 3 involves construction of approximately 11,000 linear feet of 36-inch CML&C 
force main between Jurupa Basin and RP-3 Basin. The force main will be used to convey storm 
water, imported water, and recycled water between the pump station at Jurupa Basin and the 
RP-3 Basins. This package was awarded to W. A. Rasic Construction Company with work 
beginning on August 6, 2003. The Contractor has completed 93% of the force main, and has 
provided a "substantially complete" estimate of mid September 2004. 

Bid Package No. 4 - Jurupa Basin to RP-3 Pump Station 

Bid Package No. 4 consists of construction of the Jurupa Pump Station, 100 feet of 48-inch 
pipeline, and 400 feet of 36 inch, CML&C steel force main. The package was awarded to LT 
Engineering with work beginning on February 19, 2004. The Contractor anticipates a 
construction period of 8 months with substantial completion in November 2004. 

Bid Package No. 5 - SCADA System 

This bid package includes the SCADA system and electrical improvements at all the basins. 
The 100 % design was submitted, reviewed, and sent out for bid in January 2004. The package 
was awarded to Denboer Engineering with construction beginning in March 2004. The 
contractor is now 65% complete, with substantial completion in December 2004. 

Bid Package No. 6 - MWD Turnouts 

This bid package covers the construction of three new MWD turnouts: CB-11 TB and CB-1 ST on 
the Rialto Pipeline, and CB-18T on the Etiwanda lntertie near San Sevaine Channel. This 
package was awarded to Griffith Construction with work beginning on February 4, 2004. The 
contractor is now 84% completion, with substantial completion in September 2004. 

Bid Package No. 7 - Priority, Funding and Scope of Misc. Projects 

This bid package will complete miscellaneous projects not included in the previous bid 
packages. Among the projects included in this bid package are: 

• Habitat Mitigation Area at RP-3 

10 22 04 Status Repor1 No 12.doc Page 11 



IBIS 
PERJOO 

• Upland Basin Improvements 

• Victoria Basin Improvements 

• Hickory Rubber Dam, Pump Station and Force Main 

• SCADA module 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status ReportNo.12 

This package was bid and awarded to Brutoco Engineering & Construction on July 21, 2004. 
The construction is estimated to take five months, with substantial completion in December 
2004. 

Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) 

The GRCC meets monthly to monitor and coordinate the Recharge Facilities Improvement 
Project, focusing on design issues, construction management, and operations manuals. 
Watermaster's FY2004-05 budget provides $413,000 for current operation and maintenance 
activities. 

In addition to design review, the GRCC has initiated work on individual operations procedures 
for all the recharge basins, as well as obtaining regulatory agency approvals and permits. 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 3 -
DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT WATER SUPPLY PLAN FOR THE IMPAIRED AREAS OF THE 

BASIN; AND 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 5 -
DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT REGIONAL SUPPLEMENTAL WATER PROGRAM 

These program elements focus on the shift of production in the southern end of the Basin 
away from agricultural uses and toward urban uses. Without the OBMP, this land use 
conversion would result in a decrease in production in the southern end of the Basin, 
ultimately leading to rising water levels. If groundwater levels in the southern end of the 
Basin rise too high, then water may "spill" out of the Basin into the Santa Ana River. Such 
uncontrolled spillage caps the overall Safe Yield of the Basin. The Basin can be managed 
to avoid this possibility. 

Directly tied to the threat of rising water levels in the southern area is the diminished 
desire of appropriators in the southern end of the Basin to pump water because of 
impaired water quality. The ability to compensate for the Joss of agricultural production 
with increased appropriative production is inhibited because of these water quality 
concerns. Greater appropriative production in this area therefore requires water treatment, 
an issue addressed through the construction of desalter facilities. 

10 22 04 S!c1tus Re:pon !'lo 12.doc Page 12 

37 



BACK· 
GROUND 

THIS 
PERIOD 

ON 
GOING 

ON 
GOING 

THIS 
PERIOD 

38 

The Chino 1/11 Desalters 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

The Chino I Desalter was originally constructed by SAWPA to provide 8.1 million gallons per 
day (MGD) of product water using reverse osmosis treatment. The project also included 
extraction wells, raw water pipeline, and product water pipelines and pump stations. 

Chino I Expansion/Chino II Desalter. This expansion includes the construction of an additional 
4.9 MGD of parallel treatment capacity (nitrate removal via ion exchange) at Chino I and 10 
MGD of similar ion exchange at the Chino II Desalter. A construction contract was signed and 
construction is underway with completion scheduled for March 2005. Watermaster staff 
reviewed the proposed well construction for the new wells for Desalter II and determined that 
the location and construction were consistent with the OBMP Implementation Plan 

Chino I Desalter Other Improvements. Other facilities either under design or construction 
include three new extraction wells (construction completed), a raw water pipeline (construction 
80% completed), a Chino Hills pump station and product water pipeline (construction 35% 
completed), and a volatile organic compound (VOC) treatment system (construction 35% 
completed) ahead of the ion exchange treatment. · 

Chino II Desalter Other Improvements. Other facilities either under design or construction 
include nine new extraction wells (seven under construction, two wells completed), four raw 
water pipelines (two in early construction, two in design), two product water pipelines (one 
completed construction, one completed design), and site improvements (construction 
underway). 

All the projects underway to expand the Chino 1/11 Desalters should be completed by March 
2005. 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 4 - DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT COMPREHENSIVE 
GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR MANAGEMENT ZONE 1 

Program Element 4 details the steps undertaken by Watermaster to reduce or 
abate subsidence and fissuring in Management Zone 1. 

The MZ1 Technical Committee Meetings - July 21, 2004 and August 25, 2004. Committee 
representatives were informed of the status of the various efforts to implement the monitoring 
program (see Land Surface Monitoring of Program Element 1 ). The meetings focused on the 
rehabilitation of the deep piezometers, the Associated Engineers (AE) semi annual survey of the 
Ayala Park Array of benchmarks, the Vexcel cost estimate and schedule for the lnSAR studies, 
and the analysis of piezometric and extensometer data. 

Voluntary Forbearance. The City of Chino and the City of Chino Hills submitted certifications 
documenting their respective voluntary participation in forbearance of groundwater production. 
Through the end of June 2004, the City of Chino submitted documentation of pumping 
reductions of 1,718 acre-feet toward its forbearance goal of 1,500 acre-feet for 2003/2004. The 
City of Chino Hills submitted documentation of forbearance of 1417 acre-feet through April 
2004, and a credit of 83 acre-feet for May 2004. 

to 22 Q,1 SliJIUS Rer,ort Mo \2.doc Page 13 



TO 
COME 

BACK· 
GROUND 

Agency Forbearance through 
June 2004 

Citv Of Chino 1718 acre-feet 
Citv Of Chino Hills 1500 acre-feet 

Chino Basin Watennaster 
Status Report No.12 

Forbearance Goal 
2003/2004 

1,500 acre-feet 
1,500 acre-feet 

Pending Legal Actions Regarding Subsidence. In its October 17, 2002 Order, the Court 
ordered Watermaster to keep the Court apprised of any legal actions that could question the 
Court's jurisdiction over subsidence. Watermaster is not aware at this time of any such actions. 
The hearing regarding the City of Chino's Paragraph 15 Motion concerning subsidence was 
continued by the court until September, 2005. 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 6 -
DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT COOPERATIVE PROGRAMS WITH THE REGIONAL WATER 

QUALITY CONTROL BOARD, SANTA ANA REGION (REGIONAL BOARD) AND OTHER 
AGENCIES TO IMPROVE BASIN MANAGEMENT; AND 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 7 -
DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT SALT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

The "water quality committee" as envisioned in the OBMP Implementation Plan has been 
formally constituted. Since the development of the OBMP, Watermaster has worked closely with 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board, the Department of Toxic Substances Control, and 
others to define water quality challenges and to refine the water quality management criteria in 
the Chino Basin. Watermaster continues to review water quality conditions in the Basin and to 
consider future water quality management activities beyond the Chino Basin desalting program. 

Water Quality Management. In response to the results of RWQCB and Watermaster's 
groundwater quality monitoring programs (Program Element 1) Watermaster has refined its 
water quality monitoring to focus on the following key areas: 

• Watermaster is identifying and characterizing water quality anomalies, such as 
the voe anomaly south of the Ontario International Airport (OIA). Status Reports 
on each of the anomalies were developed by Watermaster and were presented 
to the Water Quality Committee for their review. 

• Watermaster staff receives and reviews all reports that are produced by 
dischargers that are conducting investigations under order by the RWQCB and 
the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 

• Watermaster staff is assisting the RWQCB with research, monitoring, and the 
crafting of investigative, and cleanup and abatement orders for potential 
dischargers involved with the OIA. 

• Watermaster staff continues to participate in the process of developing TMDLs 
for Reach 3 of the Santa Ana River and other water bodies in the lower Chino 

lO 22 011 Status Report No 12.doc Page 14 

39 



BACK· 
GROUND 

TlllS 
PERIOD 

TO 
COldE 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

Basin. No progress has been made during the last quarter because of the State 
budget crisis and staffing issues at the RWQCB. 

Water Quality Committee 

Watermaster staff and consultants continue to update our understanding of the contaminants of 
concern in the various plumes, and the extent of their migration and remediation. In addition, 
Wildermuth Environmental continued their analysis of the environmental records search 
performed by EDR. This consisted of a query of state and federal databases of known users 
and dischargers of potentially hazardous chemicals. Watermaster is analyzing the relationship 
of potential sources of perchlorate with down gradient impacted production wells. On March 30, 
2004, Black & Veatch delivered their "Draft Technical Memorandum -Treatment Technology 
Review" which analyses current and emerging treatment technologies for specific contaminants 
of concern in the Chino Basin; including nitrates, perchlorate, arsenic, and specific VOCs. 

With respect to the voe plume at OIA, Wildermuth Environmental completed their data 
gathering effort at the RWQCB and prepared five draft Letters of Notification/Cleanup and 
Abatement Orders for review by the RWQCB prior to their mailing to identified potential 
dischargers. At the Chino Airport voe plume, Watermaster obtained permission from private 
well owners to release voe water quality data to the RWQCB. Tetra Tech, a consulting 
engineering firm performing quarterly groundwater monitoring of the voe plume immediately 
southwest of the airport property in turn obtained these data from the RWQCB to assist in their 
efforts to model plume movement. 

Tetra Tech is under contract to the County of San Bernardino, Department of Architecture and 
Engineering, the owner and operator of Chino Airport, and is attempting to determine the 
sources of the voe plume. Tetra Tech is currently negotiating to install five additional 
groundwater monitoring wells, and to perform additional soil gas surveys, in order to locate the 
voe sources. Watermaster's water level and water quality monitoring programs over the last 
several years have resulted in a robust database that is being used by Watermaster and other 
stakeholders in the basin to help answer these kinds of questions. 

With respect to perchlorate in MZ-3, a number of wells in the Fontana area of Chino Basin have 
been impacted and shut down because of relatively low levels of perchlorate (but above the 
State Action Level of 6 µg/1). Some parties in the basin believe that significant perchlorate 
sources near the Mid-Valley Landfill (Goodrich, Aerojet, Quickset, Emhart Industries, Denova 
Environmental, Pyre Spectacular, Rialto Ammunition Storage Point, et al.) in the Rialto-Colton 
basin may also be sources of perchlorate in Chino Basin. The proposed transport pathway is 
leakage across the Rialto-Colton Fault. Members of the WQC proposed that Watermaster 
perform a hydrogeologic investigation of that area to better understand cross basin transport. 
The investigation may be prohibitively expensive, given the complexity of the fault system and 
aquifer heterogeneity. 

In a related study, the RWQCB has done an extensive historical perchlorate usage literature 
review and has produced a sizable volume of circumstantial evidence that large quantities of 
Chilean fertilizer may have been used for citrus in the Fontana area. 

Neil Sturchio, Professor and Head of the Earth and Environmental Sciences at the University of 
Illinois at Chicago, has developed a technique for using stable isotope ratios of oxygen and 
chloride to distinguish the origin of perchlorate (man-made or Chilean fertilizer). Natural 
perchlorate carries a unique 180 and 37 Cl signature - very robust parameters that can be used 
to distinguish between man-made and natural sources of perchlorate. Professor Sturchio has 

10 22 Otl Status Report No 12.doc Page 15 



BACK· 
GROUND 

BACK· 
GROUND 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

tested several samples of leachate from fertilizer nitrogen (from the Atacama Desert in Chile) 
and rocket fuel sources. One of the innovations that Professor Sturchio has developed is the 
use of a flow-through column with an bifunctional anion-exchange resin. This is required to 
concentrate the typically low levels of perchlorate in groundwater so that the perchlorate can be 
analyzed isotopically. 

Watermaster intends to utilize this isotopic perchlorate analysis to determine if source of the 
perchlorate in groundwater MZ-3 is anthropogenic or from Chilean fertilizer. 

Watermaster and Regional Board Propose TDS and Nitrogen Objectives to Promote 
Maximum Benefit of Waters Available to the Chino Basin 

Watermaster staff worked with the Total Dissolved Solids (TDS)/ Nitrogen (N) Task Force to 
revise the sub-basin boundaries, and the TDS and N objectives for the Chino Basin to promote 
maximum beneficial use of waters in the Basin (as opposed to the Regional Board's current, 
more rigid anti-degradation based objectives). The maximum beneficial use approach will 
increase water supplies and lower costs over time while meeting water quality requirements. In 
December 2002, Watermaster proposed specific water-quality management zone boundaries, 
and N and TDS objectives for the Chino Basin to the RWQCB. The TDS/N Task Force and the 
RWQCB incorporated Watermaster recommendations in the TDS/N Basin Plan Amendment 
dated November 21, 2003. 

The Basin Plan Amendment incorporating the sub-basin boundaries and maximum beneficial 
use concept was adopted by the RWQCB on January 24, 2004 (RWQCB Basin Plan 
Amendment, and Attachment to Resolution No. RS-2004-001 ). Watermaster staff immediately 
developed and submitted surface water and groundwater monitoring programs to the RWQCB 
on February 21, 2004. These monitoring programs measure the progress of CBWM and IEUA in 
achieving the "maximum benefit" goal for TDS/N in the Chino and Cucamonga Basins. The 
Basin Plan amendment was reviewed and approved by the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB) on September 8, 2004. It is currently under review by the Office of 
Administrative Law (OAL) and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 

Cooperative Effort to Determine State of Hydraulic Control. One remaining issue regarding 
the Basin Plan changes was to develop a monitoring plan to evaluate the state of hydraulic 
control in the southern end of the Basin. Hydraulic control is one tool that can be used to 
maximize the safe yield of the Basin. Watermaster staff developed a monitoring program for 
OBMP purposes and described this effort in the Initial State of the Basin Report (October 2002). 
The execution of this monitoring program is included in Program Element 1. Watermaster and 
IEUA have collaborated with OCWD and the RWQCB to select existing wells and to site nine 
new multi-piezometer wells that will be used to monitor and assess the state of hydraulic 
control. 

In addition to being a core element of the OBMP, hydraulic control is a requirement of the Basin 
Plan Amendment. Watermaster, OCWD, and RWQCB staffs developed a conceptual monitoring 
program in June 2003 to assess the state of hydraulic control and to provide information to 
Watermaster to manage future production and recharge. The final work plan for the Hydraulic 
Control Monitoring Program was completed in May 2004, and implementation is now occurring. 
This program will change over time as new information is developed and will last for several 
years. The coordination and review of the hydraulic control monitoring data and the 

10 22 0.1 Status Report No 12.doc Page 16 

41 



n,15 
PERIOD 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

development of management programs to maintain hydraulic control have been added to 
Program Elements 6 and 7. 

Watermaster, IEUA, OCWD, and the Regional Board have agreed to construct nine new 
monitoring wells as part of the piezometric monitoring element of the HCMP. These monitoring 
wells are necessary because existing well locations and well construction are not sufficient to 
measure the extent of hydraulic control in the vicinity of the Desalter well fields and because of 
the loss of monitoring use of agricultural wells as these wells are destroyed in the land 
conversion from agricultural to urban uses. These new wells will document the creation of a 
regional depression in the piezometric surface, for both the shallow and deep aquifer systems, 
as a result of Desalter pumping. These wells will be installed during fiscal year 2004/05. 

Funding for the construction of the nine monitoring wells will come from Watermaster, IEUA, 
and other sources. These other sources include $250,000 from the Local Groundwater 
Assistance Fund, sponsored by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and 
about $400,000 from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (BOR). The DWR funding will support the 
construction of two of the nine piezometric monitoring wells; the BOR funding will support 
construction of three of the nine piezometric monitoring wells. 

The following tasks were performed during June-August 2004 for the nine HCMP wells: 

• Continued land acquisition efforts for all wells 

• Prepared various permits in support of land acquisition efforts 

• Completed CEQA/NEPA processes for all wells 

• Finalized the IEUA plans and specifications for wells MW-2/-3/-5/-7 /-8/-9 

• Finalized the IEUA bid package for wells MW -2/-3-/-5/-7/-8/-9 

• Supported Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) in its preparation of plans and specifications 
for wells MW-1 /-4/-6 

• Conducted the pre-bid meeting and site walk for all wells with drilling contractors in 
conjunction with IEUA/CBWM/BOR on August 5, 2004. IEUA and BOR provided 
separate bid packages to drilling contractors. 

ro The following tasks are projected to be performed during September-November 2004 for the 9 
00

"' HCMP wells: 

• IEUA and BOR to award separate contracts to drilling contractor(s) 

• I EUA to submit and negotiate finalized site acquisition offers to well site landowners 

• Prepare and submit well construction permits and fees 

• Begin construction of wells in November. 

10 22 04 Status Report No -12.doc Page 17 

42 



Salt Budget Tool To Establish TDS Objectives 

Chino Basin Watennaster 
Status Report No.12 

co1.1,LETE0 Watermaster has developed a salt budget tool to estimate the current and future salt loads to 
the Basin and the salt benefits of the OBMP. This tool was used to establish TDS objectives for 
the northern part of the Basin based on maximum beneficial use of water available to the region. 
These projections were based on the water supply plan in the Implementation Plan and include 
alternative recycled water and State Project water recharge scenarios. Watermaster consultants 
prepared a letter report (February 20, 2004) describing the salt budget and the Chino Basin 
Maximum Benefit Commitment. The commitments require Watermaster and IEUA to take 
specific actions triggered by ambient water quality and other time-certain conditions. An 
implementation schedule is specified, with the RWQCB responsible for overseeing compliance. 

BACK· 
GROUND 

ON 
GOING 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 8 - DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT GROUNDWATER STORAGE 
MANAGEMENTPROGRAM;AND 

PROGRAM ELEMENT 9 - DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT STORAGE AND RECOVERY 
PROGRAM 

This section summarizes the work accomplished to date and the work planned over the 
next few months for the Chino Basin Ory Year Yield (DYY) and Storage and Recovery 
Programs. The DYY Program is a conjunctive use program between the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California (MWOSC) and several Basin appropriators, which 
would develop a maximum of 100,000 acre-feet of storage. These Programs a/so explore 
the potential for using up to 500,000 acre-feet of storage capacity. 

Completed Preliminary Design Report. The first draft of the DYY Preliminary Design Report 
was completed in July 2003 and submitted to Watermaster. The DYY Program documentation is 
organized into four volumes: Volumes I and II, prepared by Black & Veatch, comprise the 
Preliminary Design Report (PDR). Volume I describes the background information and design 
objectives of the Program, while Volume II describes the facilities to be designed to help the 
agencies meet their shift obligation. Volume Ill presents the groundwater modeling report 
developed by Wildermuth Environmental, Inc., and Volume IV contains the CEQA Findings of 
Consistency environmental documentation prepared by Tom Dodson and Associates. 

DYY Shift Obligation. Participants in the DYY Program will be required to reduce (shift) their 
imported water usage by a predetermined amount during a dry year. Each participating agency 
will have a specific shift obligation that, when added together, will provide MWDSC with 33,000 
acre-feet of dry year yield. The shift obligations were determined through meetings and 
correspondence among IEUA, Watermaster, Black & Veatch, and representatives from each 
participating agency. 

The eight participating agencies are as follows: 

10 22 O,1 Status R0port No 12.(loc Page 18 

43 



ON 
GOING 

BACK· 
GROUHO 

i f 
·1 't 

BACK· 
GROUHO 

• Citv of Chino 
• Citv of Chino Hills 
• Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) 

• Juruoa Communitv Services District /JCSD) 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

• Monte Vista Water District /MVWD) 
• Citv of Ontario 
• City of Pomona 
• Citv of Upland 

Facility Requirements and Site Selection. A preliminary screening of potential sites identified 
the most feasible locations for the DYY Program facilities. The information was presented to the 
agencies and a final selection was made. The Program facilities consist of five new ion 
exchange (IX) facilities, expansion of two existing IX facilities, construction of seven new non
water quality impaired wells, and two new perchlorate wellhead treatment facilities. The new 
wellhead IX facilities would contribute approximately 18,000 acre-feet of dry year yield, while the 
new well facilities would contribute approximately 15,000 acre-feet of additional yield. The total 
capital cost for the facilities is estimated to be $38 million. MWDSC will contribute approximately 
$27 million. The Groundwater Storage Program Funding Agreement between MWDSC, IEUA, 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD), and Watermaster was signed in July 2003. 

Final Design of PDR Facilities. The designs for the facilities outlined in the PDR are either 
under way, completed, or will commence shortly. All design documents are scheduled to be 
completed by September 2004. 

Final Approval of DYY Storage Account. Pursuant to Article X of Watermaster's Rules and 
Regulations, IEUA submitted an Application to enter into a Storage and Recovery Program 
Storage Agreement. This Application was approved unanimously by all Pools and received 
unanimous approval from the Advisory Committee and Board on October 23, 2003. 
Watermaster and IEUA developed a storage agreement pursuant to the Application and 
processed that agreement through the Watermaster approval process in March 2004. The 
agreement was submitted to the Court for approval. Prior to Court approval, MWDSC is utilizing 
its existing Trust Storage Account with the intention of transferring its water stored in the Trust 
Account into the DYY account upon approval of the Storage Agreement. 

Groundwater Modeling. The Chino Basin groundwater model was completed and the draft 
modeling report was submitted to Watermaster in July 2003. In addition to evaluating the effects 
of the DYY program on the Basin, the model was used to: 

• Develop draft future replenishment and wet water recharge criteria based on 
requirements described in the Section 7.1 b of the Watermaster Rules and Regulations 
regarding the balance of recharge and discharge. (See Wildermuth, Analysis of 
Supplemental Water Recharge Pursuant to the Peace Agreement. To be filed with the 
Court.) 

• Evaluate the cumulative effects of transfers among the Parties as described in Section 
9.3 of the Watermaster Rules and Regulations. (See Wildermuth, Evaluation of the 
Cumulative Effects of Transfers Pursuant to the Peace Agreement. To be filed with the 
Court.) 

10 22 01! Status Report No 12.doc Page 19 



BACK• 
GROUHD 

ON• 
GOING 

THIS 
PERIOD 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

• Describe pumping patterns in Management Zone 1 that will not reduce piezometric 
levels below current conditions. 

These management criteria were incorporated into the DYY program. The results of this work 
were presented to the Pool Committees, Advisory Committee, and the Watermaster Board in 
June and August 2003, and the final report was submitted in September 2003. 

Engineering Review and Determination of the Operational Storage Requirement and Safe 
Storage. The Operational Storage Requirement was defined in the Peace Agreement as part of 
the storage in the Chino Basin "necessary to maintain the safe yield" of the Basin (Peace 
Agreement, Exhibit B - Implementation Plan, page 37). Safe storage is the maximum storage in 
the Basin that can occur without significant water quality and high groundwater related 
problems. The draft results of this work were presented to the Pool Committees, Advisory 
Committee, and the Watermaster Board in August 2003. 

Other Uses of the Groundwater Model in the OBMP Implementation. The groundwater 
model is currently being used to investigate alternative management strategies including 
reduced storage in the eastern part of the basin, expanded storage and recovery programs, and 
assessing hydraulic control with various appropriator proposed pumping alternatives in the 
southern Chino Basin. A draft report documenting the modeling effort and related investigations 
will be submitted to Watermaster during the next reporting period. 

CONCLUSION 

This has been an active reporting period for Watermaster, with major activities on a number of 
issues: 

• Construction on Bid Packages 1 and 2 of the Recharge Facilities Improvement Project 
was accepted, and construction on Bid Packages 3-7 is progressing on schedule. 
Demonstration projects for recharge in College Heights, Montclair and Brooks Basins 
were undertaken. 

• The groundwater level and quality monitoring programs have been reorganized to better 
support new initiatives, such as MZ1, HCMP, Nitrogen Loss, and Desalter Expansion. 
Selected wells are being equipped with automatic measuring and recording devices to 
continually collect water level data at wells at frequent intervals. Field sampling and 
laboratory analyses used in FY 2003/04 have transitioned to the new monitoring 
program. 

• Planning and design of nine new HCMP monitoring wells was completed. 

• Updated status reports were developed for Chino Basin plumes at Kaiser, GE Flat Iron, 
GE Test Cell, OIA and Chino Airport. An initial evaluation of potential perchlorate 
sources and plumes was undertaken based on an EDR database. 

• Data from the Ayala Park Extensometer indicated that deformation within the aquifer 
system sediments has been primarily elastic compression and expansion during the 
2003 pumping season and the FY2003/04 recovery season. Additional test protocols are 
being developed for FY2004-05. 

IQ 22 04 Status Report No 12.doc Page 20 

45 



46 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Status Report No.12 

• Following the resignation of John Rossi, the former Watermaster CEO, an extensive 
search was undertaken and Kenneth R. Manning was offered the position of new 
Watermaster CEO. 

1() 22 0,1 S1:;111,; R,';pn11 Hu 12 dor. Page 21 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Consider Mitigation of 
Temporary Loss of 
Hydraulic Control 



KENNETH R. MANNING 
Chief Executive Officer 

DATE: March 10, 2005 
March 24, 2005 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org 

TO: Committee Members 
Watermaster Board Members 

SUBJECT: Chino Basin Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency proposal for mitigation of 
temporary loss of hydraulic control 

SUMMARY 

Issue - In December 2002, Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency {IEUA} submitted a 
proposal to the Regional Water Quality Control Board requesting TDS and Nitrogen objectives be 
established using the maximum benefit concept. The Regional Board accepted this proposal, with slight 
modification and incorporated it into the 2004 Basin Plan amendment. One condition of the maximum 
benefit-based objective is that Watermaster and IEUA must submit a mitigation plan for temporary loss 
of hydraulic control. The proposed mitigation plan for temporary loss of hydraulic control is attached to 
this staff letter. There may be new costs to the Watermaster and IEUA to mitigate temporary loss of 
hydraulic control. These costs are more than offset by maintaining hydraulic control. 

Recommendation - Watermaster approve the mitigation plan for temporary loss of hydraulic control. 

BACKGROUND 

The Regional Board adopted order number RB-2004-0001 in 2004. This order amended the Water Quality 
Management Plan for the Santa Ana Watershed (Basin Plan} for TDS and nitrogen. Watermaster and IEUA 
proposed that the TDS and nitrogen objectives for the Chino Basin be established based on maximum benefit 
concepts (WC S13241 }. The Regional Board incorporated the Watermaster and IEUA proposal into the Basin 
Plan amendment because of the establishment and successful implementation of the OBMP. 

One of the requirements of the maximum benefit objectives is that Watermaster and IEUA maintain hydraulic 
control of the Chino North Management Zone. In the Basin Plan, the Chino North Management Zone is the 
aggregate of OBMP management zones 1, 2 and 3, less the area in the Prado reservoir (area with elevation 
below 566 feet-ms!}. The groundwater pumping and recharge plans being implemented by Watermaster, IEUA 
and the parties to the Judgment are the means to maintain hydraulic control. Watermaster and IEUA have 
developed a detailed Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program (HCMP} that monitors and assesses the state of 
hydraulic control for the Chino North Management Zone. 

4.'7 



48 

DISCUSSION 

Temporary loss of hydraulic control, if it occurs, would likely be due to either temporary outage of the desalter 
facilities or from extremely wet years such as 2004/05. Watermaster and IEUA would detect the temporary loss 
of hydraulic control after it occurs and in some cases after hydraulic control is re-established. The proposed 
mitigation for a temporary loss of hydraulic control will depend on the following circumstances: 

o Circumstance 1. If a temporary loss of hydraulic control occurred during the prior year, without 
impairment of downstream beneficial use, and the OBMP facilities and operations have resulted in a net 
TDS and nitrogen reduction in the Chino Basin, then no mitigation will be required. 

o Circumstance 2. If a temporary loss of hydraulic control occurred during the prior year with impairment 
of downstream beneficial use, then recycled water recharge will cease until either hydraulic control can 
be demonstrated or Circumstance 1 is established. 

Under Circumstance 1 there will be no cost to Watermaster or IEUA. Under Circumstance 2, Watermaster's 
cost for replenishment will increase as State Project Water will replace the recycled water being used for 
replenishment; and IEUA will lose income from recycled water sales. The cost associated with Circumstance 2 
will be far less than the benefit of recharging recycled water during the majority of the time when hydraulic 
control is occurring. 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

KENNETH R. MANNING 
Chief Executive Officer 

March 3, 2005 

Mr. Gerard Thibeault 
Executive Officer 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 
3737 Main Street, Suite 500 
Riverside, CA 92501-3339 

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org 

Subject: Chino Basin Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency proposal for mitigation of 
temporary loss of hydraulic control. 

Dear Mr. Thibeault: 

The Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster) and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) 
hereby submit this proposal to the Regional Board for mitigation of temporary loss of hydraulic 
control pursuant to the 2004 Basin Plan Amendment. Our proposal is as follows. 

Monitoring 

Watermaster and IEUA will conduct monitoring as described in the Hydraulic Control Monitoring 
Plan {HCMP) {Final Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program Work Plan, Optimum Basin 
Management Program, WEI, May 2004) and per the formal monitoring plan that was submitted to 
the Regional Board in early 2004 pursuant to the 2004 Basin Plan amendment. Quarterly reports 
summarizing the data from the monitoring program will be sent to the Regional Board starting in 
April this year. An annual report will be sent to the Regional Board each February starting next 
year. Watermaster and IEUA initiated this monitoring program in 2003 prior to submitting the 
monitoring plan to the Regional Board. 

Watermaster and IEUA will prepare tables that show the TDS and nitrogen budget for the 
Optimum Basin Management Program {OBMP) facilities and operations that will show, by quarter 
and cumulatively, the TDS and nitrogen debits and credits attributed to the OBMP: recharge of 
storm, recycled and State Project Water; and TDS and nitrogen removed by the OBMP desalter 
facilities. These calculations will be shown in each quarterly monitoring report and the annual 
report. 

Annual Assessment of Hydraulic Control 

Watermaster and IEUA will review the monitoring data and prepare a hydraulic control 
assessment for the Regional Board using the procedures described in Exhibit A Assessment of 
Hydraulic Control {attached). The procedures described in Exhibit A were developed by 
Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. during the development of the HCMP work plan in which staff 

49 



50 

Mr. Gerard Thibeault Page 2 of 5 
March 3, 2005 

from the Regional Board participated. Any temporary loss of hydraulic control that occurred 
during the year will be identified and the means to improve OBMP operations will be identified 
and incorporated into subsequent operations. 

Mitigation for Temporary Loss of Hydraulic Control 

The mitigation for a temporary loss of hydraulic control will depend on the following 
circumstances. 

Circumstance 1. If a temporary loss of hydraulic control occurred during the prior year, without 
impairment of downstream beneficial use, and the OBMP facilities and operations have resulted 
in a net TDS and nitrogen reduction in the Chino Basin, then no mitigation will be required. 

Circumstance 2. If a temporary loss of hydraulic control occurred during the prior year with 
impairment of downstream beneficial use, then recycled water recharge will cease until either 
hydraulic control can be demonstrated or Circumstance 1 is established. 

Watermaster and IEUA believe that this proposal is consistent with the 2004 Basin Plan 
amendment, will promote maximum beneficial use of the waters of the State, and protect 
downstream beneficial uses. Please call either Richard Atwater or me if you have any questions 
regarding our proposal. 

Sincerely, 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Kenneth R. Manning 
Chief Executive Officer 

Encl. 

20050310-2-1 HytlratJhc Conlrol.doc 



Term 

Key Well 

Hydraulic Control 

Metric 

Trigger 

EXHIBIT A 
ASSESSMENT OF HYDRAULIC CONTROL 

METRICS TO DETERMINE STATE OF HYDRAULIC CONTROL 

HCMP TERMINOLOGY, METRICS, AND TRIGGERS ARE DEFINED BELOW. 

Definition as Applied in HCMP 
A key well is one of a number of wells within Chino Basin's monitoring 
network. Key wells will be selected to provide areal and vertical coverage 
to characterize groundwater heads and groundwater quality to a degree 
that satisfies all members of the HCMP. 
Hydraulic control, for the purposes of this study, is condition where 
groundwater originating in the northern part of Chino Basin is intercepted 
beforedischarging t.o the Santa AnaRiver. 
A metric is the method whereby the effectiveness or performance 
of the system (hydraulic control) is measured orquantified. 
A trigger is a combination of performance metrics that have not been met 
- over a specific time span - that would trigger an action to correct the 
situation. 

The following metrics will be used for determining whether hydraulic control exists in Chino Basin: 

1. Water Chemistry. As discussed in HCMO Work Plan (WEI 2004), general water chemistry will be 
analyzed to determine if a significant difference in water character exists between groundwater 
migrating from Chino North and surface water in the Santa Ana River. If a significant difference exists, it 
may be possible to determine if there is rising water or recharge from the Santa Ana River. The 
quantifiable metric for this water chemistry cannot be developed until the data are analyzed. 

2. voe Plume Migration. As discussed in Section 3 of the HCMP Work Plan, there is a significant voe 
plume upgradient of the Chino 1 Desalter wellfield. Concentrations near the wellfield are less than 5 
µg/L. voes will be monitored in the newly installed multi piezometric monitoring wells. The metric is 
voe concentrations exceeding 5 µg/L for 4 consecutive quarters in the newly installed downgradient 
monitoring well. 

3. Hydrology. Groundwater modeling, in conjunction with analyses of piezometric levels and hydrologic 
balance, will be used to determine if the basin is in hydraulic control. As discussed in the HCMP Work 
Plan, an estimate of hydrologic balance of surface waters will be accomplished by conducting sampling 
events at a regular frequency at key location on the Santa Ana River, its tributaries, points of non
tributary discharge and at wells in the lower Basin. Piezometric level measurements will be used to 
construct detailed groundwater elevation maps in the area near the Desalter well fields. Where possible, 
static levels will be used to construct the piezometric contour maps. The hydrology metric would be to 
demonstrate a reverse gradient south of the desalter well fields. This demonstration would be 
accomplished through groundwater flow modeling, groundwater contour maps, and by showing that the 
water level in the downgradient piezometer is greater than the water level in the piezometer installed in 
the desalter well field. The groundwater model would be updated every two years. 

4. Impairment of Water Quality at the Below Prado USGS Station. The HCMP Work Plan show time 
histories of measured TDS and TIN at Below Prado from 1950 to the present. Included on the figures 
are 5-year moving average trend lines. TDS concentrations have been trending toward lower 
concentrations since about 1986 and TIN has been decreasing since about 1993. The At Below Prado 
metric would be an increase in the 5-year moving average sustained over a 3-year period. 

The At Below Prado metric is perhaps the most important one, because one of the primary objectives of 
Hydraulic Control is to ensure that water moving from the Upper to Lower Santa Ana Watershed does not 
decrease in quality due to management activities in Chino Basin or that the decrease in quality is de minim us. 
However in developing the following conditions, one must keep in mind that water quality at Below Prado is also 
influenced by other discharges and flow from other basins, especially Temescal Basin. 

51 



52 

Request for Quantification of Supplemental Water in Storage May 24, 2001 

Condition 1. Water quality trends at Below Prado continue to improve or are fiat. No action would be 
required of CBWM or IEUA, even if other metrics do not show hydraulic control. 

Condition 2. Water quality at Below Prado trends toward poorer water quality. Two or more of the other 
three metrics indicate that hydraulic control is occurring. Hydraulic control is occurring. No action would be 
required of CBWM or IEUA. RWQCB may require further monitoring or studies in Temescal basin. 

Condition 3. Water quality at Below Prado trends toward poorer water quality. One or none of the other 
three metrics indicates that hydraulic control is occurring. CBWM and IEUA must implement mitigation 
measures. 

Water Chemistry Monitoring and Assessment 

The purpose of monitoring water chemistry in surface and groundwater is to determine if groundwater from the 
Chino Basin is discharging as rising groundwater to the Santa Ana River. The general water chemistry of Chino 
Basin groundwater is different from the Santa Ana River. Native groundwater in the Chino Basin typically has a 
calcium-bicarbonate water character, while the Santa Ana River reflects the influence of tertiary wastewater in 
the basefiow of the river and has more sodium-chloride-sulfate character. The dry-weather discharge of the 
Santa Ana River in the Basin consists of rising groundwater from the Riverside Basin, recycled water discharged 
by publicly-owned treatment works (POTWs), and rising groundwater from either the Temescal or Chino Basins. 
From time to time, other waters are discharged to the Santa Ana River, including Arlington Desalter water, SWP 
water, and groundwater pumped from the San Bernardino area. 

These discharges will be identified and their chemistries will be characterized using Piper diagrams and a 
modification of the Piper method for time histories known as Water Character Index (WCI). WCI is a parameter 
that can be used to generally characterize water in terms of rations of major cations and anions. WCI is a 
unitless parameter that provides a numerical estimation of water character. WCI is used to assess the ionic 
distribution of constituents in a water sample. WCI is analogous to a trilinear or Piper diagram, which is a 
graphical means of displaying the ratios of the principal ionic constituents in water (Piper, 1944; Watson and 
Burnett, 1995). The utility of the WCI method, compared with a Stiff or Piper/trilinear diagram, is that many data 
points can be plotted as time histories for a given well or surface water station. The points can also be plotted to 
show areal and spatial distributions of water character. 

In addition to general water chemistry, Watermaster's database of groundwater quality in the southern Chino 
Basin area will be queried to see if there are other naturally occurring or introduced constituents that can 
potentially be used as a tracer to determine if Basin groundwater is discharging to the Santa Ana River. 

Hydrologic Balance Assessment 

An estimate of hydrologic balance of surface waters would be accomplished by conducting sampling events at a 
regular frequency at key location on the Santa Ana River, its tributaries, points of non-tributary discharge and at 
wells in the lower Basin. Review of Santa Ana River Watermaster reports show that baseftow increases in the 
Santa Ana River at Prado Dam by about 80 cubic feet per second (cfs) during the winter. Recycled water and 
other non-tributary discharges to the River cannot account for this change in flow. The increase in basefiow 
discharge could be caused by a decrease in evapotranspiration of groundwater by riparian vegetation in Prado 
Reservoir and near the river, an increase in rising groundwater due to reduced pumping by Chino and Temescal 
Basin producers, or both. An assessment of evapotranspiration will be conducted to determine whether 
seasonal baseftow changes at Prado can be accounted for by evapotranspiration (see the HCMP Work Plan). 

Piezometric Levels Assessment 

A monitoring program will be conducted to measure piezometric levels in existing private wells and desalter 
wells in the southern portion of the Chino Basin. This program consists of collecting piezometric data at existing 
and the nine new nested piezometers constructed for the HCMP, evaluation of hydrogeology in the area of 
concern, potential construction of new nested piezometers, and monitoring and analysis of piezometric data. 
Piezometric levels will be measured and referenced to an elevation obtained by survey or GPS to an accuracy 
of plus or minus 0.01 feet. Perforated interval information for wells without construction logs will be determined 
from video logging. Piezometric levels from these wells will be collected on a frequent (hourly to monthly) basis. 

20050310-24 Hydraulic Control.doc 



Request for Quantification of Supplemental Water in Storage May 24, 2001 

These piezometric level measurements will be used to construct detailed groundwater elevation maps in the 
area near the desalter well fields. The status of the well (pumping, recovering, or static) will be noted by the field 
staff and will be corroborated by plotting piezometric level time histories for each well. Where possible, static 
levels will be used to construct the piezometric contour maps. As with water chemistry, wells with significantly 
different piezometric values are often found in close proximity to each other, suggesting that there may be 
vertical stratification of aquifer zones. If warranted, additional nested piezometers may be constructed to 
augment data collected from the existing private wells in the vicinity of the desalter well fields. 

The new piezometers would be used to better characterize the hydrogeology in this area, including the 
hydrostratigraphy, the vertical and horizontal piezometric distribution, and the groundwater quality. Subsequent 
monitoring at these wells and other nearby wells, along with groundwater modeling efforts, will determine if 
hydraulic control is occurring in the vicinity of the desalter well field, or will determine how desalter well field 
production should be changed to ensure hydraulic control. 

Groundwater Modeling 

Modeling is the last of the four elements of hydraulic control monitoring and assessment. Watermaster 
developed and periodically updates a three-dimensional model of the Chino Basin based on MODFLOW 2000. 
The model is dynamically linked to the Santa Ana River and major tributaries. The model is used to simulate the 
piezometric level and groundwater fiow responses to groundwater management programs such as: conjunctive 
use, new supplemental water recharge, new stormwater recharge, new desalter well fields, assess hydraulic 
control, and assess subsidence potential in the western portion of the basin. All of these management programs 
have an influence on the state of hydraulic control. In addition to the fiow model, Watermaster uses MODPATH 
and MT3D to simulate the transport of contaminant plumes and how the transport of plumes is changed as a 
result of the various management activities of the Watermaster and others. 

As mentioned above, hydraulic control is desirable to maximize the yield of the Chino Basin and to protect the 
Santa Ana River. Watermaster intends to use the results of the water chemistry, hydrologic, and piezometric 
elements to continuously refine the conceptual model that underlies the numerical model and, subsequently, to 
refine the numerical model. After the new nested piezometers have been constructed and some monitoring has 
occurred, the flow model will be revised to incorporate the lithologic, piezometric, and aquifer property 
information derived from the new nested piezometers. 

20050310•24 Hydraulic Conlrol.doc 

53 



54 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Ill. REPORTS/UPDATES 

A. WATERMASTER GENERAL 
LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

3. Senator Kuehl's Water Bill 



Febrnary 28, 2005 
A Low Corporation 

Senate Bill 820 

I
\IB 1~ rq 1~ II \Vi lfg @ 

MAR O 3 2005 
V""•l'I .... 'J'.J'\,::l.lf\ 

W/!.TERMI\STEM ~ew~~E.S 

Dramatic Changes Proposed for California Water Law 

On Febrnary 23, 2005, Senator Sheila Kuehl, Chair of the powerful Senate Natural Resources 
and Water Committee, unveiled SB 820, a bill that provides for sweeping changes in California 
water law affecting both urban and agricultural water users. Appropriately, the bill has been 
coined the "Mega Water Bill."1 This note highlights key provisions of the bill and possible 
impacts and outcomes associated with it. 

The stated objectives of the bill are: (I) to strengthen water conservation policy; (2) to reduce 
uncertainty about the use and abundance of the state's water resources; and (3) to increase the 
integiity and integration of water resource planning and management. The bill includes three 
broad approaches to achieve these objectives: 

• Mandatory water conservation; 
• Mandatory reporting of water use; and 
• Expanded water resources planning requirements. 

MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION 

The California Constitution prohibits the unreasonable and wasteful use of water. Under existing 
law, the burden of proof on a waste claim falls on the party alleging waste. SB 820 would 
reverse that burden by establishing a "rebuttable presumption" of waste "whenever any person 
fails to implement cost-effective water conservation practices." 

Conservation is deemed to be "cost-effective" if the monetary benefits of conservation exceed 
the monetary costs of conservation. Benefits include the cost of avoided water supply, energy 
savings, labor savings and "any other avoided costs or savings." "Water conservation" may be 
achieved by reducing currently in·ecoverable water losses, or by reducing diversions or 
extractions while maintaining the curre:1t "social tmd economic benefits" of the current uses of 
water. If enacted, the provision would become operative on January 1, 2011. 

The bill in its current fonn will likely result in increased litigation because a pruty need only 
make a claim that water is being wasted for the presumption of waste to apply; the burden of 
defending the litigation will then shift to the water rights holder. 

MANDATORY REPORTING OF ,VATER USE 

Groundwater Use 

Overcoming past initiatives,2 groundwater use in California remains largely unregulated; only 
specified groundwater producers expe1iencing severe overdraft in ce1tain Southern California 
counties have been required to report annual groundwater extraction. SB 820 takes a dramatic 

la5 Angcle5 • Sacramanto • San Diego • 5110111 Barbaro 

www.HatchParent.com 

South Lnl:c Tohoe T h O LI 5 a. n d O 515 



56 

SB 820 (Kuehl) 
Dramatic Changes Proposed for California Water Law 
Februa,y 28, 2005 

step toward the regulation of all groundwater use in the state by requiring all groundwater users 
who extract more than 25 acre-feet of water per year to repmi annual extractions to the State 
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) or to a designated depository agency beginning in 
2006. The bill also provides penalties for failure to file the required repo1is, including potential 
forfeiture of water rights and loss of eligibility to receive state grant funds. 

Presently, many of the state's groundwater basins have no monitoring capabilities in place. The 
bill provides no funding for groundwater monitoring systems and is unclear whether metering to 
substantiate reported groundwater use will be required. 

Surface Water Use 

SB 820 also enhances reporting requirements for surface water use. CmTent law requires all 
surface water appropriators to make periodic reports of their water use to the SWRCB, but no 
penalty is associated with the failure to repo1i, and the reports themselves are purely 
informational. Under SB 820, failure to file annual water use repo1is will be deemed to 
constitute non-use for the years not reported and will result in civil . penalties and loss of 
eligibility to receive state grant funds. 

EXP ANDED WATER RESOURCES PLANNING REQUIREMENTS 

Following the direction of her SB 221, Senator Kuehl also proposes to expand the requirements 
in current law related to the preparation of Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) and 
Groundwater Management Plans (GWMPs). SB 820 also reinstates and greatly expands the 
scope of the law relating to Agricultural Water Management Plans (A WMPs). 

Urban Water Management Plans 

SB 820 would make the preparation and adoption of UWMPs subject to the California Environ
mental Quality Act (CEQA). The bill will also make permanent and expand the scope of the 
requirement that a UWMP be filed with the Department of Water Resources (D\VR) as a 
condition of receiving state grant funds from DWR, the SWRCB or the California Bay-Delta 
Authority. Under current law, this requirement will sunset on December 31, 2005, and is limited 
to only a few grant programs. 

The bill would require energy demands and costs to be considered in UWMPs when evaluating 
alternative strategies a11d water conservation measures, including coordination with local electric 
and gas utilities. The bill also calls for expanded distribution of UWMPs to facilitate public 
review. 

The most onerous of these new plarming requirements is the removal of the CEQA exemption 
for UWMPs. CEQA compliance is time-consuming and expensive, and the projects described in 
a UWMP are already projects subject to CEQA. Environmental review at the plarming stage is 
often difficult because it requires speculation on the physical impacts of projects that may or may 

2 



SB 820 (Kuehl) 
Dramatic Changes Proposed for California Water Law 
February 28, 2005 

not become part of a water supplier's water supply portfolio in the future. This single change in 
the law will impose substantial time and expense burdens on all urban water suppliers. 

Groundwater Management Plans 

SB 820 requires that existing GWMPs be updated by December 31, 2008 (unless the original 
GWMP was adopted on or after .Januaiy I, 2004) and eve1y five years thereafter. It also requires 
an update to: 

• · evaluate the progress made in achieving the adopted basin management objectives; 
• identify successes and shortcomings in meeting those objectives; 
• revise the basin management objectives as appropriate; a11d 
• develop a plan to achieve the revised basin management objectives. 

Agricultural Water Management Plans 

SB 820 would also reinstate a11d expand the scope of A WMPs in several significant ways. The 
bill: 

• Requires the filing of A WMPs by all agricultural water suppliers serving at least 2,000 
acre-feet of water annually begiru1ing December 31, 2010 and every five years thereafter. 
CUITent law has a floor of 50,000 acre-feet ammally, so this represents a significant 
expansion of the agricultural reporting requirement. 

• Expands the required elements of A WMPs to include operating rules a11d regulations, 
water rate schedules, water shortage allocation policies, a11d water supply reliability 
estimates. 

• Eliminates the financial assistance provisions included in prior law so that agricultural 
water suppliers must bear the cost of preparing A WMPs. 

• Maintains the CEQA exemption for A WMPs, unlike UWMPs. 
• Requires wide distribution of the A WMPs as a condition for receiving grant funds from 

DWR, the SWRCB or the California Bay-Delta Authority. 
• Expands the definition of "conservation." 

The reinstatement and expansion of A W11Ps will be one of the most controversial elements of 
SB 820. The bill's provisions will cause agricultural water suppliers to bear significa11t costs in 
the prepai·ation of A WMPs and malce many of the details of their water supplies, existing and 
projected water use, a11d operations subject to public scrutiny. 

SB 820 also adds "eai·ly warning" provisions regarding the likely availability of water from 
strea111 systems a11d the State Water Project. While existing law prohibits the SWRCB from 
accepting new applications to appropriate water from strea111s that have been formally declai·ed 
to be fully appropriated, SB 820 requires the SWRCB to publish a list of streain systems that are 
"likely" to be declared fully appropriated and therefore may no longer be available for additional 
consumptive uses. Similarly, the bill will require DWR to provide all State Water Project 
contractors, city a11d cow1ty plailning departments, a11d regional and metropolitan planning 

3 

57 



58 

SB 820 (Kuehl) 
Dramatic Changes Proposed for California Water Law 
Februmy 28, 2005 

departments with a report of the then existing overall delivery capability of the project facilities 
and the allocation of that capacity to each contractor. 

NEXT STEPS 

Senator Kuehl' s office has asked for input from interested parties and will hold a series of 
working group meetings to refine the language of the bill. Senator Kuehl wants to know any 
policy concerns with the bill, and also asks for specific proposals for changes to the bill's 
language and provisions. 

Senator Kuehl's SB 820 will make major changes to California water law and will place heavy 
burdens on water users and state government alike. The bill is a first step toward comprehensive 
regulation of groundwater in California, and it makes validity and security of water rights 
contingent on meeting government reporting requirements and policy objectives. All water 
users a11d water suppliers will be affected by this bill and 11eed to follow its progress. 

Hatch & Parent is a full service law firm specializing in water and environmental law. 
At the foreji·ont of the practice for more than 3 0 years, the firm seeks lasting solutions to 
complex resource management challenges employing a fully integrated range of services -
negotiation, legislative advocacy, public relations management and litigation - to meet our 
clients' needs. Our breadth of skill and experience covers the full range of water resource 
related matters, including strategic planning; asset development and protection; water rights 
and inji·astructure sales and transfers; regulat01y permitting and compliance; water quality 
protection; water rights and water quality related litigation; and advocacy -at eve1y level of 
government. Please visit our website at 11~11w.hatchparent.comfor a more complete description 
of our practice and our members. 

Jfyou would like to /mow more about SB 820, obtain a copy of the bill, or speak with one 
of our lawyers or legislative advocates about how the bill may affect you, your water rights, or 
business operations, please contact Chris Frahm or Jeff Vo/berg at (916) 441-1232, or 
Stephanie Hastings at (805) 882-1415. 

1 The bill amends Sections 5000, 5001, 5003, 5004, 5005, 5009, 5101, 5106, 5107, 10004.5, 10004.6, 10620, 
10631, 10644, 10645, 10652, 10656, 10753.7, 10811, 10814, 10816, 10840, 10841, and 10844 of, to add Sections 
139,276, and 1205.5 to, to repeal Sections 4999, 5108, 10657, 10822, 10823, 10824, 10826, and 10855 of, and to 
repeal and add Sections 10820, 10821, 10825, 10845, 10853, and 10854 of, the Water Code, relating to water. 

2 In 2002, the SWRCB hired Berkeley law professor Joseph Sax to review its legal basis for asserting water rights 
permitting authority over groundwater. The so-called "Sax Report" concluded that it would be preferable to regulate 
all hydraulically connected surface and groundwater under a single permitting scheme, but that the historical 
resistance in California to regulating groundwater would make full regulation infeasible. Instead, Sax suggested a 
series of "quantitative" criteria that the SWRCB could use in deciding whether to assert jurisdiction based on the 
need to protect surface waters from adverse impacts from groundwater pumping. He also suggested that the SWRCB 
could utilize its jurisdiction under other statutes to limit groundwater use where the result would violate the public 
trust or constitute "waste." SB 820 takes these same approaches and issues "head on.'1 

SB 369465 v2:000DD9.0850 4 



In bill text the following has special meaning 
underline denotes added text 
struck out text denotes deleted text 

2005 CA S 820 
AUTHOR: Kuehl 
VERSION: Introduced 
VERSION DATE: 02/22/2005 

SENATE BILL 
No. 820 
======================================================================= 
======= 

INTRODUCED BY Senator Kuehl 
======================================================================= 
======= 

FEBRUARY 22, 2005 

An act to amend Sections 5000, 5001, 5003, 5004, 5005, 5009, 5101, 5106, 5107, 
10004.5, 10004.6, 10620, 10631, 10644, 10645, 10652, 10656, 10753.7, 10811, 10814, 
10816, 10840, 10841, and 10844 of, to add Sections 139,276, and 1205.5 to, to repeal 
Sections 4999, 5108, 10657, 10822, 10823, 10824, 10826, and 10855 of, and to repeal 
and add Sections 10820, 10821, 10825, 10845, 10853, and 10854 of, the Water Code, 
relating to water. 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

SB 820, as introduced, Kuehl. Water. (1) Under existing law, the Department of Water 
Resources operates the State Water Project, which includes state water facilitie_s, as 
defined. 

This bill would require the department, commencing in 2006, and every 2 years 
thereafter, to prepare and deliver to State Water Project contractors, city and county 
planning departments, and regional and metropolitan planning departments within the 
project service area a report that accurately sets forth, under a range ofhydrologic 
conditions, the then existing overall delivery capability of the project facilities and the 
allocation of that capacity to each contractor. 

(2) Existing law requires the department and the State Water Resources Control Board 
to take all appropriate proceedings or actions before executive, legislative, or judicial 
agencies to prevent waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or 
unreasonable method of diversion of water in this state. 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 

~ · 59 



60 

Under this bill, on and after January 1, 2011, a rebuttable presumption of waste would 
arise whenever any person fails to implement cost-effective water conservation practices, 
as defined. 

(3) Existing law declares all water flowing in any natural channel, except as specified, 
to be public water of the state and subject to appropriation. Existing law authorizes the 
state board, following notice and hearing, to adopt a declaration that a stream system is 
fully appropriated. 

This bill would require the executive director of the board to establish, maintain, and 
publish a list of stream systems that are candidates for being declared fully appropriated, 
for information purposes only. 

(4) Existing Jaw, with certain exceptions, requires a person who, after 1955, extracts 
groundwater in excess of 25 acre-feet in any year in the Counties of Riverside, San 
Bernardino, Los Angeles, and Ventura to file with the state board an annual notice of 
extraction. Existing Jaw, with certain exceptions, provides that, after 1959, the failure to 
file a notice for any calendar year within 6 months after the close of that calendar year is 
equal to non use of the groundwater in those counties for that calendar year by each 
person failing to so file. 

This bill would impose parallel provisions on the balance of the counties in the state 
for extractions on and after January 1, 2006. 

(5) Existing law, except as specified, requires each person who, after December 31, 
1965, diverts water to file with the state board, before July 1 of the succeeding year, a 
statement of diversion and use. Existing law excepts diversions that are covered by an 
application, or a permit or license to appropriate water on file with the state board. 
Existing law also excepts diversions reported by the department in its hydrologic data 
bulletins or included in the consumptive use data for the delta lowlands published by the 
department in its hydrologic data bulletins. Under existing law, the making of any willful 
misstatement regarding statements of diversion or use is a misdemeanor and any person 
who makes a material misstatement under these provisions may be civilly liable. Under 
existing Jaw, statements filed pursuant to those provisions are for informational purposes 
only, and, except as specified, neither the failure to file a statement nor any error in the 
information filed have any legal consequences. 

This bill would, with regard to the covered diversions, modify that provision to except 
diversions covered by a permit or license to appropriate water or a registration of 
appropriation for small domestic or livestock pond uses that are on file with the state 
board. The bill would limit those other described exceptions to diversions that occurred 
before January 1, 2006. 

The bill would delete that informational purpose provision and expand the civil 
liability provision to apply to any person who fails to file a statements for a diversion or 
use that occurs on or after January 1, 2006. The bill would also make any person who 

SB 369281 vl:0D0009,0850 



fails to file a statement for a diversion or use that occurs on or after January 1, 2006, 
ineligible for funds made available pursuant to any program administered by the state 
board, the department, or the California Bay-Delta Authority. 

(6) Under existing law, a plan for the orderly and coordinated control, protection, 
conservation, development, and utilization of the water resources of the state is ]mown as 
the California Water Plan. Existing law requires the department to update the plan on or 
before December 31, 2003, and every 5 years thereafter. Existing law requires the plan to 
include a discussion or specified topics. 

This bill would require the plan to include a discussion of the energy requirements of 
strategies that may be pursued to meet the future water needs of the state, and would 
require the department to release certain information regarding the energy required to 
provide current and projected water supplies. 

(7) Existing law requires every urban water supplier to prepare and adopt an urban 
water management plan, as prescribed, including a requirement that the urban water 
supplier coordinate the preparation of the plan with other appropriate agencies, to the 
extent practicable. Existing law requires an urban water supplier to submit a copy of its 
plan to the department, the California State Library, and any city or coUI1ty within which 
the supplier provides water supplies, and to make the plan available for public review 
during normal business hours. 

Th.is bill would include public utilities that provide electric or gas service in those 
coordinating agencies. The bill would require a plan to quantify the energy requirements 
of certain existing and planned water sources and, with regard to a cost-benefit analysis 
for water demand management measures, to include energy costs and benefits of 
conserved water. The bill would require an urban water supplier to submit a copy of its 
plan to additional entities, and to make the plan available for public review on its Internet 
Web site. 

(8) Existing law exempts the preparation and adoption of urban water management 
plans from the California Environmental Quality Act. 

This bill would make the preparation and adoption of urban water management plans 
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act. · 

(9) Under existing law, if an urban water supplier fails to prepare, adopt, and submit an 
urban water management plan, it is ineligible for certain bond funds and drought 
assistance UI1til it does so. Existing law, UI1til January 1, 2006, also requires the 
department to take into consideration whether a plan has been submitted in determining 
eligibility for other program funds. 

This bill would delete those provisions, and would, instead, make an urban water 
supplier that fails to prepare, adopt, and submit an urban water management plan, 
ineligible for funds made available pursuant to any program administered by the state 

SB 369281 vJ:000009.0850 

61 



62 

board, the department, or the California Bay-Delta Authority until it does so. 

(10) Existing law authorizes a local agency whose service area includes a groundwater 
basin that is not subject to groundwater management to adopt and implement a 
groundwater management plan pursuant to certain provisions oflaw. Existing law 
requires a groundwater management plan to include ce1iain components to qualify as a 
plan for the purposes of those provisions, including a provision that establishes funding 
requirements for the construction of certain groundwater projects. 

This bill, except as specified, would require a local agency to update the plan on or 
before December 31, 2008, and every 5 years thereafter. The bill would require a local 
agency to file a copy of its plan with specified entities. 

(11) Existing law relating to agricultural water management planning, until January 1, 
1993, and thereafter only as specified, provides for the preparation and adoption of water 
management plans. That existing law defines "agricultural water supplier" or "supplier" 
to mean a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, supplying more than 50,000 acre
feet of water annually for agricultural purposes. 

This bill would substantially revise existing law relating to agricultural water 
management planning to require every agricultural water supplier to prepare and adopt an 
agricultural water management plan, as prescribed, on or before December 31, 2010. The 
bill would define "agricultural water supplier" or "supplier" to mean a supplier, either 
publicly or privately owned, supplying more than 2,000 acre-feet of water annually for 
agricultural purposes. The bill would require every person that becomes an agricultural 
water supplier to adopt an agricultural water management plan within one year after it has 
become an agricultural water supplier. The bill would require an agricultural water 
supplier to update the plan, file it, and ma!ce it available, as prescribed. The bill would 
make an agricultural water supplier that fails to prepare, adopt, and submit a plan 
ineligible for funds made available pursuant to any program administered by the state 
board, the department, or the California Bay-Delta Authority. 

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local 
program: no. 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Section 139 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

139. Commencing in 2006, and every two years thereafter, the department shall 
prepare and deliver to State Water Project contractors, city and county planning 
departments, and regional and metropolitan planning departments within the project 
service area, a report that accurately sets forth, under a range ofhydrologic conditions, 
the then-existing overall delivery capability of the project facilities and the allocation of 

SB 369281 vl:000009.08S0 



that capacity to each contractor. The range ofhydrologic conditions shall include, but is 
not limited to, the lristoric extended dry cycle and the long-tenn average. The biennial 
report shall also disclose, for each of the 10 years immediately preceding the report, the 
total amount of project water delivered and the amount of project water delivered to each 
contractor. The information presented in each report shall be presented in a manner 
readily understandable by the public. 

SEC. 2. Section 276 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

276. (a) A rebuttable presumption of waste arises whenever any person fails to 
implement cost-effective water conservation practices. (b) The following definitions 
govern the construction of this section: 

(1) "Cost-effective" means that the monetary benefits of the water conservation 
program exceed the monetary costs of implementing the water conservation program. 
Benefits include the cost of avoided water supply, energy savings, labor savings, and any 
other avoided costs or savings. 

(2) "Water conservation" means both of the following: 

(A) Reducing water losses currently irrecoverable for reuse because they flow to a salt 
sink or an inaccessible or degraded aquifer, or evaporate to the atmosphere. 

(B) Reducing diversions or extractions wlri]e maintaining the current social and 
economic benefits of the current uses of water. 

(3) "Practices" means programs, projects, or practices. 

( c) Jn enacting this section, the Legislature does not intend to impinge upon, or 
otherwise limit, the authority of either the department or the State Water Resources 

Control Board. 

( d) Tlris section shall become operative on January 1, 2011. 

SEC. 3. Section 1205.5 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

1205.5. (a) The executive director of the board shall establish, maintain, and publish a 
list of stream systems that are candidates for being declared fully appropriated pursuant 
to Section 1205. (b) The executive director shall add or remove stream systems to the 
candidate list established in subdivision (a), based on information !mown to the executive 
director and the executive director's best judgment of the likelihood of the board 
declaring the stream system fully appropriated. 

(c) The list of candidate stream systems shall be used for informational purposes only. 

SEC. 4. Section 4999 of the Water Code is repealed. 

SB 369281 111 :000009.0850 

63 



64 

4 999. The Legislature finds and declares that by reason of the combination oflight 
rainfall, concentrated population, the transition of considerable areas of land from 
agricultural use to urban use, and a similar dependence on grmmd water supplies v.1Lich 
prevails in the Counties of Riverside, San Bernardino, Los Angeles, and Ventura, 
together with the fact that most such underground water supplies are ovcrdrav;n, it is 
necessary that the provisions of this part apply to said counties only. 

SEC. 5. Section 5000 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5000. As used in this P--ffi"t+part , the following terms shal+-have the respective 
following meanings stated below, viz :(a) "Ground 'Nater "Groundwater" means water 
beneath the surface of the ground whether or not flowing through !mown and definite 
channels. 

(b) "Surface water" means water on the surface of the ground. 

(c) "Four counties" means the Counties of Riverside, San Bernardino, Los Angeles, 
and Ventura. 

(d) "Balance of the state" means all of this state, excluding the four counties . 

..GD_"Person" means all persons whether natural or artificial, including the United 
States of America, the State of California, and all political subdivisions, districts, 
municipalities and public agencies of or in either the State or the United States. 

Ji)_"Sources" means any point of diversion or extraction of water and includes among 
other things wells, tunnels, and headworks. 

SEC. 6. Section 5001 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5001. {&Each person who, after 1955 in the four counties. and on and after January 1, 
2006, in the balance of the state , extracts ground water groundwater in excess of 25 acre
feet in any year shall file with the board on or before March I st of the succeeding year a 
"Notice of Extraction and Diversion of Water" ~crcinaftcr called "notice") in the form 
provided in Section 5002; provided, hov,ever, that no 5002. (b) No notice need be filed 
with respect to, and there shall not be required to be included in any such notice, fa) 
infonnation any of the following: 

( 1) Information concerning the extraction or diversion of water from a source from 
which less than 10 acre-feet has been taken during such year, (b) infonnation year. 

(2) Information concerning a taking or diversion of surface water for the purpose of 
generating electrical energy and other nonconsumptive uses, and for incidental uses in 

SB 369281 vi :000009.0850 



connection thercv,ith, or (c) infom1ati0H-therewith. 

(3) Information concerning extractions or diversions of water which that are included 
in annual reports filed with a court or the board by a watermaster appointed by a court or 
pursuant to statute to administer a final judgment determining rights to water, which 
reports identify the persons who have extracted or diverted water and give the general 
place of use and the quantity of water v,11ich that has been extracted or diverted from each 
source. 

SEC. 7. Section 5003 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5003. No prescriptive right which that might otherwise accrue to extract ground water 
groundwater shall arise or accrue to, nor shall any statute oflimitations operate in regard 
to such ground water that groundwater in the four counties state or any of them after the 
year 1956 in the four counties, and on and after January 1. 2006, in the balance of the 
state, in favor of any person required to file tmeh-the notice of extraction and diversion of 
water, until tmeh-that person shall file files with the board the first "Notice of Extraction 
and Diversion of Water" substantially in the form mentioned in Section 5002; and as to 
each person who fails to file tmeh-notice by the end of the year 1957 in the four counties 
and on and after January 1, 2007 . in the balance of the state , it shall be deemed for the 
period from that time until the first notice of such person is filed, that no claim of right to 
the extraction of ground ·.vater groundwater from any tmeh-source in the four counties has 
been made by tmeh-that person, and that water so extracted by tmeh-that person from sooh 
ground water that groundwater source during tmeh-that period has not been devoted to or 
used for any beneficial use. The beneficial use of water from any gfDund \Valer 
groundwater source within the four counties in any year by tmeh-that person shall be 
deemed not to exceed the quantity reported in the notice filed for tmeh-that year. 

SEC. 8. Section 5004 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5004. hlAfter the year 1959 in the four counties, and on and after January 1, 2007, in 
the balance of the state , failure to file with the board a notice for any calendar year 
with.in six months after the close of tmeh-that calendar year shall be deemed equivalent 
for all purposes to nonuse for tmeh-that year of any ground water ·.vithin tho four counties 
groundwater by each person failing to so file a notice within said period; provided, that 
period. (b) Notwithstanding subdivision {a). this section and Section 5003 shall not apply 
to any person whose aggregate extractions of ground water groundwater in any year does 
not exceed 25 acre-feet nor to any extractions of ground water groundwater with respect 
to which no notice is required to be filed under this part. 

( c) Any person who fails to submit statements required by this part shall be ineligible 
to receive funds made available pursuant to any program administered by the board. the 
department, or the California-Bay Delta Authority. 

SEC. 9. Section 5005 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

$B369281 vl:000009.0850 

65 



66 

5005. Except as specified in Section 5004, failure to file the notice or delay in filing 
the same shall not cause the loss of rights to ground 'Nater which groundwater that existed 
on January 1, 1956. for persons in the four counties, and January 1, 2006. for persons in 
the balance of the state . 

SEC. 10. Section 5009 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5009. (a) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this part, on and after January 1, 
2005, in the four counties. and on and after January 1. 2006. in the balance of the state, 
each person who extracts groundwater in a board-designated local area, and who is 
otherwise subject to this part, shall file the required notice with the appropriate local 
agency designated pursuant to subdivision (e), instead of the board, in accordance with 
this part. The notice shall be on a form provided by the local agency and the content of 
the form shall be determined by the local agency in accordance with Section 5002. To the 
extent possible, the form shall consolidate the notice required under this section with 
other reports required by the local agency relating to the extraction of groundwater.(2) A 
person who is subject to this section is subject to this part in the same manner and to the 
same extent as a person who files his or her notice with the board. 

(b) Each notice filed with the local agency may include a filing fee determined by the 
local agency. If the local agency chooses to impose a filing fee, the local agency shall 
calculate the amount of the fee to pay for administrative expenses incurred in connection 
v-~th the processing, compiling, and retaining of the notices, but in no event shall the fee 
amount exceed that amount charged by the board pursuant to Section 5006. 

(c) The local agency shall make available to the public the information collected 
pursuant to this section. 

( d) For the purposes of this section: 

(1) "Board-designated local area" means the area entirely within the jUiisdiction of the 
local agency that the board has determined shall be subject to this section. 

(2) "Local agency" means the local public agency or court appointed watermaster that 
has been designated by the board in accordance with subdivision (e). 

(e) The board may designate an entity as a local agency for the purposes of this section 
if the board determines that all of the following apply: 

(1) The entity has volunteered to be designated. 

(2) The entity has responsibilities relating to the extraction or use of groundwater. 

(3) The entity has made satisfactory arrangements with the board to identify which 
groundwater extractors are within the designated local area and to avoid the submission 
of notices to both the board and one or more local agencies. 

SB 369281 vi :000009.0850 



( 4) The entity has made satisfactory arrangements with the board to maintain records 
filed under this part for extractions within the designated local area, and to make those 
records available to governmental agencies. 

SEC. 11. Section 5101 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5101. Each person who, after December 31, 1965, diverts water shall file with the 
board, prior to July 1 of the succeeding year, a statement of his diversion and use; 
provided, however, that no statement need be filed if the diversion is any of the 
following:(a) From a spring which does not flow off the property on which it is located. 

(b) Covered by an E1J3plication, g__permit or license to appropriate water. or a 
registration of appropriation for small domestic or livestock stockpond uses. on file with 
the board. 

( c) Included in a notice filed pursuant to Part 5 ( commencing with Section 4999) of 
this division. 

( d) Regulated by a watennaster appointed by the department. 

(e) Reported by the department in its hydrologie data bullB'lins. 

(f) Included in the consumptive use data for the delta lowlands published by the 
department in its hydrologic data bulletins . 

..Di.Included in annual reports filed with a court or the board by a watennaster 
appointed by a court or pursuant to statute to administer a final judgment detennining 
rights to water, which reports identify the persons who have diverted water and give the 
general place of use and the quantity of water which has been diverted from each source. 

_ill_For use in compliance with the provisions of Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 
1226) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of this division. 

(g) A diversion that occurs before Januazy 1, 2006. if any of the following applies: 

( 1) The diversion is covered by an application to appropriate water on file with the 
board. 

(2) The diversion is reported bv the department in its hydrolog;ic data bulletins. 

(3) The diversion is included in the consumptive used data for the delta lowlands 

SB 369281 vl:000009,0ES0 

67 



68 

published by the department in its hydrologic data bulletins. 

SEC. 12. Section 5106 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5106. (a) Neither the statements submitted under this part nor the determination of 
facts by the board pursuant to Section 5105 shall establish or constitute evidence of a 
right to divert or use water.(b) (1) The board may rely on the names and addresses 
included in statements submitted under this part for the purpose of detennining the names 
and addresses of persons who are to receive notices with regard to proceedings before the 
board. 

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), any person may submit, in writing, a request to the 
board to provide notification to a different address, and the board shall provide the 
notification to that address. 

(3) If the board provides notice to persons who file statements under this part, the 
notice shall not be determined to be inadequate on the basis that notice was not received 
by a person, other than a party to whom the board's action is directed, who fails to file a 
statement required to be filed under this part. 

( 4) This subdivision does not affect the requirement in Section 2527 to provide notice 
to all persons who own land that appears to be riparian to the stream system. 

(c) In any proceeding before the board to determine whether an application for a permit 
to appropriate water should be approved, any statement submitted under this part or 
determination by the board pursuant to Section 5105 is evidence of the facts stated 
therein. 

(d) In any proceeding before the board in which it is alleged that an appropriative right 
has ceased because water has not been put to beneficial use, any use occurring on or after 
January 1. 2006, that is required to be included in a statement submitted under this part 
shall be deemed not to have occurred unless it was reported in a statement submitted 
under this part, and the quantity used shall be deemed not to exceed the quantity reported. 

SEC. 13. Section 5107 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

5107. (a) The making of any willful misstatement pursuant to this part is a 
misdemeanor punishable by a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000) or by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not to exceed six months, or both.(b) Any person who 
fails to file a statement required to be filed under this part for a diversion or use that . 
occurs on or after January 1, 2006, or who makes a material misstatement pursuant to this 
part may be liable civilly as provided in subdivision (c ). 

(c) Civil liability may be administratively imposed by the board pursuant to Section 
1055 in an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500) for each violation. In 
determining the appropriate amount, the board shall consider all relevant circumstances, 

SB 369281 v\:000009.0850 



including, but not limited to, all of the following factors: 

(1) The extent ofharm caused by the violation. 

(2) The nature and persistence of the violation. 

(3) The length of time over which the violation occurs. 

( 4) Any corrective action undertaken by the violator. 

(d) All funds recovered pursuant to this section shall be deposited in the Water Rights 
Fund established pursuant to Section 1550. 

( e) Any person who fails to file a statement required to be filed under this part for a 
diversion or use that occurs on or after January 1, 2006, is ineligible for funds made 
available pursuant to any progran1 administered by the board. the department, or the 
California Bay-Delta Authority. 

SEC. 14. Section 5108 of the Water Code is repealed. 

5108. Statements filed pursuant to this part shall be for informational purposes only, 
!Hl4-nei!her the failure to file a statement nor Oil)' error in the infurmation filed shall have 
any legal consequences whatsoever other than those specified in this part. 

SEC. 15. Section 10004.5 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10004.5. As part of the requirement of the department to update The California Water 
Plan pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10004, the department shall include in the 
plan a discussion of various all of the following: (a) Various strategies, including, but not 
limited to, those relating to the development of new water storage facilities, water 
conservation, water recycling, desalination, conjunctive use, and water transfers that may 
be pursued in order to meet the future water needs of the state. ~artmcnt shall also 
include a discussion of the 

(b) The energy requirements of each strategy. 

(c) The potential for alternative water pricing policies to change current and projected 
uses. The depOJ.irnent shall include in-the plan a discussion of the 

( d) The potential advantages and disadvantages of each strategy and an identification 
of all federal and state permits, approvals, or entitlements that are anticipated to be 
required in order to implement the various components of the strategy. 

SEC. 16. Section 10004.6 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10004.6. (a) As part of updating The California Water Plan every five years pursuant 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 

69 



70 

to subdivision (b) of Section 10004, the department shall conduct a study to detern1ine 
the amount of water needed to meet the state's future needs and to recommend programs, 
policies, and facilities to meet those needs.(b) The department shall consult with the 
advisory committee established pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10004 in carrying 
out this section. 

( c) On or before January 1, 2002, and one One year prior to issuing each successive 
update to The California Water Plan, the department shall release a preliminary draft of 
the assumptions and other estimates upon which the study will be based, to interested 
persons and entities throughout the state for their review and comments. The department 
shall provide these persons and entities an opportunity to present written or oral 
comments on the preliminary draft. The department shall consider these documents when 
adopting the final assumptions and estin1ates for the study. For the purpose of carrying 
out this subdivision, the department shall release, at a mininlum, assumptions and other 
estimates relating to all of the following: 

(!) Basin hydrology, including annual rainfall, estimated uninlpaired stream flow, 
depletions, and consumptive uses. 

(2) Groundwater supplies, including estinlates of sustainable yield, supplies necessary 
to recover overdraft basins, and supplies lost due to pollution and other groundwater 
contanrinants. 

(3) Current and projected land use patterns, including the mix of residential, 
commercial, industrial, agricultural, and undeveloped lands. 

( 4) Environmental water needs, including regulatory in stream flow requirements, 
nonregulated instream uses, and water needs by wetlands, preserves, refuges, and other 
managed and unmanaged natural resource lands. 

(5) Current and projected population. 

( 6) Current and projected water use for all of the following: 

(A) Interior uses in a single-family dwelling. 

(B) Exterior uses in a single-family dwelling. 

(C) All uses in a multifamily dwelling. 

(D) Commercial uses. 

(E) Industrial uses. 

(F) Parks and open spaces. 

SB 369281 v\:000009.0850 



(7) Evapotranspiration rates for major crop types, including estimates of evaporative 
losses by irrigation practice and the extent to which evaporation reduces transpiration. 

(8) Current and projected adoption of urban and agricultural conservation practices. 

(9) Current and projected supplies of water provided by water recycling and reuse. 

(10) The energy required to provide current and projected water supplies. 

( d) The department shall include a discussion of the potential for alternative water 
pricing policies to change current and projected water uses identified pursuant to 
paragraph (6) of subdivision (c). 

(e) Nothing in this section requires or prohibits the department from updating any data 
necessary to update The California Water Plan pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 
10004. 

SEC. 17. Section 10620 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10620. (a) Every urban water supplier shall prepare and adopt an urban water 
management plan in the manner set forth in Article 3 ( commencing with Section 
10640).(b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has become an urban water supplier. 

(c) An urban water supplier indirectly providing water shall not include planning 
elements in its water management plan as provided in Article 2 (commencing with 
Section 10630) that would be applicable to urban water suppliers or public agencies 
directly providing water, or to their customers, without the consent of those suppliers or 
public agencies. 

(d) (1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by 
participation in areawide, regional, watershed, or basinwide urban water management 
planning where those plans will reduce preparation costs and contribute to the 
achievement of conservation and efficient water use. 

(2) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with other 
appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that share a common 
source, water management agencies, public utilities that provide electric or gas service 
and other relevant public agencies, to the extent practicable. 

(e) The urban water supplier may prepare the plan with its own staff, by contract, or in 
cooperation with other governmental agencies. 

(f) An urban water supplier shall describe in tl1e plan water management tools and 
options used by tl1at entity that will maximize resources and minin1ize the need to import 
water from other regions. 

SB 369281 vi :000009.0850 

71 



72 

SEC. 18. Section 10631 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

I 0631. A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter and shall do all of the 
following:(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected 
population, climate, and other demographic factors affecting the supplier's water 
management planning. T11e projected population estimates shall be based upon data from 
the state, regional, or local service agency population projections within the service area 
of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as 
data is available. 

(b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a). If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of water 
available to the supplier, all of the following information shall be included in the plan: 

(1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban water supplier, 
including plans adopted pursuant to Part 2.75 (commencing with Section 10750), or any 
other specific authorization for groundwater management. 

(2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water 
supplier pumps groundwater. For those basins for which a court or the board has 
adjudicated the rights to pump groundwater, a copy of the order or decree adopted by the 
court or the board and a description of the amount of groundwater the urban water 
supplier has the legal right to pump under the order or decree. For basins that have not 
been adjudicated, information as to whether the department has identified the basin or 
basins as overdrafted or has projected that the basin will become overdrafted if present 
management conditions continue, in the most current official departmental bulletin that 
characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, and a detailed description of the 
efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to eliminate the long-term overdraft 
condition. 

(3) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. The description 
and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, including, but not 
limited to, historic use records. 

(4) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater that 
is projected to be pumped by the urban water supplier. The description and analysis shall 
be based on information that is reasonably available, including, but not limited to, historic 
use records. 

(c) Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 
shortage, to the extent practicable, and provide data for each of the following: 

(1) An average water year. 

SB 369281 vl :000009.0850 



(2) A single dry water year. 

(3) Multiple dry water years. 

For any water source 1hat may not be available at a consistent level of use, given 
specific legal, environmental, water quality, or climatic factors, describe plans to 
supplement or replace that source with alternative sources or water demand management 
measures, to the extent practicable. 

( d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or 
Jong-term basis. 

( e) Quantify 1he energy requirements of each existing and planned water source 
identified in subdivisions (b) and (d). 

fil(l) Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over 
the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), and projected water use, 
identifying 1he uses among water use sectors including, but not necessarily limited to, all 
of the following uses: 

(A) Single-family residential. 

(B) Multifamily. 

(C) Commercial. 

(D) Industrial. 

(E) Institutional and governmental. 

(F) Landscape. 

(G) Sales to oilier agencies. 

(H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, or any 
combination thereof. 

(I) Agricultural. 

(2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a). 

_(g}_Provide a description of the supplier's water demand management measures. This 

S8 l692Bl vl:000009.0850 

73 



74 

description shall include all of the following: 

(1) A description of each water demand management measure that is currently being 
implemented, or scheduled for implementation, including the steps necessary to 
implement any proposed measures, including, but not limited to, all of the following: 

(A) Water survey programs for single-family residential and multifamily residential 
customers. 

(B) Residential plumbing retrofit. 

(C) System water audits, leak detection, and repair. 

(D) Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of existing 
connections. 

(E) Large landscape conservation programs and incentives. 

(F) High-efficiency washing machine rebate programs. 

(G) Public information programs. 

(H) School education programs. 

(I) Conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional accounts. 

(J) W110lesale agency programs. 

(K) Conservation pricing. 

(L) Water conservation coordinator. 

(M) Water waste prohibition. 

(N) Residential ultra-low-flush toilet replacement programs. 

(2) A schedule of implementation for all water demand management measures 
proposed or described in the plan. 

(3) A description of the methods, if any, that the supplier will use to evaluate the 
effectiveness of water demand management measures implemented or described under 
the plan. 

( 4) An estimate, if available, of existing consenration savings on water use within the 
supplier's service area, and the effect of the savings on the supplier's ability to further 
reduce demand. fgj 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 



filAn evaluation of each water demand management measure listed in paragraph (1) 
of subdivision tf)-.(g)_that is not cun-ently being implemented or scheduled for 
implementation. In the course of the evaluation, first consideration shall be given to water 
demand management measures, or combination of measures, that offer lower incremental 
costs tha11 expanded or additional water supplies. This evaluation shall do all of the 
following: 

(!) Talce into account economic and noneconomic factors, including environmental, 
social, health, customer inlpact, and technological factors. 

(2) Include a cost-benefit analysis, identifying total benefits and total costs . including, 
but not limited to. the energy costs a11d benefits of conserved water . 

(3) Include a description of funding available to inlplement any plarmed water supply 
project that would provide water at a higher unit cost. 

(4) Include a description of the water supplier's legal authority to inlplement the 
measure and efforts to work with other relevant agencies to ensure the implementation of 
the measure and to share the cost of inlplementation. 

Jil.Include a description of all water supply projects and water supply progr81Ils that 
may be undertalcen by the urban water supplier to meet the total projected water use as 
established pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10635. The urban water supplier shall 
include a detailed description of expected future projects and progr81Ils, other than the 
demand management progran1s identified pursuant to paragraph(!) of subdivision tf)-.(gl 
, that the urban water supplier may implement to increase the 81Ilount of the water supply 
available to the urban water supplier in average, single-dry, and multiple-dry water years. 
The description shall identify specific projects and include a description of the increase in 
water supply that is expected to be available from each project The description shall 
include an estimate with regard to the implementation tinleline for each project or 
progr81Il . 

..f.ilDescribe the opportunities for development of desalinated water, including, but not 
limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and groundwater, as a long-term supply. 

ill Urban water suppliers that are members of the California Urban Water 
Conservation Council and submit ammal reports to that council in accordance with the 
"Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California," 
dated September 1991, may submit the armual reports identifying water demand 

SB 369281 vJ:000009.0850 

i5 



management measures currently being implemented, or scheduled for implementation, to 
satisfy the requirements of subdivisions (f) and (g) and (h) . 

_ill_Urban water suppliers that rely upon a wholesale agency for a source of water, 
shall provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency for that 
source of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The 
wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for inclusion in 
the urban water supplier's plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the 
existing and planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the 
wholesale agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year increments, and 
during various water-year types in accordance with subdivision (c). An urban water 
supplier may rely upon water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in 
fulfilling the plan informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and ( c ). 

SEC. 19. Section 10644 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10644. (a) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State 
Library, and any city or county within which the supplier proYides water supplies entities 
listed in subdivision (b) a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. Copies of 
amendments or changes to the plans shall be submitted to the department, the California 
State Library, and any city or county within ,.vhieh the supplier provides water supplies 
entities listed in subdivision (b) within 30 days after adoption.(b) An urban water supplier 
shall file a copy of its plan and amendments or changes with each of the following 
entities: 

(1) The department. 

(2) Any city or county within which the urban water supplier provides water supplies. 

(3) Any groundwater management entity within which the urban water supplier 
extracts or provides water supplies. 

( 4) Any agricultural water supplier within which district the urban water supplier 
provides water supplies. 

(5) Any city or county library within which district the urban water supplier provides 
water supplies. 

(6) The California State Library. 

__(f}_ The department shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on or before December 
31, in the years ending in six and one, a report summarizing the status of the plans 
adopted pursuant to this part. The report prepared by the department shall identify the 
outstanding elements of the individual plans. The department shall provide a copy of the 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 



report to each urban water supplier that has submitted its plan to the depa1tment. The 
department shall also prepare reports and provide data for any legislative hearings 
designed to consider the effectiveness of plans submitted pursuant to this part. 

SEC. 20. Section 10645 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10645. Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of adopting its plan with the 
department , the urban water supplier and the department shall make the plan available 
for public review during no!1Ilal business h01Il'S-on the Internet Vvorld Wide Web site of 
the urban water supplier . 

SEC. 21. Section 10652 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10652. The California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 ( commencing with 
Section 21000) of the Public Resources Code) dees--not apply applies to the preparation 
and adoption of plans pursuant to this part er-and to the implementation of actions taken 
pursuant to Section 10632. Nothing in this part shall be interpreted as exempting from the 
California Environmental Quality Act any project that would significantly affect water 
supplies for fish and wildlife, or any project for implementation of the plan, other than 
projects implementing Section 10632, or any project for expanded or additional water 
supplies. 

SEC. 22. Section 10656 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10656. An urban water supplier that does not prepare, adopt, and submit its urban 
water management plan to the department in accordance with this part, is ineligible to 
receive funding pUFsuant to Division 24 (comnwncing with Sectisn 78500) er Divisisn 
26 (commencing with Section 79000), or rccciYc drsught assistance from the state funds 
made available pursuant to any program administered by the board, the department, or 
the California Bay-Delta Authority until the urban water management plan is submitted 
pursuant to this article. 

SEC. 23. Section 10657 oftl1e Water Code is repealed. 

-l-0657. (a) The department shall take into consideration v.'hether the UFban water 
ffilflPlier has submitted an updated urban 'Nater management plan that is consistent '.vith 
Section 10631, as amc-ruled by the act that adds this section, in detcrminin-g-whether4he 
urban '.vater supplier is eligible for funds made available pursuant to any program 
administered by the dcpartment.(b) This section shall remain in effect only until January 
1, 2006, and as sf that date is rspsnled, unless a later cn-aeted statute, that is enacted 
beferc January 1, 2006, deletes er Bl[tends that date. 

SEC. 24. Section 10753.7 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10753.7. (a) For tl1e purposes of qualifying as a groundwater management plan under 
th.is section, a plan shall contain the components that are set forth in th.is section. In 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 

77 



78 

addition to the requirements of a specific funding program, any local agency seeking state 
funds administered by the department. the board, or the California Bay-Delta Authority 
for the construction of groundwater projects or groundwater quality projects, excluding 
programs that are funded under Part 2. 78 ( commencing with Section 10795), shall do all 
of the following:(]) Prepare and implement a groundwater management plan that 
includes basin management objectives for the groundwater basin that is subject to the 
plan. The plan shall include components relating to the monitoring and management of 
groundwater levels within the groundwater basin, groundwater quality degradation, 
inelastic land surface subsidence, and changes in surface flow and surface water quality 
that directly affect groundwater levels or quality or are caused by groundwater pumping 
in the basin. 

(2) For the purposes of carrying out paragraph (1), the local agency shall prepare a plan 
to involve other agencies that enables the local agency to work cooperatively with other 
public entities whose service area or boundary overlies the groundwater basin. 

(3) For the purposes of carrying out paragraph (1 ), the local agency shall prepare a map 
that details the area of the groundwater basin, as defined in the department's Bulletin No. 
118, and the area of the local agency, that will be subject to the plan, as well as the 
boundaries of other local agencies that overlie the basin in which the agency is 
developing a groundwater management plan. 

( 4) The local agency shall adopt monitoring protocols that are designed to detect 
changes in groundwater levels, groundwater quality, inelastic surface subsidence for 
basins for which subsidence has been identified as a potential problem, and flow and 
quality of surface water that directly affect groundwater levels or quality or are caused by 
groundwater pumping in the basin. The monitoring protocols shall be designed to 
generate information that promotes efficient and effective groundwater management. 

(5) Local agencies that are located in areas outside the groundwater basins delineated 
on the latest edition oftl1e department's groundwater basin and subbasin map shall 
prepare groundwater management plans incorporating the components in this 
subdivision, and shall use geologic and hydrologic principles appropriate to those areas. 

(6) (A) The local agency shall update the plan on or before December 31. 2008, and 
every five years thereafter. The update will evaluate the progress made in achieving the 
adopted basin management obiectives, identify successes and shortcomings in meeting 
those objectives. revise the basin management obiectives as appropriate. and develop a 
plan to achieve the basin management objectives as they may or may not be revised. The 
updated plans are due on or before December 31 in years ending in three and eight. 

(B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A). a local agency is not required to update a 
groundwater management plan on or before December 31. 2008, if their plan was 
adopted on or after January 1, 2004. 

(b) (I) (A) A local agency may receive state funds administered by the department for 

SB 369281 vJ :000009.0850 



the construction of groundwater projects or for other projects that directly affect 
groundwater levels or quality if it prepares and implements, participates in, or consents to 
be subject to, a groundwater management plan, a basinwide management plan, or other 
integrated regional water management program or plan that meets, or is in the process of 
meeting, the requirements of subdivision (a). A local agency with an existing 
groundwater management plan that meets the requirements of subdivision (a), or a local 
agency that completes an upgrade of its plan to meet the requirements of subdivision (a) 
within one year of applying for funds, shall be given priority consideration for state funds 
administered by the department over local agencies that are in the process of developing a 
groundwater management plan. The department shall withhold funds from the project 
until the upgrade of the groundwater management plan is complete. 

(B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), a local agency that manages groundwater 
under any other provision of existing Jaw that meets the requirements of subdivision (a), 
or that completes an upgrade of its plan to meet the requirements of subdivision (a) 
within one year of applying for funding, shall be eligible for funding administered by the 
department. The department shall withhold funds from a project until the upgrade of the 
groundwater management plan is complete. 

(C) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), a local agency that conforms to the 
requirements of an adjudication of water rights in the groundwater basin is in compliance 
with subdivision (a). For purposes of this section, an "adjudication" includes an 
adjudication under Section 2101, an administrative adjudication, and an adjudication in 
state or federal court. 

(D) Subparagraphs (A) and (B) do not apply to proposals for funding under Part 2. 78 
( commencing with Section 10795), or to funds authorized or appropriated prior to 
September 1, 2002. 

(2) Upon the adoption of a groundwater management plan in accordance with this part, 
the local agency shall submit to the entities listed in paragraph (3) a copy of the plan no 
later than 30 days after the date of adoption. The local agency shall submit copies of 
amendments or changes to the plan to the entities listed in paragraph (3) within 30 days 
after the date of adoption . 

(3) A local agency shall file a copy of its plan and an1endrnents with each of the 
following: 

(A) The department. 

(B) Any city or county within which the groundwater basin lies in whole or i11 part. 

(C) Any urban water supplier that extracts or provides water supplies within the 
groundwater basm. 

(D) Anv agricultural water supplier that extracts or provides water supplies within the 

SB 369281 vl :000009.0850 

79 



80 

groundwater basin. 

(E) Any city or county library within which district the groundwater basin lies in 

whole or in part. 

(F) The California State Library. 

( 4) Not later than 30 days after the date of adopting its plan. the local agency shall 
make the plan available for public review on the local agency's Internet World Wide Web 

site. 

SEC. 25. Section 10811 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10811. "Conservation" means the use of cost-effective measures that reduce 
e¥apotranspiratiou, evaporatiou, or flows to unusable v,ater bodies in order to preveut the 
waste, the unreasouable use, or the unreasouable method of use of•.vater do either of the 
following: (a) Reduce existing irrecoverable losses by reducing losses currently 
unavailable for reuse because they flow to salt sink or an inaccessible or degraded 
aquifer, or evaporate to the atmosphere. 

(b) Reduce diversions or extractions while maintaining the current social and 
economic benefits of the current uses of water .. 

SEC. 26. Section 10814 of the Water Code is an1ended to read: 

10814. "Plan" means an agricultural water management plan prepared pursuant to this 
part. A plan shall describe and evaluate reasonable and practical efficient uses and 
conservation activities. The compoucuts of the plan may vary according to an area!s 
characteristics and its capabilities to couse~r cfficicntJy,-The plan shall 
address measures for agricultural water management as set forth in Article 2 
(commencing with Section 10830) 10825) of Chapter 3. In addition, a strategy and time 
schedule for implementation shall be included in the plan. 

SEC. 27. Section 10816 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

I 0816. "Agricultural water supplier" or "supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or 
privately owned, supplying more than 50,000 2.000 acre-feet of water annually for 
agricultural purposes. An agricultural water supplier includes a supplier or contractor for 
water, regardless of the basis of right, which distributes or sells for ultimate resale to 

customers. 

SEC. 28. Section 10820 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10820. (a) The reqrnrements of this part shall be satisfied by any water managemem--eF 
· eet--foderal or state !&NS or regulations which 

substantially include the--Bentents ofa plan re{jllired under this part if that plan v.as 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 



~er January 1, 1981.(b) Those suppliers that have prepared, or are preparing, 
~escribed in subdkision (a) shall submit that ploo lo the ec~ 
H~eember31, 1991. 

SEC. 29. Section I 0820 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

10820. (a) An agricultural water supplier shall prepare and adopt an agricultural water 
management plan in the manner set forth in this chapter on or before December 31, 
2010.(b) Every person that becomes an agricultural water supplier shall adopt an 
agricultural water management plan within one year after the date it has become an 
agricultural water supplier. 

(c) An agricultural water supplier indirectly providing water shall not include planning 
elements in its water management plan as provided in Article 2 (commencing with 
Section I 0825) that would be applicable to agiicultural water suppliers or public agencies 
directly providing water, or to their customers, without the consent of those suppliers or 
public agencies. 

( d) (!) An agricultural water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by 
participation in areawide, regional, watershed, or basinwide urban water management 
planning if those plans will reduce preparation costs and contribute to the achievement of 
conservation and efficient water use. 

(2) An agricultural water supplier, to the extent practicable, shall coordinate the 
preparation of its plan with otl1er appropriate agencies in the area, including, but not 
limited to, other water suppliers that share a common source, water management 
agencies, and relevant public agencies. 

(e) An agricultural water supplier may prepare the plan with its own staff, by contract, 
or in cooperation with other governmental agencies. 

(f) An agricultural water supplier shall describe in the plan water management tools 
and options used by that entity that will maximize resources and minimize the need to 
import water from other regions. 

SEC. 30. Section 10821 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10821. (a) Every agricultural water supplier serving water eirectly to customers shall 
prepare an infom1ational report based on information from the last three irrigation 
:;easons on its ,,vatcr management and conseFYation practices in the manner set forth in 
Miele 2 (commencing with Section 10825) and shall submit the report to the department 
not later than December 31, 1989.(b) The iRformational report shall include a 
determination ofwhethBr-th€ supplier has a significant opportunity to conserve water eF 

reduce the quantity of highly saliRc or toxic drainage water through impron,d irrigation 
water management in the manner set forth in subdivision (g) of Section 10825. 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 

~ · 81 



82 

(c) Supp Ji ers may consult with appropriate state agencies or the Agricultural 
Experiment Station to help determine whether significant opportunities exist. State 
agencies shall coOj')Brate 'Nith agricultural •,:ater suppliers in any reasonable manner. 

(d) Those suppliers that determine that a significant opportunity exists to conserYe 
water or reduce the quantity of highly saline or toxic drainage '1.'atcr in the manner set 
forth in subdivision (g) of Section 10825 shall prepare and adopt an agricultural water 
management plan based on information from the last three irrigation seasons in the 
manner set forth in Section 10826 and shall submit the plan to the department not later 
than December 31, 1991. 

SEC. 31. Section 10821 is added to the Water Code , to read: 

10821. (a) An agricultural water supplier shall update its plan at least once every five 
years on or before December 31, in years ending in five and zero.(b) An agricultural 
water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall notify a:ny city or 
county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the urban water supplier 
will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or changes to the plan. The 
agricultural water supplier may consult with, and obtain comments from, any city or 
county that receives notice pursuant to this subdivision. 

( c) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the 
manner set forth in Atiicle 3 ( commencing with Section 10840). 

SEC. 32. Section 10822 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10822. Every person that becomes an agricultural water supplier after Dooomb6r-*, 
1988, shall oomply ·.vith thc~ents of this part within Pi'i'o years aftSf-beoorning an 
agrieultural 'Nater s!!pplier to an arG&.-

SEC. 33. Section 10823 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10823. An agricultural water supplier indirectly providing water to customers may 
adopt an agriculrural 'Nater management plan or participate~ 
watershed, or basinv:ide agris!!lt!Eal '.Yater management planning. 

SEC. 34. Section 10824 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10821. An agricultural water supplier may satisf)' the requirements of this part by 
participation in areawide, regional, watershed, or basinwide agricultural water 
management planning where those plans will rcd!!ce preparation costs and contribute to 
~servation and efficient water use and ·.vherc those plans satisf)' the 

~ 

SEC. 35. Section 10825 of the Water Code is repealed. 

SB 369281 vl :000009.0850 



10825. To the extent information is available, the reports shall ad<lress all of the 
follov:ing:(a) The quantity and source ofwater-del±vcred to, and by, the supplier. 

(b) Other sources ofv:atcr used within the service area, such as groundwater and other 
diversions. 

(c) A general description of the supplier's water delivery system and senqce area, 
including a map. 

(d) Total irrigated acreage within the sen•ice area. 

(e) The amount of acreage of trees and vines grcv;n within the service area. 

(f) An identification of all of the following: (1) Current water consen•ation and 
reclamation practices being used. 

(2) P!a11S for changing current ,vater conservation plans. 

(3) Conservation educational services being used. 

(g) A determination of whether the supplier, through improved irrigation v;ater 
management, has a significant opportunity to do one or both of the fo!lov:ing: 

(1) Save water by means of reduced evapotranspiration, evaporation, or reduction of 
flo'il'S to unusalJ!e Y.'flter bodies that fail to sen•e fur.:her beneficial uses, 

-f.B-Roducc the quantity of highly saline or toxic drainage water. 

SEC. 36. Section 10825 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

10825. It is the intent of the Legislature, in enacting this part, to permit levels of water 
management planning commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the 
volume of water supplied. 

SEC. 37. Section 10826 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10826. To thlHllHCnt infonnation is available, the plans shall address all of tho 
following:(a) Tho quantity and source of surface water, groundwate~ 
del±¥ered to and by the supplier. 

(b) f, description of all of tho following: 

(1) The water delivery system used in the area supplied~ 

(2) The beneficial uses of the water supplied, including noncrop beneficial uses, 

SB 369281 vJ:000009.0850 

83 



84 

(3) Co:ajmictivc use programs. 

(1) Incidental and planned groundwater recharge. 

(5) \~1ater recycling programs, inch1ding treatment and distribution facilities. 

(6) The amollnts of the delivered water that are lost to further beneficial use to 
unusable bodies of water or moisture deficient soils through the follov:ing: 

(A) Crop e·:apotranspiration. 

(B) Noncrop evapotranspiration. 

(C) E,,aporation from water surfaces. 

(D) Surface f]o,.,., or pcrnolation. 

(c) An identification of cost effective and economically feasible measures for water 
conservation and recycling, their res!!lting detriments and benefits, and the impacts on 
amounts of downstream surface '.Valer supply and immediately adjacent groundv:ater 
supply. 

(d) An evaluation of other significant irapacts, including irapacts Y:ithin the service 
area and downstream on fish and wildlife habitat, water quality, energy use, and other 
factors of either---lBcal or statewide concern or interstate concern, where applicable. 
,r\Jternatives should be designed to minimi20e impacts on other beneficial users currently 
being served both within and without the se~d to result in improved ovcra11 
'Nater management, 

-( e) A schedule prepared by the supplier to iraplemcnt those 'Nater management 
practices that it determines to be cost effective and economically feasible. Priority shall 
be-gwen to those ,vater management practices, or combination of practices, that offer 
lower incrc-mental costs than expanded or additional ,,vater supplie!r. 

SEC. 38. Section 10826 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

10826. A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter and shall do all of the 
following:(a) Describe the agricultural water supplier and the service area, including all 
of the following: 

(1) History and size of the service area. 

(2) Location of the service area and its water management facilities. 

(3) Terrain and soils. 

SB 369281 vi :000009.0850 



( 4) Climate. 

(5) Operating rules and regulations. 

(6) Water delivery measurements or calculations. 

(7) Water rate schedules and billing. 

(8) Water shortage allocation policies. 

(b) Describe the quantity and quality of water resources of the agricultural water 
supplier, including all of the following: 

(1) Surface water supply. 

(2) Groundwater supply. 

(3) Other water supplies. 

( 4) Source water quality monitoring practices. 

(5) Water uses within the water supplier's service area, including all of the following: 

(A) Agricultural. 

(B) Environmental. 

(C) Recreational. 

(D) Municipal and industrial. 

(E) Groundwater recharge. 

(F) Transfers and exchanges. 

( G) Other water uses. 

( 6) Drainage from the water supplier service area. 

(7) Water accounting, including: 

(A) Quantifying the water supplier's water supplies. 

(B) Tabulate water uses. 

(C) Overall water budget. 

SB 369281 vl:000009.0850 

85 



88 

(8) Water supply reliability. 

(c) Review previous water management activities. 

( d) Identify efficient water management practices. 

(e) Develop a schedule for program implementation, estimate the budget needed for 
implementation, and identify the results expected from full implementation of the 
agricultural water management plan. 

SEC. 39. Section 10840 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10840. Every agricultural water supplier required to preparn a v.ater management plan 
pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 10821 shall prepare its plan pursuant to Section 
10820 ,-\rticle 2 (commencing with Section 10825). 

SEC. 40. Section 10841 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10841. Ea}-An agricultural water supplier required to prepare a plan may consult with, 
and obtain comments from, any public agency or state agency or any person who has 
special expertise with respect to water conservation and reclamation and management 
methods and techniques. (b) In order to assist agricultural water suppliers in obtaining 
needed expertise as provided for in subdivision (a), the department, upDfrrcquest of an 
agricultural •.vater supplier, shall provide the supplier with a list ofpersons or agencies 
hadng eKpertise or sqierience in the development of water management plans. 

~epartmcnt shall prepare by July 1, 1988, an outline ofmodol informational 
reports and Viator management plans which an agricultural water supplier~ 

• 
0 

• • IDJcnts of this part. 

SEC. 41. Section 10844 of the Water Code is amended to read: 

10844. {&An agricultural water supplier shall file with the department entities listed in 
subdivision (b) a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. Copies of 
amendments or changes to the plans shall be filed with the department-entities listed in 
subdivision (b) within 30 days after adoption. Not late,- than January 1, 1993, tho 
department shall prepare and submit to the Logislati.rre-a-report summarizing the status of 
the plans adopted pursuant to this part. 

(b) An agricultural water supplier shall file a copy of its plan and amendments or 
changes to the plan with each of the following entities: 

(I) The department. 

(2) Any city or county. or city and county. within which the agricultural water supplier 

SB 369281 vJ:000009.0850 



provides water supplies. 

(3) Any groundwater management entities within which the agricultural water supplier 
extracts or provides water supplies. 

( 4) Any urban water supplier within which district the arncultural water supplier 
provides water supplies. 

(5) Any city or county library within which district the agricultural water supplier 
provides water supplies. 

( 6) The California State Library. 

( c) The department shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on or before December 
31. in the years ending in six and one, a report summaiizing the status of the plans 
adopted pursuant to this part. The report prepared by the department shall identify the 
outstanding elements of the individual plans. The department shall provide a copy of the 
report to each urban water supplier that has submitted its plan to the department. The 
department shall also prepare reports and provide data for any legislative hearings 
designed to consider the effectiveness of plans submitted pursuant to this part. 

SEC. 42. Section 10845 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10845. The adoption ofa plan or suhmission ofa report as specified in subdivision (cl) 
ofS-Oction 10821 satisfies any requirements of state statute, regulation, or order, 
including those of the State Water Resources Control Board, for the preparation of water 
management plans. If the b• af€1-f€{j-Uires additional information concerning water 
eenservation to implement its existing authority, nothing in this part limits the hoard in 
ootaining that information. 

SEC. 43. Section 10845 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

10845. The adoption of a plan as specified in Section I 0820 satisfies any requirements 
of state statute, regulation, or order, including those of the State Water Resources Control 
Board, for the preparation of water management plans. If the State Water Resources 
Control Board requires additional information concerning water conservation to 
in1plement its existing authority, nothing in this part linuts that board in obtaining that 
information. 

SEC. 44. Section 10853 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10853. The department, from funds appropriated for this purpose, shall reimburse 
each supplieF-preparing an informational report pursuant to this part for the cost incurred 
~ort up to an amount, not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per 
report. The department shall rcimhurse ~rcparing an agricultural water 
management plan pursuant to this part fBF-th-e oosts incurred by the supplier in preparing 

SB 369281 vl :000D09.0850 

87 



88 

the plan up to an arnount,Hot to eiweed 1:lventy five thousand dollars ($25,000½ier plan. 

SEC. 45. Section 10853 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

10853. The adoption of a plan as specified in Section 10820 satisfies any requirements 
of state statute, regulation, or order, including those of the State Water Resources Control 
Board, for the preparation of water management plans. If the State Water Resources 
Control Board requires additional information concerning water conservation to 
implement its existing authority, nothing in this part limits that board in obtaining that 
information. 

SEC. 46. Section 10854 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10851. No agricultural v,ater supplier shall be required to prepare an agricultural water 
management plan pursuant to this part unless funds are appropriated by the Legislature 
for the 1990 91 fiscal year, or before, to reimburse the agricultural 'Nater supplier for its 
easts associated 'Nith the plans. 

SEC. 47. Section 10854 is added to the Water Code, to read: 

10854. An agricultural water supplier that does not prepare, adopt, and submit its 
agricultural water management plan in accordance with this part, is ineligible to receive 
funds made available pursuant to any program administered by the State Water Resources 
Control Board, the department, or the California Bay-Delta Authority until the 
agricultural water management plan is submitted pursuant to this article. 

SEC. 48. Section 10855 of the Water Code is repealed. 

10855. This part shall remain operatwe only until January 1, 1993, except that, ifan 
agricu!tmal 'Nater supplier fails to submit its information report or agrioultural water 
management plan prior to January 1, 1993, this part shall remain operative with respeet-te 
that supplier until it has submitted its report or plan, or both. 

Copyright 2004 State Net. All Rights Reserved. 

SB 369281 vi :000009.0850 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

IV. INFORMATION 

I. Newspaper Articles 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/ gold __print.cgi 

I of 3 

~~ p•r= @,com 
The Prese~E11ter1irise 

Dean OK'd for water cleanup 

$69 million plan: The tainted underground reservoir serves 600,000 Inland 
residents. 

11:38 PM PST on Friday, February 18, 2005 

By CHRIS RICHARD and K. FRANKE SANTOS/ The Press-Enterprise 

The federal government has signed a consent decree freeing $69 million 
to clean up San Bernardino water contamination caused by an Army 
facility during World War II. 

Local water districts now are maneuvering to protect water supplies that 
they pump from the basin before the final plan goes into effect. The 
Bunker Hill Basin provides drinking water to 600,000 people in San 
Bernardino and Riverside counties, said Stacy Alstadt, deputy general 
manager of San Bernardino's city water department. 

The consent decree, a roadmap for directing complex settlement 
agreements, removes major legal and financial roadblocks that could 
delay a resolution of the issue for decades. 

The decree, a document as thick as a big-city telephone directory, 
dictates how San Bernardino will spend a one-time payout -- from a 
Justice Depmiment fund used to pay legal claims against the government 
-- over a period of 50 years. 

WATER DEAL 

The U.S. Justice 
Department has signed 
off on an agreement for 
the San Bernardino 
Water Department to 
clean up contamination 
dating from World War 
II. 

The City Gets: $69 
million in a lump sum. 

What it's for: Cleanup 
efforts lasting another 50 
years. 

The decree gives San Bernardino money to pay for and operate a water-cleaning system in the Bunker 
Hill Basin, which sits beneath the city. There also is money to reimburse the federal Environmental 
Protection Agency for its future oversight costs. 

The agreement is important from the perspectives of public health and resource management, since it 
concerns a drinking-water basin that serves hundreds of thousands of people. 

The EPA already has built the cleanup wells, which pump water polluted with the solvents 
tetrachloroethylene and trichloroethylene from the Bunker Hill Basin. The solvents both have been 
classified as probable carcinogens by health agencies. 

The solvents were used at a north San Bernardino Army camp to clean tents and oil roads. They seeped 
into the ground, creating a plume of contaminants in groundwater. The plume has gradually spread 
southeast from the original camp site. 

Under the cleanup procedure, after the water is pumped from the wells it goes to nearby filtration plants 
that remove the contan1inants and transfer the purified water into city pipelines. 

89 
2/28/2005 2:07 PM 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/ gold _print.cgi 

90 
2 of 3 

Federal Judge Mariana R. Pfaelzer has set a March 14 hearing to review the agreement, said Alstad!. 

"We are really anticipating a consent decree will be entered within the next month to month and a half," 
she said. Judges frequently take that long to consider a case before rendering a decision, she said. 

With the decree in force, Alstad! said, "all the obligations of all the parties are clear and we have a clear 
roadmap as to who does what. If it's not entered quickly, we run into a time pe1iod where things have to 
get done, things have to be paid for, and everybody's saying, 'OK, we'll cough up the money and rely on 
the fact that the consent decree will be signed.' " 

Meanwhile, neighb01ing water agencies have been trying to make sure the proposed solution to San 
Bernardino's water contamination doesn't cause problems for them, from a loss of water rights to 
increased risk of earthquake damage. 

On Tuesday, Rialto withdrew its objections to the consent decree because of a tentative agreement with 
San Bernardino. Originally, the consent decree included language that would have allowed San 
Bernardino to limit other parties' pumping. Rialto officials wonied that would mean giving away their 
water rights within the Bunker Hill Basin. 

Rialto has a right to pump at least 11,000 acre-feet annually from the Bunker Hill aquifer, but cun-ently 
pumps about 5,000 acre-feet annually, said Robert Owen, Rialto city attorney. An acre-foot is 326,000 
gallons, or enough to supply two average households for a year. 

The two wells in the Bunker Hill Basin represent about 40 percent of Rialto's supply, Owen said. The 
city supplies water to about half its residents, with the other half is supplied by the West Valley Water 
District. 

Under the tentative agreement, Rialto will pump about half of its cun-ent production from the two 
Bunker Hill wells, and San Bernardino will supply the remainder at Rialto's production cost, said Rialto 
City Administrator Henry Garcia. 

Rialto pays about$ 135 per acre-foot for pumping, said City Councilman Ed Scott. 

The agreement has not been put into writing, Scott said. If it is, it will be good for one year, to allow San 
Bernardino to determine how water flows in the aquifer, he said. Rialto has problems with water 
contamination by perchlorate, which officials believe was washed into the Rialto-Colton aquifer by the 
military and operations at an industrial site in north Rialto. If another well becomes tainted by 
perchlorate, the city may drill a new well in either basin, Garcia said. 

San Bernardino also is negotiating with the Western Municipal Water District, which provides water for 
western Riverside county from Temecula to the county's northern border, and the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District, which oversees groundwater storage in a 325-square-mile area extending from 
Bloomington to Yucaipa. 

Those agencies jointly filed a lawsuit in December, claiming that in planning the cleanup, San 
Bernardino failed to complete state-mandated environmental reviews. 

Attorney Piero Dallarda, representing Western and Valley, withdrew the suit two days after he filed it. 
He said he's in settlement talks and expects a favorable outcome, but declined to comment further. 

The court filing claims that the pumping and filtration procedures jeopardize the plaintiffs' tights to 

2/28/2005 2:07 PM 



Printed from pc.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/hi/go!d _print.cgi 

3 of 3 

167,238 acre-feet of water. Further, the decree could restrict access to spreading fields where the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District allows water to percolate underground to recharge the 
aquifer. The filing also alleged that the pumping plan under the consent decree could hasten the spread 
of contaminants from the plume. 

The suit also raised concerns about earthquake safety. The water table in the southern Bunker Hill Basin 
area rises to within IO feet of the surface and, dming an earthquake, the land would be prone to 
liquefaction, the court filing claims. 

Alstad! declined to comment on the court filing or to discuss settlement talks. She said several other 
agencies have filed fonnal comments on the consent decree. All have joined settlement discussions to 
work out a management plan for the Bunker Hill area, Alstad! said. 

Reach Chris Richard at (909) 806-3076 or c1ichard@pe.com 

Reach K. Franke Santos at (909) 806-3065 orfsantos@pe.com 

Online at: http://www.pe.com/localnews/sanbernardino/stories/PE_News_Local_decree19.580ed.html 

91 
2/28/2005 2:07 PM 



92 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold _print.cgi 

I of I 

The Press-Enterprise 

San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors - 02/16 

11:23 AM PST on Wednesday, February 16, 2005 

The Press-Enterprise 

San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors 

The Board of Supervisors approved changes to its meeting rules that would allow for holdings 
meetings outside of the city of San Bernardino. 

The changes also call for the adoption of a calendar of scheduled meetings instead of holdings 
meetings every Tuesday. 

Board chainnan Bill Postmus, who proposed the changes, said it would increase efficiency to skip 
meetings on weeks when there is little business to consider. He also said it would be beneficial for the 
board to get out more to the outlying areas of the county, such as the High Desert area he represents. 

A proposed calendar will be brought back to the board for approval March 1. The board approved a 
general plan amendment in Mentone, rezoning a 4.78-acre parcel from multi-family to single-family 
housing. 

The parcel is part of a larger, 14-acre piece ofland for which the board also approved a tentative tract 
map for 44 lots, between 7,240 to 16,662 square feet, on the north side of Colton Avenue. 

The board approved a state legislative platfonn for 2005, outlining nine areas where it plans to lobby 
the state government. 

The priorities include: requesting $20 million in perchlorate cleanup funds; pressing for a law to 
make reckless driving that results in great bodily injury a felony; securing funding for three she1iff's 
helicopters; and supporting legislation to give counties more say in the placement of sex offenders in 
group homes. 

Other issues in the platform deal with airport funding, taxes, constmction design, the auth01ity of the 
local Children and Families Commission, and water-bond funding. 

The board agreed to authorize the creation of a new employee bargaining unit for nurses. 

The per diem nurses unit will include registered nurses who are not part of the regular nurses unions. 

On line at: http://www. pe. com/local news/sa n berna rd i no/stories/PE_ News_ Local_ bs upes 16. 5 7f2e. html 

93 
2/28/2005 2:09 PM 



94 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



I of2 

http://www.dailybulletin.com/cda/artic!e/prinliO, 167 4 ,203'¼,257E2 I ... 

Inland Valley Daily Bulletin 

Officials: Upland eyeing Hesperia's city manager 
Some deny search has started, while others point to Quincey 
By EDWARD BARRERA 
Staff Writer 

Friday, February 25, 2005 - UPLAND - Robb Quincey, Hesperia's city manager, is the leading 
candidate to become Upland's next city manager following the abrupt departure of Michael Milhiser 
last Tuesday, according to officials familiar with the situation. 

Quincey, a resident of Chino, also is president of the Monte Vista Water District. He has been 
Hesperia's city manager since 2000, according to a water district official. 

Quincey did not return repeated phone calls. 

Three officials familiar with Upland's city manager search confinned Quincey's status this week but 
requested anonymity. 

Councilman Ray Musser acknowledged that he also has heard about the interest in Quincey, though no 
council discussions have been held about the city manager's position. 

"I have heard from multiple sources that Robb is the favorite candidate. I really don't know him as an 
individual and his qualifications," Musser said on Friday. "I didn't know about it until three days ago." 

Milhiser resigned Tuesday, accepting a lucrative consultant deal with the city worth at least $200,000. 

While Mayor John Pomierski and Councilmen Ken Willis and Brendan Brandt said they were acceding 
to Milhiser's request to obtain more outside consultant work, others, including Musser and Councilman 
Tom Thomas, said the decision was rushed and reached without discussion. 

Musser added that Milhiser was pushed out because he clashed once too often with council members. 

A Monte Vista Water spokeswoman said Quincey was elected to the Monte Vista board in 1993 and 
has been re-elected twice. He has been board president since 1995. Before being elected to the board, 
Quincey was general manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, the spokeswoman said. 

Hesperia, in the high desert of north San Bernardino County, has a population of just under 63,000, 
according to the 2000 Census. Upland's population is about 68,000. 

Pomierski, who on Tuesday said there was no front-runner for city manager, did not return phone calls. 
Willis could not be reached for comment. 

Though Thomas praised Quincey, he said Upland's city manager search hasn't even stmied, and a 
selection process for any nominee will be discussed at Monday's council meeting. 

95 
2/28/2005 2:24 PM 



96 
2 of2 

http://www.dailybulletin.com/cdalarticle/print/O, I 674,203%257E2 I ... 

"I !mow Robb personally, and I think he would be an excellent candidate, but no decision has been 
made," he said. 

Musser and Brandt back an in-depth search for any candidate, with Brandt saying he had not heard that 
Quincey was in line for the position. 

"I have not had any people mention any names, and it is my position that I think we should do a 
thorough and proper search for city manager," Brandt said. 

Hesperia Councilwoman Rita Vogler said she had heard tumors of Quincey's possible move but that 
she had not been officially notified by Quincey. She did say he would be an excellent candidate for 
Upland's opening. At Monday's meeting, the City Council also will consider the appointment of city 
Finance Director Stephen Dunn as the intetim city manager. 

Pomierski mentioned Dunn as a possible interim manager two weeks ago, though no one voted on the 
choice. The finance director has been acting as city manager since Milhiser's resignation. 

On Thursday, Dunn announced the appointment of police Capt. Steve Adams as intetim police chief, 
though police Chief Martin Thouvenell is on board until his March 31 retirement. 

The City Council's Monday meeting will start at 7 p.m. at City Hall, 460 N. Euclid Ave. 

Edward Ban-era can be reached by e-mail atedward.ban-era@dailybulletin.com or by phone at (909) 
483-9356. 

2/28/2005 2:24 PM 



Water 
Supplies 
Still Not 
Norina! 
BY llccTOlt B1:c1m11r,. 
1lmr~:llnJ!Wtl/rr 

'l11!n yenr mny net recortlr. f(1r 
the nmr.l mln, hul ll won't. bC! 
enuugh to revcrne lhC! lmpncl uf 
!lve yenrn or drouitht on 
souU1ern Cn!!fomln'r. waler r.up. 
p\lcr., 1venlher Clqmrts 1111 ti w11 Lcr 
omcln!r, r.u!tl Wednc~dny. 

Lm:nl nupp!le:i hnve Improved 
urently. i\Jl 27 of Los A111iclen 
counly~i 11rount1w11tcr co!lccUnu 
\Jnslnr. nrc nllcd ta cnpuc!IJ, the 
coun!,y'r. Pcpnrtme11t or Publlc 
Worlm r.nkl. Shnllnr!y, the B!cm1 
Ncvndn r.nawpnc!i - nn lmpor
lnnt r.otm:c of wot.er for lhc re
gion - Ir. •to% nhovc namml lhls 
r.crmnn. 

nul Ute COlorudo ll.lvcr reser
voirs rmmdn rur below nonnnl 
!cvv.la. Abnul 70% or Uw wuler 
ur.ed In Bm1lhem Cn!Jrom!n Is 
lmportcd from the river nr. well 
U/i rrom the Cnllrom111 At'!UCdUd 
In Norlhem Cn!lfom!n nnd Ute 
Skrrn Ncvudll, r.nld Denln Wol
cott, n npoJwr,mnn for Um Melro
Jmlll.nn WJllerD!r.trlcl. 

Wl!llnm Putzcrl, 11 mcleorol1i-
1llr.t nl the ,fol Propul:ilon Lnbo
mtory In Ln Cnlintln Fllnlrlil11c, 
nnld lhnl nllhDullh Sout11cm 
Cnllfnmln hml hnd much henvler 
min limn usunl, lhc upper Colo
rndo ll\~•er Hnr.ln conti1me11 lo 
r.u!Tcr rrmn n pmlonjletl tlrouuht. 
It h11:i received lcm1mJn lhtm Lor. 
/\.1111eles. 

Lnke Mend nnd Luke Powell, 
which nm fed by lhe COlomdo 
River, remuln nl only nbout 511% 
nml 31% full, rer.pccllvely, 1mJtl 
Debrn Mnn, chler operollnll om. 
ci:r of lhe MelrnpoUtnn Writer 
Dlslrlcl, Which ln!lllUW,?:l lhe d!r,. 
ttihullon or wnU:-rlo II plelhom nf 

Lots of rain, but drought persists 
An llllUnunl we11Lher pnU.r.m c11u1;cd by pcrslslcnl. hl1\h prc5r,urn 
nvcr llrn Oulror A!nr.\m t111s dnim:lml mrn;l of C.."nllfumla t,hlr, ycnr, 
tnJt lhc r,Lonnr. hllVC! nul fully oIT:;nl. ycarr. or pruvhnrn druunhl. 

TIie rain wouldn't stop ••• 

0 O,y hi11h· 
prns~um ~.y~lcm 
-"b!ocl1111g 
!iich" -5fafos 
north, 

{)/11t1ic1ut 
strmim !()111,s 
nn uv;i! slmpe 
n1mmd lhc 
h111h. 

0Awul !ow· 
pressure 
~,y5tuin f\Cl5 ClJ1 
nil !rnm lh<:i jet 
~l11i11rn. 

0Wi111 till Wll\d 
to d1 lvu !1 e,1"t, 
1h11 low ~Ian,, 
5p;,1nir1t1 rn!n 
a:;lmre fur 1foys. 

CMMIJA 

but tho drought Isn't completely gone 
C.1li!o11it,1's s11owp,1ck Is !Im henvil!s! il h,1s been 1n 10 yen1s, bu\ sume 
n1n.is, lncludinn Urn mmnnlh Dasln ot Orcr:on nm! the Uppe1 Colurndo 
Rlv~r Bnsh1, remain undor tlrnughl co11dl1lons, 

Smnvp.,ck 
W"lcr conkut, % of nonnnl % 11! ycnrly 

Rcr,lon In lnchci: yc.,r•to•d"lc \olnl nvcrngc• 

N~~\hcm Sierra 27.90 119% " Cenlfnl Sicm1 34,50 124 101 

Southern Sierrn 33.20 160 126 

Sl/1l~wido 32.30 l3'3 llO 

•~""!] .,,1,..,1,teol ,.,,.,,,,i.,,,, • .,"""""""'1.,1""'!," u.-,.,,,,.,,, 
d!r.lrlcl!J nerving Ill mll!lon pco- l!ey rosenolr slor.:,J:.e In C1111fotnl11 
pie ln Bout.hem Cnllfoml11. Fnr 
the nrol lime since mno, hydrolo- nei:ervolr River % of avcrnnc 

[llr.L,lnllltlu11perColomtloR1ver Trimly L,1,e 
Bnsln nre prcd!cllnc near-nor- Shas!n t,1k1? 
mnl wnler now.'> Into Lnlw Pow- tai,~"Orovillc 
eU, one of the Wer,l'n b!gl.(l!r.t tl°!r.• 1JP.V,"l,t;11mt15 13nr' hi'~,·• 
urvolro. fofoOin toh~ 

Lu!te Mcnd'n 11liim1:u level, 
however, hi ei<11ectcd lo drop, 111 
purl Uur.nur.c orwutcr relMr.ur. t.n 
ltecp the Cntormlo River nowln(l'. 
lo protect nr.h nnd hnbltnt, r.ultl 

NCW i.foionwi·n,·:; 
boii" l'cdrn hr.'s' 
t.1i«if,ki:luiii 
Mil1er1iiii" L.1h!! 

Wolcott. P"i1\0 Fini" tlc5 
Mcleorolog1r.l'l nnd othcrn lsnblill,, 

r.nld tlmt lhc ColorndD River re. s,,ii"Liiis tlcii · 
glon hns r.ufforctl lllrnu1:h yenrs 

F~aurnr 
Yub,1 

/\1rnnicm1 
. Slm1i~l,111, 

liroltm1111i 
McrcmJ 

Sn 1, _Jonqum, 
l\ing~ 
l\ern 

{Olb1mii111) 

of drought cumJlllrms, nnd llmt U.S. drought sltuauol1111: of r.ib, 15 
one wet yenr won't brlng wnfor 
hivclr. bnc!; tu nomml Abnouno!!y dry Modemte dr11ugllt 

-111lr. Ir. lhl! 1,111d oryenr pen- 1!±1 Eitrnme drour,hl E§I EitepU111ml droughl 
ple lmvii been 1Lilt!r1g for, nm! 
llwy're gelling moro limn they 
1Jni11nlnell ror,~ r.n!d !telly Red. 
mom!, re1:ton11! t•llmnto1outi:L for 
lht! Western Reg!o11nl CUmnle 
O!ntcr ln Reno. "But wlwn 
~·011're ln n tlenclt, !L'a lmnJ ror 
wot.er mmrn1:ers to tum wnler 
tlown.~ • 

Bob Wulsh, r.polwmmm rur 
Urn U.S. Burenu or lleclnmnllon 
ln Boulder City, ndde1l, "Mor.l hY-
1Jrologlr.lq would tell you llmL 
one 1111ml yenrdoer. not mnlw up 
for nvc lmd ytmrn." 

Closer to home, the wet 
v,culher Ir. mnltlng 11 r.!gnlncnnt 
difference. 

'11ic r.tonnr. hnve encounigcd 
conr.cn'nllon Uy re1ll1cln1l w11\.cr 
dcmnntl for mch ncllv!tle.'> 11.~ 
lnndr,cnplng nnd wnr.hln11 cnn;. 
/1.crord!ng to the Dc1111rtmenL or 
Wntcr nntl Pnwer, demnml hni: 
been slur.hetl by 25% !Jecnune or 
Lile rnlnfnlJ nr. peopll! tum orr 
their nutomnllc r,prlnldcrn. 

Jr Southem Cn!Jfonlla tl°!• 
1111lrer. !ci;r, !mportctl wnter thlr, 
yr.nr, that mts:ht nllow o!llc!n!~ lo 
begin building llll ll'!Servolrn, ln
c]11d!n11 Lnlm Mend tmd Lulic 

90 ,,, 
7B 
92 
lll 
101 

··1rn 
103 
]),l 

,. 17 
UI 
Ill 

% al cnimdly 
f,) 

f,) 

56 
57 
61 
58 
81 
53 
15 
,1 

" 9' 

"/I.II In nn, ltll ntldlng up to 11 I Powell. ~' 
really r.lrollf! Willer supply ycnr," I 
Wnlnhnnltl, • 

l1lorc itos All9Ctcs ·~=~=··:i·
1
~~-=l 

--~=~·-·"""""--•-••<"·-~- ·--··• -·- .,,, .. ___ -~"- . 

" ,. 

97 



98 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



qtaJ btUieii? '2-/:?.-0/~ 
lVlanagmg· . 
drought 
by llSing 

the market 
IN Las Vegas, a city of histrionic 

architecture, the building that 
matters most may be the bland, 

low-slung headquruters of the South
ern Nevada Water Authority. 

The general manager since the au
thmity was formed in 1991, the e]e, 
gant, no- · · · 
nonsense 
Pat Mulroy, 
52, is deter
mined to 
prevent a 
water sho1t
age from in-
hibiting the GEORGE WILL 
growth of 
this city that is dedicated to the propo
sition that inhibitions are sinful. 

She is dealing with a five-year 
drought, the worst in 100 years ·of 
record keeping. She also is dealing 
with reverberations from the day in 
1877 when Thomas Blythe strode 
into the Colorado River near the Cal
ifornia town now naroed for him, 100 
miles south of the Nevada border, 
and claimed for California 9 million 
acre-feet of the river - an acre-foot 
being about 326,000 gallons. 

Because of the principle "first in 
time, first in right," California got an 
abundance. Then, in 1922, six other 
states-Arizona, Colorado, Nevada, 
New Mexico, Utah and Wyoming-· 
joined with California in the Colorado· 
River Compact. Westerners _say 
whisky is for drinlcing and water is. 
for fighting over, but the seven states· 
can do pretty much anything they! 
can agree to, such as "banking" water; 
underground to use in trading river : 
entitlements. They cooperate to keep' 
Washington from butting in. . . 

Today, California gets 4.4 million 
acre-feet. Las Vegas' water needs are 
supplied mostly from Lalrn Powell -
down to 59 percent of capacity-and, 
downstream from Powell, Lake 
Me_ad, now at 3_4 pe1rnnto!cap~ity. 

Some 30 million people trom Den
ver to Salt Lake City, Phoenix, Tnc
son;Los Angeles and San Diego-al
most a tenth of all Americans - de-: 
pend on the river's water. But agd
culture sops up 90 percent of it. The 
sprawl of Phoenix onto agricultural 
land actually decreases water use . 

. The Strip ~-the portion of Las' 
Vegas Boulevard that has 15 of the·. 
world's .20 largest hotels - features: 
vast fountains, a sea battle between'. 
pirate ships and an 8.5-acre l~rn in' 
front of the Bellagio hotel. However,:. 
Mulroy says, The Strip accounts for: 
less than 1 percent of the state's! 
water use - while producing 60 per
cent of the state's economy. The av
erage hotel room uses 300 gallons of 
water a day, but it is all recycled. 
The drought has elicited un'West
ern demands to slow .this cfty's 
growth, but Mulroy briskly demurs: 
"YOU don't use a growth moratoriwn 
to manage through a drought." You 
use, primarily, the market. . . · · 

For exarople, most people who 
move here - there were a record 
29,248 new home._sales in 2004, an 
increase of 16 percent from 2003, 
which also set a record - come from 
less ruid places and they use home 
irdgation systems to reproduce the 
green lawns they left behind. 

"It iS/' s0.ys ·Mulroy, "mindMbog
gling: they move to the desert and 
plant Kentucky blue grass" - a par
ticularly thirsty ldnd. "We were," she 
says incredulously, "putting grass on 
medians." It was, she says, "like _mov
ing to Alaska and walking down the 
street in a bathing suit in January." 

The city got little response paying 
40 cents a square foot for removed 
grass. But Nevadans understand pric
ing: $1 a squarefoot has bought the 
removal of turf to 50.9 million square 
feet, for annual savings of 2.8 billion 
gallons of water. Now garderr stores 
stock desert plants for "water smart 
landscaping," so lawns do not need to 
look like a Georgia O'Keeffe painting 
- a cactus and a dead cow skull. 

Americans, passionate subduers of 
n.iture, are surpassing themselVes 
here. Having built the nation's fastest 

. grO\ving city in a desert, they are 
now bringing the desert back to town. 
From 2002 to 2003, while popula
tion was growing ,5,000 a month, 
water consumption declined from 
318,000 acre-feet to less than 
272,000, and was even less in 2004:· 

Today, Mulroy is worrying about: 
snow. Falling in theRDckies, it should 
melt and flow into Lake Powell. But 
when mountain winds pick up, "sub
limated1'.snow evaporates. The mois
ture goes into clouds "and rains on 
Nebraska"~ an indignity. Mulroy is 
not aroused. If she decides to stop it, 
this betting · town would not- bet 
against her. 

99 



100 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold _print.cgi 

I of 3 

~IAIC 
="~ w -•' @com 

The Press-Enterprise 

Perchlorate detected widely in mother's milk 

08:24 AM PST on Wednesday, February 23, 2005 

By DAVID DANELSKI / The Press-Enterprise 

A study published Tuesday found the rocket fuel chemical perchlorate in all human milk samples collected 
from women in 18 states, raising new concerns about the federal government's efforts to dete1mine a safe 
level in drinking water. 

The researchers calculated that most of the babies whose mothers gave samples are consuming more 
perchlorate than the National Academy of Sciences recently found is safe. 

The lead author of the study, published in the online edition of Environmental Science & Technology, said 
women shouldn't stop breastfeeding. 

"It's something that may have been around for 50 years, and we just 
now found it," said Andrea Kirk, a doctoral student in environmental 
toxicology at Texas Tech University in Lubbock. 

"It may be in fo1mula, also," she said. 

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is considering regulating 
perchlorate because certain amounts of the chemical can impair the 
thyroid gland's ability to produce honnones that fetuses and babies 
need for proper neurological development. 

The Texas Tech scientists collected samples from 36 lactating ~ _!llustration:_CJick_tQ __ enlarge 
volunteers in 2003 and 2004. The women were recrnited by word of 
mouth and a notice posted on www.mothering.com, a website of 
Mothering maternity magazine. Samples were frozen and shipped to researchers. 

Perchlorate concentrntions in the breast milk ranged from 1.4 parts per billion to 92.2 parts per billion, with 
an average of 10.5 parts per billion. By comparison, California last year set a public health goal of six parts 
per billion in drinking water. 

Like an earlier study of cows' milk by the U.S. Food and Drng Administration, the perchlorate contamination 
was detected in samples collected nationwide. The concentrations in breast milk, however, were five times 
higher than in cows' milk samples analyzed by the Texas researchers. 

Food May Be Source 

They found no correlation between contamination in breast milk and perchlorate concentrations in tap water 
or bottled water used by the nursing mothers. Food may be a major source of the chemical, the researches 
wrote. 

Peggy O'Mara, the editor, publisher and owner of Mothering magazine, said the problem isn't breast milk. 

"Breast milk is always the best choice," O'Mara said. "I wonder of how healthy the environment is if these 
chemical are showing up in breast milk. 

101 
2/28/2005 2:07 PM 



Printed from pc.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold _print.cgi 

102 
2 of3 

"If it is in breast milk, it is in everything." 

An EPA analysis issued Friday concluded that 24.5 parts per billion in drinking water is safe for all people. 

That was based on a dose per kilogram of body weight found to be safe by a National Academy committee 
that spent nearly two years reviewing studies about perchlorate's effects on health. The EPA arrived at 24.5 
parts per billion by applying the National Academy's formula to a 70-kilogram (about 150-pound) adult who 
drinks two liters of water a day. 

That analysis is controversial within the EPA. 

Kevin Mayer, EPA perchlorate coordinator for the Pacific Southwestern states, said his interpretation of the 
National Academy's work would put the safe level at 4.3 parts per billion for babies because they consume 
more liquid per unit of body weight than adults do. 

"I'm just not able to explain with any claiity from a professional standpoint how the agency arrived at this 
(24.5 ppb) conclusion," said Mayer, perchlorate coordinator for more than seven years. 

But Bill Farland, an acting deputy assistant administrator at the EPA's Office of Research and Development in 
Washington, D.C., said basing the safe dose on an adult's weight was appropriate because the most sensitive 
population is fetuses of pregnant women who have thyroid problems. The safe dose is based on the mother's 
weight. 

Babies More Resilient 

Babies are more resilient to perchlorate exposure than such fetuses, Farland said in a telephone interview. 

"They can clear the chemical more quickly," he said. 

Farland noted that the standard of24.5 parts per billion is not binding and is subject to change as more is 
learned about perchlorate ingestion from food. The chemical also has been in found dairy milk, lettuce and 
grain, the Texas Tech researchers said. 

The EPA will examine the Texas Tech data to determine how much of the chemical nursing babies are 
consuming, Farland said. 

Environmental groups said the Texas Tech study supports their calls for federal and state governments to 
push for cleanups of perchlorate-contaminated drinking water supplies. 

Perchlorate is used in rockets, munitions and road flares. Leaks and spills at factories and military bases have 
allowed the chemical to enter the lower Colorado River, a major drinking and in-igation water source for 
Sou them California, and several Inland groundwater basins. 

About 15 percent of the nation's crops and about 13 percent of livestock use water from the Colorado River, 
according to the Texas Tech researchers. Contaminated water has been found throughout the nation. 

Standards For Infants 

Renee Sharp, an Oakland-based analyst with the Environmental Working Group, said the Texas Tech 
findings should prompt the EPA to revise its analysis of how much perchlorate is safe in drinking water. 

"This will practically force the EPA into writing a standard that protects infants -- not just healthy adults," 
Sharp said. "I will be shocked and appalled if EPA doesn't change that. "The National Academy of Sciences 
repmt on perchlorate called for more research on how the chemical affects breast tissue. 

2/28/2005 2:07 PM 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi 

3 of 3 

Breast and thyroid cells both have microscopic pumps, called sodium iodide symporters, that bring iodide 
into the cells. In the thyroid, the iodide helps make hmmones needed for fetal development. 

In the breast tissue of lactating women, iodide goes into the milk for the thyroid of the feeding baby, said 
Gregmy Brent, a UCLA medical school professor and member of the National Academy perchlorate 
committee. 

Studies on mice could answer questions about whether perchlorate impairs movement of iodide through 
breast tissue, Brent said. 

Kirk, of Texas Tech, said her study found lower levels of iodide in the breast milk samples with the highest 
levels of perchlorate. Kirk and the other researchers said pregnant and lactating women might need to 
increase their intake of iodine to compensate for perchlorate. 

Reach David Dane/ski at (951) 368-9471 or ddanelski@pe.com 

Online at: http://www.pe.com/breakingnews/local/stories/PE_News_Local_milk23.58366.html 

103 
2/28/2005 2:07 PM 



104 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Printed from pc.com http://www. pe.eom/cgi-bin/bi/ gold _prinl.cgi 

1 of 2 

The Press-Enterprise 

Officials downplay perchlorate discovery 

SANT A ANA RIVER: Rain has carried the chemical downstream from the 
Stringfellow acid pits. 

II :36 PM PST on Monday, February 14, 2005 

By .JENNIFER BOWLES/ The Press-Enterprise 

The state agency overseeing the cleanup of the Stringfellow acid pits has for the first time detected a rocket 
fuel chemical in a creek that flows through northwest Riverside County to the Santa Ana River, officials said 
Monday. 

Although Pyrite Creek runs behind an elementary school and through the back yards of some homes in the 
semi-rural Jurupa Valley, the California Department of Toxic Substances Control said there is no immediate 
health risk from the perchlorate. 

The potential for human contact is low, given that the chemical is not easily absorbed through the skin and it 
moved quickly in the rain-swollen creek when tests were conducted last month, said Allen Wolfenden, chief 
of the state agency's Stringfellow Branch. 

Elliott Duchon, superintendent of the Jurupa Unified School District, said 
the discovery should not pose a hazard for children at Glen Avon 
Elementary School since the creek, which is a concrete-lined channel near 
the campus, is fenced off. Wolfenden said the levels of perchlorate dropped 
in the creek to trace amounts before it reached the Santa Ana River, which 
is used downstream by Orange County for drinking water. 

Mike Wehner, water quality director at Orange County Water District, said 
the agency would review the test results and verify the river hasn't been 
tainted. 

Stringfellow 
acid pits N,. r ...... 

Pyrite Creek 

~ 
"I'm just grateful we got everyone off the groundwater ... so we don't have 
to panic eve1y time something like this is found," said Penny Newman, 
Stringfellow activist and executive director of the Center for Community 
Action and Environmental Justice in Glen Avon. 

· · Undergroum 
perclllorate 
plume 

Jurup; 

"Like anything," she said, "it's something we have to watch." 

Perchlorate, which has been linked to thyroid illness, has seeped into 
groundwater supplies across the Inland region as a result ofleaks and spills 
at factories and military bases that used perchlorate in solid-state rocket 
fuel, munitions and fireworks. 

1HE PRtSs-ElffERPRI: 

The chemical was detected four years ago in an underground plume of contamination coming from the 
Stringfellow acid pits, nestled in a canyon above Glen Avon, where 35 million gallons of toxic waste were 
dumped until the pits closed in 1972. 

Given the recent heavy rains that can cany contamination from soil into waterways, Wolfenden said the state 

1 0 C' 
k ;) 

2/28/2005 2:03 PM 



Printed from pc.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold _print.cgi 

1 O"'' ~ 0 

2 of2 

agency decided to test surface water in the vicinity of the pits. 

The tests showed perchlorate levels ranging from 1.8 to 42 parts per billion. The state has set a dratl health 
goal of 6 parts per billion for drinking water and is expected to set a drinking water limit later this year. 

It is unknown if the perchlorate is also coming from just west of the pits in the Jurupa Mountains where 
aerospace companies used to conduct testing that may have used perchlorate, Wolfenden said. More tests will 
be conducted during upcoming storms to pinpoint the source, he said. 

Online at: http://www.pe.com/breakingnews/local/stories/PE_ News_ Local_ stringfellow15.f516.html 

2/28/2005 2:03 PM 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold _print.cgi 

I of2 

The Prese-Enterprlae 

Uranium poses threat to river 

COLORADO: Officials urge the federal government to move waste away from the 
Inland water source. 

07:24 AM PST 011 Monday, February 28, 2005 

By .JENNIFER BOWLES/ The Press-Euterprise 

The federal government should move about I 2 million tons of uranium mining waste in Utah away from the 
banks of the Colorado River, a major drinking water source for 18 million Southern Californians, regional 
water officials said. 

In a letter to the U.S. Department of Energy, officials wiU1 Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
said relocating the waste "offsite is the only reliable and permanent" answer to protecting the river 
downslTeam from further contamination of radioactivity. 

llllll 

"Naturally, it's a lot more expensive but we think that's the best 
alternative," said Jeff Kightlinger, the general counsel for 
Melmpolitan. 

The federal agency will announce in the spring how it will clean up the 
130-acre tailings pile on the west bank of the river near Moab, Utah, 
said Donald Metzler, the govermnent's project director. 

,1 
~rado 
_liii_ver _ 

The agency is considering an option that would leave the pile in place 
and cap it, a move that has drawn the ire of enviromnental groups as 
well as water suppliers. 

Melmpolitan, in its Feb. 17 letter, said that if the pile remains in place, 
it potentially could leak into the river and be subject to flooding that 
could wash uranium into the river. 

~ llluslration: .. Click to enlarge 

Groundwater concentration of uranium found at the site is more than 750 times above the federal drinking 
water standard, the letter notes. 

The Colorado River is a major drinking source for the Inland region, particularly in parts of western Riverside 
County. It also iITigates crops in the Coachella Valley. 

Inland water agencies said they supported the letter written by Metropolitan. 

"It's always easier to keep sources of supply from getting contaminated rather than after the fact, trying to 
remove them," said Peter Odencrans, a spokesman for Pel1'is-based Eastern Municipal Water District. 

Melodie Johnson, a spokeswoman for Riverside-based Western Municipal Water District, said she was 
particularly concerned by the high amount of salts the uranium waste could potentially dump in the river. 
Salts can reduce the usability of water for recycling projects that stretch water supplies. 

"For any recycling project you want to get the salts as low as you reasonably can," she said. "The numbers 

LU7 
2/28/2005 2:00 PM 



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold __print.cgi 

108 
2 of2 

here are something else." 

The fmmer uranium ore-processing facility was licensed by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission until it 
ceased operation in 1984. The mill tailings are residue left over from the processing of uranium ore, which 
recovers about 95 percent of the uranium, according to the Energy Department. However, the residue 
contains uranium, thorium, radium, polonium and radon. 

While the Utah sites pose a large threat to the Colorado, a more immediate threat is the high levels of 
chromium six that are inching toward the river near Needles in the San Bernardino County desert, officials 
said. 

Last Tuesday, the state ordered Pacific Gas and Electric to step up its cleanup of an underground plume of 
contamination coming from its natural gas compressor after well detected high levels of the contaminant 60 
feet from the river's edge. 

The test showed the clu·omium had moved much closer to the river and at higher levels than earlier detected. 

The level this time was 354 parts per billion, seven times the state drinking water for total chromium, which 
includes clu·omium six. 

Chromium six, the contaminant made famous in the movie "Erin Brockovich," is considered a cancer-causing 
agent when inhaled but debate remains over its effect when ingested. 

"It's something we just as soon keep out of drinking water and not be concerned with," said Kightlinger, of 
Metropolitan. "These sites are lTiclcy, so we're not shocked they found a pocket of it but we do expect them to 
be aggressive in treating it." 

Jon Tremayne, a PG&E spokesman, said the company has increased its pumping to 90 gallons a minute and is 
building a larger facility to treat more of the tainted water. 

He said no chromium has been detected in the 1iver. 

Reach Je1111i(er Bowles al 951-368-9548 orjbow/es@pe.com 

Online at: http://www.pe.com/brea ki ngnews/local/stories/PE _News_ Local_river28.a 12fa. html 

2/28/2005 2:00 PM 



I 

Saturday, February 19, 2005 Champion - A-9 

Cost of new water treatment facility in Chino increases 
A $4.7 million water treatment plant 

being built in Chino will cost nearly $1 
million more than originally planned. 

The city council approved an addition
al $900,000 on Tuesday for a plant that 
will remove nitrates and.perchlorate, re
sulting in more drinking water to meet 
the city's increasing needs. 

The IEUA will reimburse the city 
$300,000, the cost of a brine line included 
in the additional cost. 

The treatment facility was. fabricated 
off-site by Pittsburgh, Pa.-based Calgon 

Carbon Corp. and is being assembled at 
wells ]'fq. 5 and No. 9 on. Benson Av
enue; smith of Francis Avenue, said as
sistant city engineer Jim Hill . 
. It's expected to be completed this 
spring, he said. · 

1he additional cost was anticipated 
when a construction contract was 
awarded in August 2003, but the actual 
amount was not known at that time, Mr. 
Hill said. 1he extra amount is for design 
modifications needed as a result of• 
cl1anges in construction scope, taxes, ad-

ditional materials and contingencies, ac
cording to a city staff reporl 

It will be funded from reserves in the 
city's Water Development Impact Fee 
Fund. . 

Wheri completed, the facility will treat 
2.6 billion gallons annually. It's expected 
to provide drinking water to approxi
mately 30,000 people, more than twice 
the number served currently. 

Nitrate contamination has been a 
widespread groundwater problem in 
tl1e Chino Basin. Agricultural and dairy 

uses over the years have caused nitrates · 
from fertilizers and manure to seep into 
the region's groundwater. 

Although not as severe, traces of per-
cluorate are also found. . 
· Water· from these wells is currently 
blended with water imported from the 

· Metropolitan Water District to reduce 
the nitrate level and make it potable. 

The treatment facility is expected to 
bring down the cost.of potable water be
cause it will reduce th.e city's need for 
costly imported water. 



1 < 0 _,_ l 

THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 


